
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHIER 
COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Monday, 5 December 2022 at 1.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre 
 
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 
Item 
 

Business 
  

1   Apologies for Absence  
  

2   Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 
  

3   Performance Management and Improvement Framework – Six Month 
Update (Pages 9 - 44) 
 
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
  

4   Community Safety Progress Update (Pages 45 - 74) 
 
Report of the Director of Public Health – Care, Wellbeing and Learning 

   
5   Protection of Green Assets (Pages 75 - 84) 

 
Report of the Strategic Director, Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities 
  

6   Section 106 (Pages 85 - 90) 
 
Report of the Strategic Director of Economy, Innovation and Growth 
  

7   Work Programme (Pages 91 - 94) 
 
Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director of Corporate 
Services and Governance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill, Tel: 0191 433 2149, 
E-mail: melvynmallam-churchill@gateshead.gov.uk, Date: Friday, 25 November 2022 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Monday, 7 November 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor B Clelland (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): A Geddes, D Burnett, H Weatherley, H Kelly, 

J Reay, J Turnbull, K Dodds, R Waugh, S Dickie, 
V Anderson, P Maughan, A Wintcher, S Gallagher, P Burns 
and D Welsh 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): T Graham and F Geddes 
  
CPL39 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 
 RESOLVED: 

(i)               The minutes of the last meeting held on 27 June 2022 were agreed as a 
correct record. 

  
CPL40 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES UPDATE  

 
 The Committee received a report providing an update on the current position within 

Construction Services during the service review process. 
  
From the report, the Committee noted that a new senior management team was now 
in place within the service. Attention was also drawn to a new joint local agreement 
for revised working arrangements with a new salary structure from 1 September 
2022. 
  
It was explained that recruitment is currently underway within the service to fill 100 
posts; the Committee were advised that these posts would support the service in 
providing additional customer support and improve customer service delivery. It was 
also reported that staff are to be recruited to support clearing the backlog of repairs 
and increase the turnaround time for bringing void properties to lettable standards. 
  
From the report, the Committee were advised that 26 contractors and 3 inhouse 
teams are now assigned to backlog repairs. It was highlighted that £2.5m additional 
cost has been identified within the HRA to fund the works. 
  
It was further noted that recruitment is in progress to add two additional in-house 
void squads from November 2022. It was explained that this is expected to increase 
inhouse delivery from 16 to 24 properties per week. The Committee were also 
advised that contractor performance is averaging 7 properties per week and 
additional contractor resource continues to be sought. 
  
It was noted that operational changes to job-ownership by employees has started; 
this has resulted in a reduction in daytime jobs being passed over to out of hours 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

services. From the report the Committee were also provided with an update on 
efficiencies made to the storage of items and improvements being made to reduce 
waste. 
  
The Committee were also reminded that the service has improved communication 
with tenants as well as Councillors through the introduction of texts to residents and 
a new members enquiry direct e-mail. 
  
The Committee welcomed the service changes made to date; particularly the 
improvements in customer service and the work being undertaken to reduce the 
repairs backlog. A question was asked regarding the discontinuation of over 1000 
items from stores; officers advised that this stock would be sold off where possible 
with additional items being used up on repairs; it was also stated that there would be 
some items that would need to be disposed of. 
  
The Committee questioned how customer feedback fed into performance 
management; it was explained that the results of customer satisfaction 
questionnaires were being collated and that the new text system to gather feedback 
would improve the efficiency of the service gaining feedback. It was confirmed that 
the monitoring of performance and productivity was also ongoing. 
  
A question was raised regarding outstanding fencing repairs in the borough following 
on from the recent storms. Officers advised that these repairs were being prioritised 
with many hundreds of fences having already been repaired. It was noted that all 
fencing repairs would be complete by March 2023. 
  
The Committee thanked officers for their work and efforts. It was requested that a 
further update be received from Construction Services in March 2023. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the update. 
(ii)              The Committee agreed to receive a further update in March 2023. 

  
CPL41 HOUSEBUILDING UPDATE (PRESENTATION)  

 
 The Committee received a report and presentation providing an update on the 

Housing Delivery Test Action Plan. 
  
From the update the Committee were provided with a summary of Gateshead’s 
Housing Strategy and an overview of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy to illustrate 
how the Housing Delivery action plan feeds into each. It was highlighted that the 
strategic aims of the plan are to: 
  

•        Promote the delivery of a range of homes 
•        Develop more affordable homes  
•        Enable independent living  
•        Regenerate places 
•        Build partnerships 

  
An overview of workstreams was also presented, these were: 

Page 4



 

  
1. Direct Delivery: The HRA Business Plan confirms an intention to build 400 new 

council homes over the next 10 years (2021-2031).  
2. Registered Providers: Engagement of registered providers (RP’s) via the Housing 

Providers Partnership.  
3. The Gateshead Regeneration Partnership (GRP): Created in 2013, GRP aimed to 

build 2400 new homes by 2033. 411 new homes to date, with a confirmed pipeline of 
400 homes relating to 3 sites. Further 7 sites allocated to GRP with a development 
potential of 845 homes.  

4. Market Delivery: To support and enable investment from large volume national 
developers as well as encourage the growth of local SME’s.  

5. Specialist and Supported Housing Delivery: evidence led needs assessment will 
be concluded by Autumn 2022. 

6. Regeneration Delivery: A commitment to develop strategic regeneration 
frameworks and masterplans for ‘vulnerable’ places in Gateshead such as Felling, 
High Street South, Chopwell, Teams and Bensham. 

  
It was also explained that quarterly reports would be presented to the Council’s 
senior management group, Portfolio, Strategic Housing Board and Cabinet. It was 
also confirmed that there would be ward member briefings on progress being made. 
  
The Committee questioned what steps the Council are taking to engage with 
property developers. It was noted that there is a development framework for sites. It 
was also explained that the Council can offer developers incentives such as 
permissions in principle to build or grant funding to make improvements to existing 
sites. It was further noted that the Council conduct soft-market testing with 
developers. 
  
The Committee expressed frustration at the delays witnessed in having some vacant 
sites redeveloped; a comment was made stating that vacant sites can attract anti-
social behaviour and fly tipping. It was acknowledged that some sites have been 
vacant for longer than the Council would want; the Committee were advised that 
progress is being made, it was also noted that the business plan for the joint venture 
is to be reviewed. The Committee also expressed the need to build new housing in 
light of the current cost-of-living crisis, a comment was made suggesting that many 
private sector tenants would be turning to social/Council housing due to increased 
rents and evictions. 
  
A further question was asked regarding developments at Dunston Hill; it was 
reported that a masterplan has been drawn up for the site that is awaiting developer 
agreement. The Committee were advised that new housing is important to the 
Council in terms of new homes bonuses and increased council tax revenues. 
  
The Committee discussed the delays in developments at Gateshead High Street. A 
comment was made noting that works here seem to have stalled and that many of 
the empty properties could be put to temporary use. Officers advised that the project 
manager for the High Street would be providing timeframes before Christmas; it was 
also noted that discussions with Homes England are to take place soon. 
  
The Committee raised the issue surrounding the use of Section 106; it was agreed 
that an update on Section 106 would be provided at the next meeting. 

Page 5



 

  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the update. 
(ii)              The Committee requested a report on Section 106 at the next meeting. 

  
CPL42 HOUSING PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE MONITORING  

 
 The Committee received a report providing an update on the outcome of the Key 

Performance Indicator (KPI) review. 
  
The Committee were reminded that during 2021/22 the current suite of 49 Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI’s) have been reported on a quarterly basis to HEHC 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) and six-monthly to Strategic Housing 
Board (SHB). It was noted that in order to ensure that the KPI’s remain relevant, 
challenging and support key objectives a review commenced in March 2022. 
  
From the report, the Committee were provided with an overview of the review; it was 
also highlighted that the review also reflected the introduction of a new set of Tenant 
Satisfaction Measures by the Regulator of Social Housing. It was also explained that 
22 Tenant Satisfaction Measures have been incorporated into the proposed new 
suite of KPI’s. 
  
Appended to the report were the new KPI’s to be introduced from 1 April 2023. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee agreed the proposals reported. 
  

CPL43 IMPLICATIONS OF CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGE - TENANT REPRESENTATIVE 
ON THE OSC  
 

 The Committee received a report providing an update on proposals for up to six 
tenant representatives to attend the OSC. 
  
It was reported that during the Housing Review (that led to the decision to bring 
Housing Services together within the Council) there was a strong message from 
Council tenants that whilst they supported this change there was also a desire for 
tenants to have a direct voice within the Council and the opportunity to influence how 
services are delivered. 
  
The Committee were provided with an overview of existing measures in place to 
engage tenants with services; this included the Resident Influence Panel and the 
Housing Scrutiny Panel. 
  
It was proposed that members from the reported panels join the OSC as tenant 
representatives. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)              The Committee agreed with the proposal reported. 
 
  

Page 6



 

CPL44 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 The Committee received the annual work programme report for 2022/23. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the information in the report and endorsed the 
provisional work programme. 

(ii)              The Committee noted that further reports would be brough to the 
meeting to identify any additional issues which the Committee may be 
asked to consider. 

 
 
 
 

Chair……….……………….. 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

      
 HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
                                       5h December 2022  

 

TITLE OF REPORT:     Performance Management and Improvement Framework –      
6 - Month Performance Report 2022/23 

  
REPORT OF:  Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital  
 

SUMMARY  
This report provides the Committee with the Council’s Performance Management and 
Improvement Framework, reporting performance on the delivery of Council priorities for 
the period April 2021 to 30 September 2022. It also provides an overview of performance 
relevant to the role and remit of this committee. 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose of the Performance Management and Improvement Framework (PMIF) 
1. The Performance Management and Improvement Framework (PMIF) enables the 

Council to know how it is delivering on its Thrive policy. It has a clear focus on priorities, 
delivery, measurement and analysis of impact. It is based on Thrive and the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and incorporates an organisational ‘health check’ Balanced 
Scorecard.   

 

Background 
2. The Council’s performance framework was reviewed and a new approach was agreed 

by Council on 27 May 2021. The draft measures were considered and agreed by Cabinet 
in October 2021. The reporting of 6-month performance, which was considered by 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of January and agreed by Cabinet in March 
2022, was the first-time performance was reported using the new approach.   
 

3. The PMIF aims to: 
• Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities. (Thrive Policy)  
• Ensure that the Council's resources are being deployed effectively 
• Make both short and long-term effective decisions 
• A whole systems approach – embedded in our partnership working to deliver the 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

6-Month Performance Reporting 
4. The analysis of performance for 1 April 2022 to 30 September 2022, against each of the 

6 policy objectives of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy and the Balanced Scorecard is set 
out at Appendix 1. Areas of particular relevance to this Committee are highlighted in this 
report alone, however the full Performance Management & Improvement Framework is 
provided to enable members to see the full picture of performance across all priority 
areas. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
 

5. The report outlines the challenges, achievements, actions, and resources for each policy 
objective. It also contains performance data including strategic and operational 
measures and is informed by qualitative and quantitative assessment to inform policy 
and resource decisions. 

 

6. Some data is not available at 6-month stage. Indicators are released throughout the year, 
some annually which do not coincide with this reporting cycle.  Where provisional data is 
available this has been provided and noted. The report sets out the current performance 
for the strategic and operational measures where data is available at the 6-month stage.   

7. Cross-cutting key emerging areas already being highlighted are: 
• Budget pressures continue to provide a significant challenge. There is an increased 

level of uncertainty around the government financial settlement however, it is not 
anticipated the settlement will address the gap in Council budgets and future 
demand pressures. 

• Continuing demand pressures being faced by services, particularly across social 
care. 

• The continued impact of Brexit and the increasing outcomes from the current 
conflict in Ukraine impacting on costs facing local people as well as in the delivery 
of council services. The continuing legacy impact of Covid 19 on performance.   

• Widening inequalities, income and the longer term anticipated impact for the future 
on issues such as health. Latest data shows an increase of over 2 percentage point 
increase in those people who are considered vulnerable.  

• Staffing pressures across the Council including recruitment and retention, and 
sickness, continues to present challenges in delivering services. 

• Steady progress in key areas such as climate change strategy and engagement. 
• Continuing increase in the access of digital and online services.  
• Levels of support being provided to local people and businesses such as through 

various grants e.g., DWP Household Support Fund which was aimed to prevent 
people from going cold or hungry.  

 
Update Since the Year End Stage 

8. Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the year end performance in June 
2022. The overall report at Appendix 1 identifies a number of performance challenges, 
areas of excellence and activities for improvement. Key highlights relevant for this 
committee include:  

Areas of excellence and achievements include: 
• There are now 75 Warm Spaces registered in Gateshead. 
• A Strategic Locality Lead, Co-ordinator, and the Connector for Locality Working 

have all been recruited. 
• Strategic Account Management Programme engaging key employers to attract and 

retain investment and jobs and to promote responsible business practices. 

Page 10



 
 

• Council led Growth Fund, a £4.5m grant programme operating across Gateshead, 
Sunderland, and South Tyneside to support business investment projects that lead 
to job creation. 

• Launched a social enterprise accelerator working with a cohort of 12 social 
enterprises to help scale them up to deliver services to meet local need and 
address gaps in local supply chains 

• 251 residents have started work with help from Working Gateshead. This is double 
the number for the same period in 2021/22. This has been boosted through 
targeted activity in communities, partnership working, flexible personalised support 
and a multi-agency approach. 

• Around 28 businesses received support to create Kickstart job placements, resulting 
in 56 young people at risk of long-term unemployment starting work in high quality 
roles at the beginning of their careers. 

• A 'skills hub' in partnership has been established with the Department for Work & 
Pensions at the Metrocentre Jobcentre Plus unit. Around 15 residents per week 
have been engaged and have benefited from one-to-one information, advice and 
guidance upon becoming unemployed. This has included an event focused on 
Ukrainians welcomed into Gateshead who were otherwise not accessing 
mainstream employment and skills support. 

Challenges include 
• Rising cost of doing business – business investment delays and small businesses 

concerned they do not have the resource to continue trading. Demand for certain 
key sectors for business workspace is out-stripping supply. 

• Disruption in provision of business support programmes due to the current transition 
from EU funding. 

• Economic inactivity is at its highest level since 2013. This means tens of thousands 
of residents aged 16-64 are not participating in the labour market. Nearly a third of 
economic inactivity is reported as due to long-term sickness. 

• Decrease in apprentice figures due to several factors. In addition to the legacy of 
the pandemic but also for financial reasons around businesses closing; staff 
redundancies; recruiting fewer new employees; staff with insufficient capacity to 
spend time on an apprenticeship; and young people choosing to stay on at school, 
rather than entering an apprenticeship. 

• Helping people understand how changes to Universal Credit will impact upon their 
work and the requirements for them to look for work as 'managed migration' from 
legacy benefits is rolled out and the administrative earning threshold is raised. 

• Cost of living crisis is having significant impact on some residents’ ability to thrive 
and sustain tenancies.  

• Rent collection is reducing. Direct debits have previously been a more stable source 
of rent income, but we have seen a large increase in DD failures. Rent collection is 
expected to remain a significant challenge and rent income will be impacted upon 
because of the cost-of-living crisis. 

Page 11



 
 

• The period of COVID had an impact on recorded crime. In 2020/21, there was a 
reduction of around 10% in recorded crime, particularly burglary, theft-related 
offences and vehicle crime as people spent more time at home. This has started to 
increase again, and we are expecting further increases in recorded crime as the 
cost-of-living crisis starts to bite. It’s likely we’ll see an increase in theft-related 
offences and violent crime.  

• Violent crime has been steadily increasing over the last few years, so the Home 
Office funded the creation of a Violence Reduction Unit back in 2019.  It’s 
Northumbria-wide but there are some localised initiatives. 

• It should be noted that there is generally a perception that ASB involves youths 
gathering and causing a nuisance. The data collected on recorded instances shows 
youth-related reports to police over the last three years have accounted for less 
than one fifth of all ASB (Youth ASB has made up 15% of all ASB reports to police 
since April 2019). Most of the reports to police tends to refer to neighbour disputes 
or neighbour nuisance and that tends to be very localised and impacts only a 
handful of people/households. 

Actions being undertaken include 
• Energy roadshows have delivered in partnership between the council, CAG and 

others support to approximately 200 residents over several weeks. 
• Ongoing work to develop a fuel poverty action plan for Gateshead. 
• Commissioning activity to accelerate business formation rates and improve 

business reliance and growth through UK Shared Prosperity Fund. 
• Implementation of the Economic Development Strategy and the establishment of a 

Business Support Hub to help business impacted by cost of doing business. 
• Delivery of specialised employment support for care-experienced young people to 

help them navigate the world of work and achieve sustainable economic security. 
• Working with national, regional, and local employment related services providers, 

training providers and specialist support organisations to connect and align 
employment and skills support. 

 

Further development 
9. This is the second cycle of the 6-month performance against the new framework. While 

some data is still not yet available, these are areas that are important to measure as part 
of the framework, so they have continued to be included. A review of measures will be 
undertaken to understand where changes may be needed to ensure the PMIF remains 
robust. 
 

10. Work continues to develop the framework further to ensure it is best placed to enable the 
Council to understand its performance against priorities.  

 

11. The impact of the pandemic and recent economic events may influence and inform future 
priorities of the Council which would then inform the performance content of the 
framework. It is important the PMIF is flexible and able to evolve to ensure it remains 
relevant.    

Page 12



 
 

 

12. An overview document has been developed at Appendix 2. This document outlines the 
importance of performance management at the Council and provides details of the 
background and purpose of the PMIF, including its links to the wider policy framework of 
Thrive and the Health & Wellbeing Strategy. The document also details the outcomes 
and interventions, which underpin the performance measures for each of the six Policy 
Objectives, and it explains the purpose of the balanced scorecard. The document also 
demonstrates the newly developed branding for the Performance Management & 
Improvement Framework. 

 
13. The overview document will be placed in the Performance Management section of the 

Intranet and internet pages. This document could be provided to members as part of 
performance reporting in response to the request to improve the presentation of 
performance information. 

 
14. An online/digital format is also being considered with a pilot approach being developed. 

This will aim to cluster measures around key priority areas and present a visual 
representation of the performance data to be used alongside the analysis. This is a 
complex task and will involve areas across the Council, link to existing data approaches 
such as Local Index of Need (LIoN) but will provide performance data at different levels 
from strategic to operational in an accessible way. 

 
15. A glossary has been developed of terms used in the creation of this report and within the 

PMIF, for ease of reference. This is included at Appendix 3.   
 
Recommendations 
16. Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee is 

recommended to:  
• Comment on the 6-month report at Appendix 1 and identify any areas for further 

scrutiny. 
• Recommend the performance report to Cabinet for consideration in January 2023. 

 
Contact: Lindsay Murray                      Ext: 2794 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
DRAFT 

 
Please note this document is regularly being updated 

P
age 15



  

RESOURCES 
Gateshead are working hard to address recruitment and retention 
concerns through the ‘grow your own’ initiatives. In contrast, other 
LAs are using ‘parachute teams’ of agency workers to address 
staffing recruitment issues, which come at a high cost.  We aim only 
to use Agency staff for the purpose of back-fill where all other 
options have been exhausted. 
 
The pandemic and cost of living crisis have had a significant impact 
on children’s social care and the increase in LAC numbers with 
significant budget pressures continuing in 2022/23 and for the 
foreseeable future as things stand. Previous year savings have now 
been fully achieved but the focus is now on reducing in year 
overspends and managing future demand growth pressures. 

 
 
 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

Strategic 
· Number of pupils in Gateshead eligible for free 

school meals has increased. 
· Demand for social care support continues to 

increase. At the end of September 2022, 504 
children were looked after, a 4% increase since 
March 2022, and a 19% increase compared to 
the same time last year. This includes 
increases in Children becoming looked after for 
the first time and Children being referred to 
social care. The number of children becoming 
subject to a child protection plan has 
decreased. 

· There has been an increase in the amount of 
time from a child entering care to being adopted 
or made subject to a special guardianship 
order. 

 
Operational 
· Free school meals uptake has seen a slight 

decrease since the year-end stage. 
· Challenges remain in terms of recruiting 

qualified children’s social workers, which is a 
local, regional and national issue. A regional 
HR working group has been established to 
address these issues by sharing ideas, 
experiences, and best practice. 

· The average waiting time for children entering 
care and being placed for adoption has 
increased compared to the previous reporting 
period.  The main reason for this increase can 
be attributed to the Somerset Judgement, 
which has resulted in delays in placement 
orders. 

· Mosaic: some emerging challenges due to the 
significant change in process due to new case 
management system, recording and reporting.  

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 
· More families being offered and accepting the opportunity to be supported as part of an Early 

Help Family Group Conference, indicating stronger working relationships with families who 
need early help. The proportion of cases being closed showing ‘all needs’ met has also 
improved. 

· Number of families supported through the Family Drug and Alcohol Courts (FDAC) has 
increased, demonstrating the work being achieved through the FDAC Team. 

· 6 areas for improvement identified through the September 2021 Ofsted focused visit Short 
Inspection are being progressed with a plan in place.  An update on the plan was presented 
to OSC Families in September 2022, with good progress being made against the 6 areas of 
improvement identified. An inspection preparation group is in place, to manage the 
implementation plan and provide governance around inspection preparedness. 

Operational 
· Continue to meet the outcomes target set by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing & 

Communities for whole-family support through the Supporting Families Programme.  So far, 
we have achieved 49% of the target of 275 for the full year. Gateshead has met 100% of the 
targets set since the programme’s inception in 2012. 

· Triaged 1,899 referrals during 21/22 for the Reducing Parental Conflict Programme, 
exceeding the referral target set by DWP by 13% and posting a programme start rate 
(parents/carers) of 73%. We have secured a new DWP grant of £30K x 2 years to train 
facilitators in some of the programmes offered so that interventions can continue to be 
delivered as part of a local RPC offer. 

· Pre-birth service was launched in October 2022 with a focus on supporting babies to remain 
at home with Families. It is anticipated that the introduction of prebirth model will reduce the 
number of new-born babies coming into care, by placing more value upon the birth parents 
and wider family by working with them at earlier stages. 

· Behaviour Change Programme is well established, working directly with perpetrators to break 
the cycle of abuse. Funding secured from the PCC Violence Reduction Unit to increase 
capacity within the team by 1 FTE for 12 months until September 2023.The team have worked 
with a further 71 clients during April to September 2022. 

· Outcome 22 continues to be used as an Out of Court disposal. This intervention is a deferred 
prosecution, meaning the young person will not come through the formal criminal justice 
system unless they fail to comply with the programme. This intervention has been extremely 
successful in reducing the number of first-time entrants. In the past 12 months there have 
been 128 Out of Court Disposals. Only 1 young person declined intervention. In the current 
open case load 88% of Out of Court Disposals are Outcome 22’s. 

· Mosaic: Children’s services implemented in January 2022 and we have seen some significant 
process improvements, there have been some emerging challenges due to the significant 
change in process, recording and reporting.  We continue to work to address these issues 
with governance in place via the Mosaic Programme Board and the Children’s sub-board. 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· In collaboration with the ICB, Gateshead are in the process of creating 

a multi-disciplinary trauma informed service for children who are on 
the edge of care, cared for, in receipt of youth justice services or at 
risk of admission or due to be discharged from tier four provisions. 
The service will be in-house and aligned to our contextual 
safeguarding service. 

· Q3 and Q4 learning audits will be completed over the next 6 months 
and results analysed and presented in line with the framework as 
described. 

· To improve recruitment and retention in children’s social care to 
ensure sustainability and succession planning we have implemented 
a grow your own initiative, with the intake of 2 cohorts of 10 student 
social workers per year. Through targeted recruitment campaigns with 
universities, we can attract a high calibre of candidates.  This also 
helps with our succession planning where experienced Social 
Workers act as mentors to students, allowing them to gain managerial 
experience helping to grow opportunities for progression within the 
service. 

· Take forward activities to support engagement of children and their 
families in SEND development, implement the recommendations from 
the recent Green paper, review Secondary ARMS provision during 
2022/23. 

Operational 
· Working to target low uptake schools in a bid to increase school meal 

uptake i.e., attending open evenings, leaflet drops, social media 
campaigns. Ongoing Implementation of the new electronic school 
meals system to offer a range of benefits, by streamlining the 
operation and offering time efficiencies and a quality service that 
better needs the needs of pupils 

· We have now embedded an Early Help and Social Worker as part of 
our new community-based family intervention alongside Edbert’s 
House colleagues in Beacon Lough East.  It is too early to judge the 
impact of this intervention and an evaluation will be conducted in the 
coming months. 

· Mosaic: we continue to work to address the emerging issues with 
governance in place via the Mosaic Programme Board and the 
Children’s sub-board. 

 
 

SUMMARY 
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Demand for services continues to increase, a trend noted at the last full year report, and is particularly evidenced through the increase in children in our care and the rate 
of referrals into Social Care. There are still some area’s not able to be updated due to ongoing national disruption in collecting data during the pandemic.  Early Help 
Services continue to perform well, and it is hoped that these improvements will support a longer-term reduction in demand, although this will take some time show impact.  
Despite increases in demand we continue to meet our statutory duties and the impact on children and families. 
What will we be doing in response? 
Continue to work on innovative approached to recruitment and retention with particular emphasis on our grow-your-own initiative which will help to mitigate the demand 
pressures whilst supporting our work towards reducing overspends. Several initiatives and partnership working to improve services for children and their families. More 
targeted work being done around free school meals uptake to ensure families are accessing the support available to them during the cost-of-living crisis. 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
The shorter- and longer-term impacts of the pandemic and current economic pressures facing families will be monitored as these issues may well impact of performance 
against our desired outcomes. 
 
 

GIVE EVERY CHILD THE BEST START TO LIFE - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?   Appendix 1 DRAFT 
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – Our Outcomes 

The circumstances which result in adverse childhood experiences are prevented                                                                                                                                                                                 All children start school ready to learn 
All permanent school exclusions are prevented                                                                                                                                      Parents can access support proportionate to meet their needs, to be the best parents they can be 

 

P
age 16



 Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 
The 
circumstan
ces which 
result in 
adverse 
childhood 
experience
s are 
prevented 
 
Parents can 
access 
support 
proportiona
te to meet 
their needs, 
to be the 
best 
parents 
they can be 
 
All children 
start school 
ready to 
learn 
 
 
 
All 
permanent 
school 
exclusions 
are 
prevented 

Implementation of Gateshead's 
Economic Strategy 
 
Support our schools to deliver an 
effective curriculum that addresses 
the skills required for later life and 
supports emotional well-being  
 
 
 
C&F Early Help Strategy - 
providing support to families when 
a need is identified or as soon as 
a problem emerges, at any point 
in a child 
 
Focus on supporting confident, 
positive and resilient parenting, to 
those who most need our support 
 
 
Reducing the Number of Children 
in Care Strategy Interventions: 
· Keep families together safely 
· A culture that works with safe 

uncertainty and supports 
social workers across 
services in their work with 
edge of care families 

· Achieve permanency quickly 
· Develop enough and 

affordable high quality 
placement options 

Increase the focus of existing 
expenditure on early years to 
reduce inequalities in early 
development. 
Ensure maternity services, 
parenting programmes, childcare 
and early year’s education are of 
high quality and meet needs of all 
groups 
 
Build resilience and well-being of 
all children and young people 

 
Economic 
Strategy 

being 
implemen

ted 
 
 
 
 

Early 
Help 

Strategy 
being 

implemen
ted 

 
 
 
 

Reducing 
the 

Number 
of 

Children 
in Care 
Strategy 

agreed by 
Cabinet 

 
 
 

Budget 
review  

 

 
 
 

 

% of pupils eligible for free school 
meals  

26.44%   
Oct 2021 27.06% Tracking  

% take up of free school meals in 
primary schools 

72% 
(2021) 73% 

Maintain 
then 

increase 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Gap in Life expectancy at birth 
male/female Inequality in life 
expectancy at birth Males/Females 
Annual indicator 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F) 

2017-19 

10.8 (M) 
8.8 (F) 

2018-20 
Reduce 

 

 

Children in relative low-income families 
(under 16s) compared to England 
Average 

19.1%  
2019/20 

28.9% 
2020/21 Reduce  

% of state funded Gateshead schools 
graded good or outstanding 

 93% (21) 90.40% Tracking  

% of Gateshead local authority schools 
graded good or outstanding in relevant 
categories 

Reporting to be developed during 2022/23 with defined 
categories 

% of Early Help cases closed with ‘all 
needs met’ as an outcome 55.36% 64.49% 

Maintain 
or 

increase  

Hospital admissions caused by 
unintentional and deliberate injuries in 
children (0-14 years)  

113.3 
(2019/20) 

86.7 per 10,000 
(2020/21) Reduce 

Annual 

% of cases closed to early help which 
remain out of statutory services at 6 
months and 12 months 

88.83% / 
81.59% 

89.24% /   
86.73% 

Increase  

Reduction in number of children who 
need to be taken in to care 
 

184 / 46.7 
per 10,000 (at 
31/03/21 for 

previous 12m) 

227 / 57.9 per 
10,000 (at 30/09/22 
for previous 12m) 

Reduce  

Increase in the number of families who 
are offered the opportunity to be part of 
a Family Group Conference 

163 referrals 
submitted for 

FGC 

352 referrals 
submitted for 

FGC 
Increase  

Reduction in number of children who 
need to become the subject of a Child 
Protection Plan 

287 / 72.8 
per 10,000 (at 
31/03/21 for 

previous 12m) 

322 / 82.1 per 
10,000 (at 

30/09/22 for 
previous 12m) 

Reduce  

Increase in the number of families to 
take up the offer to be part of a family 
group conference 

79 closures with 
outcome ‘FGC 

Successful’ 

170 closures 
with outcome 

‘FGC 
Successful’ 

Increase  

Reduction in the rate of children who 
need to be referred to Children Social 
Care services  

1,621 / 
411.6 per 
10,000 (at 

31/03/21 for 
previous 12m) 

2,244 /     
572.4 per 
10,000 (at 

30/09/22 for 
previous 12m) 

Reduce  

Increase in the number of families 
supported through the FDAC (Family 
Drug and Alcohol Courts)  

5 families 
supported (End 

Sept 21) 

13 Families 
being supported 

(Sep 22) 
Increase  

School readiness: percentage of 
children achieving a good level of 
development at the end of Reception 
and maternal health 

73.4% 
(2018/19) 

Not published 
since covid Increase  

The percentage of children assessed by 
Children Social Care, where 3 or more 
ACE (Adverse Childhood Experience) 
factors were identified  

Measure to be developed from new Mosaic system for 6-
month stage 2022/23 

 
 

School readiness % of children with 
free school meals achieving a good 
standard of development at end of 
reception 

52.7%     
(2018-19) 

Not published 
since covid Increase  

Reduction in the average time between 
a child entering care and being made 
subject of a Special Guardianship Order 

427 Days (as at 
31/03/2022) 

454 Days        
(as at 

30/09/2022) 
Reduce  

No of permanent exclusions from 
Gateshead schools 

38 
(19/20) 

38 
(20/21) Reduce  

Annual 
Reduction in the average time between 
a child entering care and placed for 
adoption 

416 days (at 
31/03/21, 

previous 12 
months) 

418 days (at 
30/09/2022) for 

previous 12 
months 

Reduce  

No. of children looked after by the local 
authority 

435 
(Q4 2021/22) 

504 
(Q2 2022/23) Reduce  

% smoking at time of delivery 12.58 
(2018/19) 

11.6            
(2020/21) Reduce  

Annual 

6-8-week breastfeeding rate 38.7 
(2019/20) 

41.8              
(2020/21 Increase  

Annual 

Pupils who have missed 10% or more of 
school sessions during an academic 
year 

18.14% 20/21 
academic year 

24.54% 
(21/22 academic 
Year, Aut/spring 
terms only, as at 

May 22) 

Reduce  

 

Investment Strategy & Resources 
Revenue 22/23 (21% 

of total gross budget) 
5yr 

Capital 
Gross  Net   
£133 £000 £000 

133,056 47,614 19,276 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Employees – 513.17 FTE   
Figures based on 2022/23 budget 
setting 
 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 
· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & 

adults Amber 
· Non-compliance with statutory requirements 

resulting in prosecution & subsequent penalties 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that 
compromises confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s 
budget & systems Amber 

 
 

Qualitative Impact 
· Demand for services continues to increase, a trend noted at the 

last full year report, and is particularly evidenced through the 
increase in children in our care and the rate of referrals into 
social care.  

· Early Help Services continue to perform well, and it is hoped 
that these improvements will support a longer-term reduction in 
demand, although this will take some time show impact.  

· Despite increases in demand we continue to meet our statutory 
duties and the impact on children and families. 
 

 
 

Geographic Impact - Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 
· Child poverty remains highest around the urban centre of 

Gateshead, with smaller pockets further afield and in outlying 
areas such as Allerdene, Elisabethville and Highfield East. 

· high numbers of vulnerable children spread across our more 
deprived neighbourhoods around the borough in every locality. 

· Children requiring help and intervention are more prevalent on 
the urban town centre of Gateshead in the inner east with 
pockets in the outer west around Chopwell, High Fell and 
Birtley. 

 
 
 

Geographic Impact - Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 
· child poverty remains highest in and around the urban centre of 

Gateshead, with smaller pockets further afield in areas such as 
Allerdene, Harlow Green East, Elisabethville and Barley Mow. 

· high levels of persistent school absence particularly evident in 
a number of areas within Bensham and Felling. 

· high numbers of vulnerable children in multiple areas of 
Deckham, Felling and High Fell. Other areas with large 
numbers include Staneway East, Elisabethville, Winlaton East 
and Chopwell North. 

  
 
 

GIVE EVERY CHILD THE BEST START TO LIFE  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? 

 

P
age 17



 

RESOURCES 
A zero-based budget review is ongoing with specific focus on Older People Residential Care, 
Hospital Discharge to Assess, Mental Health and Section 117 funding, Complex Learning 
Disability community packages, Transforming Care, transitions and Provider Services. The 
work will be completed by January 2023. 
 
Adults received significant levels of Covid support for workforce recruitment & retention, 
infection control and rapid testing funds and ASC omicron support funding in 2021, which has 
offset additional expenditure with most of the grants being transferred to providers. 
 
Covid impacts in ASC were offset by significant additional funding provided by CCG/DHSC, 
which is no longer being provided. There is budget pressure in maintaining Hospital Discharge 
to Assessment due to the cessation of covid support funding and the increased need levels 
and quantities. The promise of £500m nationally to the Adult Social Care sector for winter 
pressures has not progressed due to the current national political landscape, and currently 
there is no further indication of what is happening (as at 08/11/22). 
 
A further agreement was reached for a pooled budget for the hospital discharge scheme via 
CCG’s for a further year, however, significant pressure is showing as costs continue to rise. 
 
Going into 2022 the ASC Package saving (£2.5m) & Hospital Discharge savings (£1m) without 
budget mitigation both continue to be a budget pressure. The current reported in year 
overspend on Adult Social Care budget is £2.125m. 
 

 
 
 

Enable all Young People and Adults to Maximise their Capabilities and have Control over their Lives 
ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US? DRAFT 

All young people are resilient, with good physical and mental health and wellbeing                                                                                                                                   All young people are ready and appropriately skilled for the workplace 
Gateshead is a positive place in which everyone’s mental health and wellbeing can flourish                                                        Everyone is able to be an active part of their community and feel connected to communities and networks 

 
     

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 
· Impact following the pandemic continues to be seen with 

increased frailty and complexity of need amongst those 
needing services, more people waiting for services and 
increased strain on the mental wellbeing of the community and 
the workforce.  

· Level of need of those being admitted to hospital (particularly 
older frail people) and the requirement to discharge people 
earlier in their recovery journey means people with more 
complex needs are being discharged from hospital, putting 
pressure on health and care community services. 

· Recruitment and retention issues continue to be a challenge 
across the Adult Social Care workforce both in house and 
commissioned services, despite several innovative 
approaches. 

· Implemented a trainee Social Worker model and focused on 
apprenticeships to try and help in our approach to recruitment 
issues, but recruitment of experienced social workers remains 
challenging. 

· Currently in a period of significant change within the ASC 
Sector, which is further being impacted by the increased level 
of uncertainty due to the national political landscape. 

· Seeing a disruptive impact on supporting people with Learning 
Disabilities into paid employment given the emerging longer-
term implications of the pandemic and the national economic 
crisis, with a decrease in those supported compared to the 
same time last year. 

 
Operational 
· Budget pressures continue to provide a significant challenge.  

There is an increased level of uncertainty around the 
government financial settlement however, it is not anticipated 
the settlement will address the gap in Council budgets and 
future demand pressures. 

 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 

· A research project is being conducted on the impact 
of the dementia friendly flats in Watergate Court, with 
the results so far yielding positive results for 
residents. 

· The ASSET Team launch was successfully 
completed, and the evaluation so far has identified 
that excellent outcomes are being achieved. There 
has been recognition that the model could become 
overwhelmed with the volume of referrals, so a multi-
agency triage process has been developed and is 
being trialled 

· The Adult Social Care Services Business Plan is now 
linking into Health & Wellbeing Strategy review and 
further work is planned in collaboration with the Local 
Government Association to develop an integrated 
adults and social care service strategy. 

· Housing LIN have awarded a contract to undertake 
and complete the strategy for the supported housing 
needs assessment. 

 
Operational 
· Recruited six Trainee Social Workers into two ‘pods’ 

in Assessment Services: one in generic Adult social 
care and one in Mental Health giving us additional 
assessment capacity now, and qualified social 
workers in the future.  The Occupational Therapy 
‘pod’ model is also now being scoped out. 

· Recruited the Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-
ordinator, and the Connector for Locality Working 

· Increase in the number of permanent adaptations 
carried out, which enables Gateshead residents to 
remain in their own homes. 

 
 
 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· Ongoing development of locality working, and work to identify the assets within the areas. 
· Further work in preparation for CQC assurance has seen the completion of the self-

assessment report and we have undertaken a mock annual conversation with a regional 
consultant, following which we will be developing an action and implementation plan over the 
coming months. 

· The roll out of the adult social care practice quality assurance framework has been completed 
and we are now undertaking a learning review which will feed into our service development 
plan. 

· First thematic audit within the quality assurance framework is due to be undertaken in January 
2023, focusing on Strength based practice.  We have also developed a new conversational 
record within the new IT system (Mosaic) which will support and enhance our approach to 
strength-based practice. 

· Implementation of the new Activity Based Care model to offer an innovative and diverse range 
of day service options for our service users has now been completed. 

 
Operational 
· implementation of the new adult social care case management system, Mosaic, continues, 

bringing significant amounts of change across the area. 
· We have taken the lead in developing a regional procurement framework for Technology 

Enabled Care and have a range of pilots ready to launch over the 6 months focussing in this 
area. 

· Whitley Court development at Wrekenton ongoing; 4 bungalows and 12 apartments will be 
directly commissioned by ASC for the purposes of supported accommodation. The bungalows 
will be designed to house tenants with complex needs and will be built to fully accessible and 
adaptable standards. The scheme includes a sensory garden and landscaped area designed 
specifically to support individuals with autism. 

 

SUMMARY  
 

What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The ongoing impact of the pandemic, the increasing and complex needs being presented by people who require support and the 
significant budget pressures faced in Adult Social Care continues to affect services. Waiting lists for assessments and packages of 
care are monitored and robust risk management arrangements are in place. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
The learning from internal quality assurance activity, targeted thematic audits around strength-based practice and the feedback and 
learning from the Adult Social Care services CQC preparedness work will lead to an implementation plan in order to improve 
outcomes for adult social care users. The zero-based budget review of services will allow us to determine any areas of savings 
linked to current budgetary pressures. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
This is a very challenge time for Adult Social Care with a lot of competing demands and priorities. The response to these challenges 
will be managed through the work we are doing and the longer-term impacts and emerging pressures around budget, staffing and 
complexity of need continue to be monitored and responded to. 
 

P
age 18



aseline is latest 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All young 
people are 

resilient, with 
good 

physical and 
mental 

health and 
wellbeing 

 
All young 

people are 
ready and 

appropriately 
skilled for the 

workplace 
 

Gateshead is 
a positive 
place in 
which 

everyone’s 
mental 

health and 
wellbeing 

can flourish 
 

Everyone is 
able to be an 
active part of 

their 
community 

and feel 
connected to 
communities 

and 
networks 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All domestic 
abuse is 

prevented 

· Prioritise creating 
the conditions for 
people to enjoy 
positive 
emotional health 
& well-being. 

· Support our 
schools to deliver 
an effective 
curriculum that 
addresses skills 
required for later 
life and supports 
emotional well-
being  

· Implement 
Economic 
Strategy 

· Research 
commissioned 
into wellbeing of 
children and 
young people 

· Health and 
wellbeing 
intervention  

· Delivery of Health 
& Wellbeing 
review 

· Support people 
through locality 
case working, 
even not eligible 
for statutory 
services but who 
require support 

· Ensure views & 
opinions of local 
people are 
represented in all 
aspects of our 
work 

· Prioritise 
preventing 
&reducing scale 
& impact of 
violence & 
domestic abuse  

.    
 
Economic 
Strategy 
being 
implemented 
 
Children and 
Young 
people 
Survey 
commissione
d by public 
health with 
consultation  
 
 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
review being 
progressed 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
being 
developed 
working with 
partners and 
communities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year 6: Prevalence of obesity (including severe 
obesity) Child and Maternal Health 

24.9 
(2019/20) 

No new 
data 

available 
Reduce  

Households with dependent children owed a duty 
under the Homelessness Reduction Act Child 
and Maternal Health 

23.0 
(2019/20) 

No new data – 
reporting to begin 
within next 12mth 

 
Reduce 

 
 

Gap in life expectancy at birth male/female 
Inequality in life expectancy at birth 
males/female (Annual) 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F) 

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M)     
8.8 (F) 

(2018-20) 
Tracking 

 Hospital admissions caused by unintentional & 
deliberate injuries in young people (aged 15-24 
per 10,000) 

167.5 
(2019/20) 

155.8 
(2020/21) Reduce  

Annual 
 

People reporting low life satisfaction % 
(compared to England Average) 

6.1% 
(20/21              

Eng Ave) 

8.0% 
(2020/21) Reduce  Children 5-17 years attending holiday activities 

126 
(Summer 

2020)  

530 
(Up to             

Sept 2022) 
Increase  

 

16-18-Year-olds not in education, employment 
or training (NEET) 

5.2%                
(Dec 19-Feb 20) 

5.8%       
(Mar-Aug 

22) 
Reduce  

Inequality in attainment between children looked 
after by the local authority & those not KS4 
Attainment 8 Score 

CLA 21.8 
NCLA 47.2 
(2018/19) 

CLA 25   
(Summer 2021) 

NCLA                   
(Not available) 

Reduce  
Annual 

GCSE achieved 5 9-including English & Maths 
(%) / with free school meals (%) No longer published No of people supported by a caseworker who 

report improvement in their satisfaction with life 
Locality teams, being developed for 2022/23 

 
Inequality in attainment between children 
eligible/ not eligible for FSM KS1 Expected 
Level 

FSM 46% 
NFSM 70% 
(2018/2019)  

FSM 33.2% 
NFSM 
58.1% 

(Sept 2022) 

Reduce  
Successful completions from substance misuse 
treatment New definition and baseline to be determined 

Inequality in attainment between children 
eligible for and not eligible for free schools KS2 
(RWM Expected Standard) 

FSM 52% 
NFSM 73% 
(2018/19) 

FSM 39.9% 
NFSM 
67.5%    

(Sept 2022) 

Reduce  
Education Health and Care Plans issued within 
20 weeks (Including / Excluding exception) 

97% Inc 
exception 
93% Exc 
exception 

(2021) 

98.3% including 
exception 

98.3% excluding 
exception 

finalised in 20wks 

Increase  
Annual 

% of physically inactive adults compared to 
England Baseline*(Musculo-skeletal 
conditions) 

22.9% 
(England 
2019/20) 

24.7%                               
(April          
2021) 

Reduce  
Smokers that have successfully quit at 4 weeks 
compared to England Average 

1,808 
(2019/20 
Eng Avg) 

1,979 
(2019/20) Increase  

Admission episodes for alcohol-specific 
conditions - Under 18s per 100,000 

50.5 per 
100,000 (17/18 

- 19/20) 

50.8 per 
100,000 
(18/19 - 
20/21) 

Reduce  
% of eligible adults with a learning disability 
having a GP health check 

52.3%                            
(England 
2018/19) 

66.2% 
(2018/19-

awaiting new 
data) 

Increase  

Smoking Prevalence in adults compared to 
England Average Baseline 

13.9% 
(Eng Avg) 

17.1% 
(2019) Reduce  

Adult Social Care Self-reported user experience: 
ASCOF 3A Overall Satisfaction of people who use 
services with their care and support 
ASCOF 3B overall satisfaction of Carers with social 
services 

64.2% 
(2019/20) 

62.9% 
(2021/22) Increase 

 

 
 

43.6% 
(2018/19) 

42.8% 
(2021/22)  

Those with learning disabilities in suitable 
accommodation & supported into paid 
employment 

8.88% 
(2020/21 

provisional) 

7.6% 
(Sep 22)  Increase  

Volunteering levels /Supporting and working with 
the VCS measures (new measure in development) 

2,116 
(2018/19) 

No data 
available 

Increas
e Annual 

Proportion of adults with a learning disability 
who live in their own home or with their family 

82.94% 
(2020/21 

(@ 6-Month 
2021/22 = 

33.4%) 

60.6%        
(6-Month /  

Cumulative) 
 

Increase 
 

 

Social isolation % of adult social care users who 
have as much social contact as they would like 52.3% 41.1% 

(2021/22) Increase  
Annual 

Total no. of accessible and adaptable homes 
built from 1st April 2021/22 baseline 

Baseline to be 
set in 2022/23 3 Increase  No of permanent adaptations carried out (to 

enable people to stay in their home) 600 1,372 Increase  
Annual 

Those with learning disabilities in suitable 
accommodation & supported into paid 
employment 

8.88% 
(2020/21 

provisional) 

7.6% 
(Sep 22)  Increase  

% of social care users aged 18+ with personal budgets 
/ direct payments: 
ASCOF 1C part 1a (adults receiving self-directed 
support) 

98.29% 
(20/21) 

94.7%          
(Sept 2022/23) Increase  

Rate of domestic violence reports / convictions/ 
repeat victims of domestic violence and/or 
children affected by domestic abuse – 
Measure definition to be determined 

Measure definition to be agreed 

ASCOF 1C part 1b (carers receiving self-directed 
support) 

98.61% 
(20/21) 

100%            
(Sept 2022/23) Increase  

ASCOF 1C part 2a (adults receiving direct payments) 20.5% 
(20/21) 

16.6%           
(Sept 2022/23) Increase  

ASCOF 1C part 2b (carers receiving direct payments 
for support direct to carer 

63.89% 
(2020/21) 

81.0%           
(Sept 2022/23) 

 
Increase  

 
Geographic Impact Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 
· high rates of domestic abuse incidents where children are involved 

in many of the overall most in need areas of Gateshead. 
· first time entrants into the youth justice system in a number of areas 

that do not typically feature as most in need areas. For example, 
areas of Ryton, Whickham, and Wardley. 

· high densities of long term adult social care users across the 
borough in neighbourhoods within Winlaton, Whickham, Sheriff Hill 
and Windy Nook, as well as Derwentwater West/Racecourse 
Estate, Barley Mow and Sunniside. 

 
 
 

Investment Strategy & Resources  
Revenue 21/22 (27% 

of Council budget) 
5yr 

Capital 
Gross  Net   
£000 £000 £000 

176,345 84,156 21,718 
Commissioned spend: tbc Assets: Asset 
Strategy Review.Employees 1041.16FTE 
tbc Figs based on 2022/23 est. 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 
· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber 
· Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in 

prosecution & subsequent penalties Amber 
· The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises 

confidentiality, integrity & availability of information Amber 
· Failure to manage demand and expectations could result 

in the Council not achieving its Thrive agenda Amber 
· Failure to address financial gap in Council’s budget & 

systems Amber 
 
 
 

Qualitative Impact 
· Earlier intervention can help to reduce health inequalities faced 

in later life + improve health and wellbeing outcomes, which can 
help to reduce demand for services. Gateshead Council is one 
of ten local authorities to receive £5m over 5 years to increase 
capability and capacity for research into health inequalities. 

· Behind the Masks”, Gateshead’s Covid stories, Director of 
Public Health Annual Report 2021/22” highlighted: pressures 
and demand on Adult Social Care services during the pandemic 

 
 
 

 

ENABLE ALL YOUNG PEOPLE AND ADULTS TO MAXIMISE THEIR CAPABILITIES AND HAV E CONTROL OVER THEIR LIVES  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND PERFORMANCE 

P
age 19



 

RESOURCES 
 

· Budget review area for the Economy and Business, considering 
the new Economic Strategy outcomes. 
 

· Administered the £4.1m COVID-19 Additional Relived fund to 
support those businesses affected by the pandemic but that were 
ineligible for existing support linked to business rates. 

 
· Secured £2.145m funding from CRF for projects including “Future 

You” (£0.733m) considering unemployment, “Immex City” 
(£0.732m) considering immersive technology adoption, 
“Gateshead Riverside Partnership” (£0.55m) enhancing the visitor 
market, and “Future Markets Acceleration Programme” (£0.128m) 
considering business innovation. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHALLENGES AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 
· Rising cost of doing business – Business investment delays, small 

business concerned they do not have the resource to continue trading. 
· Demand for certain key sectors for business workspace out-stripping 

supply. 
· Disruption in provision of business support programmes due to 

transition from EU funding. 
· Economic inactivity is at its highest level since 2013 meaning tens of 

thousands of residents aged 16-64 are not participating in the labour 
market. Nearly a third of economic inactivity is reported as due to long-
term sickness. 

· Decrease in apprentice figures due to several factors, mostly due to 
COVID or financial reasons - closing businesses, staff redundancies, 
recruiting less new staff, staff too busy to spend time on an 
apprenticeship, young people staying on at school rather than entering 
an apprenticeship 

 
Operational 
· Helping people understand how changes to Universal Credit will 

impact upon their work and the requirements for them to look for work 
as 'managed migration' from legacy benefits is rolled out and the 
administrative earning threshold is raised. 

· Encouraging employers to access apprenticeship levy funding to help 
them create jobs with progression opportunities and develop their 
existing workforce. 

 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
 
Strategic 
· Strategic Account Management Programme engaging key employers to attract and 

retain investment and jobs and to promote responsible business practices. 
· Council led Growth Fund, a £4.5m grant programme operating across Gateshead, 

Sunderland, and South Tyneside to support business investment projects that lead to 
job creation. 

· Support for North East Screen Industries Partnership 
 
Operational 
· Launched a social enterprise accelerator working with a cohort of 12 social 

enterprises to help scale them up to deliver services to meet local need and address 
gaps in local supply chains 

· Supporting readiness of local supply chains and promotion of business opportunities 
· 251 residents started work with help from Working Gateshead, double the number for 

the same period in 2021/22. This has been boosted through targeted activity in 
communities, partnership working, flexible personalised support and a multi-agency 
approach. 

· 28 businesses received support to create Kickstart job placements, resulting in 56 
young people at risk of long-term unemployment starting work in high quality roles at 
the beginning of their careers. 

· Established a 'skills hub' in partnership with the Department for Work & Pensions at 
the Metrocentre Jobcentre Plus unit, circa 15 residents per week have been engaged 
and have benefited from one-to-one information, advice and guidance upon 
becoming unemployed. This has included an event focused on Ukrainians welcomed 
into Gateshead who were otherwise not accessing mainstream employment and 
skills support. 

 

ACTIONS 
 
Strategic 
· Commissioning of activity to 

accelerate business formation rates 
and improve business reliance and 
growth through UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund. 

· Capitalise in strengths in immersive 
technologies 

· Implementation of the Economic 
Development Strategy 

· A note is being prepared to provide 
further qualitative analysis and 
context around the decrease in 
employment / unemployment rates 

 
Operational 
· Establish Business Support Hub to 

help business impacted by cost of 
doing business 

· Deliver specialised employment 
support for care-experienced young 
people to help them navigate the 
world of work and achieve 
sustainable economic security. 

· Work with national, regional, and 
local employment related services 
providers, training providers and 
specialist support organisations to 
connect and align employment and 
skills support. 

 
SUMMARY 

 
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Ongoing impacts of Brexit, Covid-19 and the conflict in Ukraine continue to affect Gateshead’s economy, as is the case nationally, although 
the full extent of those impacts are yet to be fully understood. Rising costs and the impact that Brexit is having on business continues to be 
felt, with some small business expressing their concerns around their ability to viably trade. The Council has a role in continuing to support 
businesses operationally, particularly with accessing opportunities for funding and growth, as well as strategically by considering how it 
invests. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Development Strategy will be key to helping to address some of the challenges being faced. 
Ongoing monitoring to fully understand the impacts of the factors outlined above so that potential interventions are identified, to contribute 
towards Thrive outcomes. Continuing support to enable businesses to access opportunities and funds, with a focus on the environmental 
impact of the local economy in Gateshead. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months 
The economic future remains uncertain at present with the impacts outlined above yet to be fully understood. Monitoring this will be important 
as well as identifying potential interventions to contribute to Thrive outcomes. It is anticipated that attendance levels at events will continue to 
increase as a result of the ongoing recovery from restrictions during covid-19, which will provide a boost to the visitor economy. 
 
 

Create Fair Employment and Good Work for All - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?    
What do we Want to Achieve? Our Outcomes 

· All working age residents have access to good quality, sustainable work with decent pay and conditions 
· All people in low paid, low skilled jobs have opportunities to improve their skills base so they can more easily achieve personal progression and attain an improved standard of living 

P
age 20



tn 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational 
Performance 

Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All working age 
residents have 
access to good 
quality, 
sustainable work 
with decent pay 
and conditions 
 
All people in low 
paid, low skilled 
jobs have 
opportunities to 
improve their 
skills base so 
they can more 
easily achieve 
personal 
progression and 
attain an 
improved 
standard of 
living 
 

Implementation of 
Gateshead's 
Economic Strategy 
• Visitor Economy 
• Green Economy 
• Digital Economy 
• Local Economy 
(Community Wealth 
Building) 
e.g. Delivery of 
Gateshead Quays 
development 
including 
Conference and 
Exhibition Centre 
Gateshead Town 
Centre Regeneration 
Masterplan 
 
Helping people into 
work from direct 1:1 
support in their own 
localities. 

Strategy 
agreed and 
being 
implemented 
across core 
themes 
 
 
Gateshead 
Quays 
Conference 
and 
Exhibition 
Centre 
progressing 
 
 
 
 
 
Locality 
approach 
being 
developed 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Unemployment rate % 
 

5.5% 
(2019/20) 

5.2% 
(Jul21–Jun22) Reduce  Individuals helped into 

work 
266 

(YE 2021/22) 
251 

(6mth) Increase  Apprenticeship starts 
 

1,760 
(2018/19) 

1,220 
(Aug 21-Apr 22) Increase  

Apprenticeship completion 940 
(2018/19) 

390 
(Aug 21-Apr 22) Increase  

Jobs created 
To be set (641 

at 6-month 
stage) 

250 Increase  Business births in Gateshead  
 

800 
(2019) 

730 
(2020) Increase  

Annual 
Total no of enterprises in Gateshead 5,270 

(2019) 5,610 Increase  
Jobs safeguarded 

To be set  
(373 at 6-

month stage) 
76 Increase  

Jobs density in Gateshead 0.81 
(2019) 

0.71 
(2020) Increase  

Annual 

Sustain Gateshead’s working age 
population at a minimum of 2018 
baseline of 128,300 

128,300 
(2018) 

127,300 
(2019) Tracking  

Start-ups commenced 
trading 

To be set  
(38 at 6-month 

stage) 
68 Increase  

Employment Rate 73.3% 
(2019/20) 

71.3% 
(Jul21–Jun22) Increase  Business 

improvement & 
expansion projects 
completed 

To be set 
(11 at 6-month 

stage) 
37 Increase  

Economic Inactivity Rate 22.9 
(2019/20) 

24.9 
(Jul21–Jun22) Reduce  

Staying visitors to Gateshead 
(Annual) 

665,080 
(2019) 

406,000 (2021 – 
impacted by Covid) Increase  

Inward investment 
success 

14 (12 
months) 

(2019/20) 
7 Increase  Gap in life expectancy at birth 

male/female: Slope index of 
inequality 

2017-19 
10.7 (M)             

2018-20 
10.8 (M) Reduce 

 

 

9.6 (F) 8.8 (F)  
 

Qualitative Impact 
· Adverse impact on the economy following the Covid-19 

pandemic with certain sectors including retail and 
hospitality impacted. Cost of living rise also impacting on 
disposable income levels. 

· Data gathered found that businesses are suffering from 
cost increases for materials, while some have found 
there are labour shortages in some sectors following EU 
Exit.   

· Many businesses are adjusting to the changing 
economic conditions.  

· Progression of major projects including Gateshead 
Conference and Exhibition Centre. 

 
 

 
 

Geographic Impact Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 
· there are high proportions of out of work benefits 

claimants particularly around the centre and 
towards the east of Gateshead in areas such as 
Bensham, Deckham, Felling and High Fell. 
However, there are also high proportions in areas 
further afield including Harlow Green East, 
Allerdene, Elisabethville and Chopwell North. 

· transport access to 42 key employment sites in 
the NE within 30 minutes is worst in the more rural 
West, Inner West and South, but is also an issue 
for those living along the B1288 Leam Lane 
corridor. 

 
 
 
 
 

Investment Strategy & 
Resources 

21/22 Revenue 
(1% of Council 
gross budget) 

5 Year 
Capital 

Gross  Net   
£000 £000 £000 

6,450  646 154,912 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees 137.38 FTE 
Figures based on 2022/23 budget setting 

 

Risks to Achievement rated after 
mitigation 

· Failure to attract inward 
investment and deliver 
sustainable economic growth 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-
attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information Amber 

· Failure to address financial gap in 
the Council’s budget & systems 
Amber 

 
 
 
 
 

CREATE THE CONDITIONS FOR FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND GOOD WORK FOR ALL 
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE  

P
age 21



 

Ensure a Healthy Standard of Living for All, in Accordance with International Law on Economic and Social Rights ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?   
What do we want to Achieve?  Our Outcomes 

· All working age residents receive a wage that considers the true cost of healthy living 
· Affordable childcare is accessible to those who need it 

 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 
Strategic 
· Thrive: over 2 percentage point increase in those 

vulnerable. Fewer people managing or just coping. 
· Cost of living crisis is having significant impact on some 

residents ability to thrive and sustain tenancies. 
· Gap in annual household income between highest and 

lowest areas of Gateshead is widening, now £28,302. Using 
LIoN 2022 data and CACI Household Income data for 2022 
- average household income: 

o 10% most in need areas = £26,031 
o 10% least in need areas = £54,333 

 
Operational 
· Rent collected from tenants as a % of rent due to date is 

reducing, from 99.23% at the previous 6-month stage, to 
97.42%. Tenants in receipt of Universal Credit tend to have 
much higher rent arrears than those on Housing Benefit or 
not in receipt of benefit. The number in receipt of Universal 
Credit increased from 5,733 to 6,440 during the year. 

· Direct debits have previously been a more stable source of 
rent income, but we have seen a large increase in direct 
debit failures 

· Since April, Citizens Advice Gateshead and Council 
Housing Services have seen a dramatic rise in queries 
around food banks and charitable support, debt 
assessment and fuel supply issues from this group. 

· The guidance and allocation of funding from DWP has not 
been timely which has meant that each local scheme has 
had to be set up very quickly.  

 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 
· Energy roadshows delivered in partnership between the council, CAG and others have 

supported circa 200 residents over several weeks. 
· Teams have worked well across the Council, Citizens Advice Gateshead and the voluntary 

and community sector 
 

Operational 
· 75 Warm Spaces registered in Gateshead 
· Recruited the Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-ordinator, and the Connector for Locality 

Working 
· Number of people/families helped through locality partnership support to maximise their 

household income has increased substantially, from 650 for 2021-22 to 1143 during the first 
6-months of 2022-23 

· There was quick allocation of funds through existing systems e.g., Free School Meals and 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme  

· Payments that could be cashed at the post office was used for the first time following the 
positive experience of implementing the £150 Energy Rebate Scheme.  

· The grants to the Food Network helped to target those households who would not necessarily 
access Council support. 

· Administration of the £1.832m fund on 24 May 2022 for the period up to 30 September 2022: 
o £811,390 was allocated to support children eligible for free school meals. Over 7,800 

vouchers to cover the May half term and the summer holidays (7 weeks) 
o £582,940 of payments were made to over 8,500 pensioner households identified 

through data from Revenues and Benefits (Local Council Tax Support data). There 
were also direct referrals for those older people who are “just coping”.  An additional 
1,406 payments made, amounting to £70,300. 

o 1,421 Vouchers were issued to a mixture of households and this amounted to 
£150,275 from referrals from Citizens Advice Gateshead, Schools, Councillors and 
Council Services e.g., Neighbourhood Management, Council Tax, Benefits, Social 
Care etc.   

ACTIONS 
 
Strategic 
· Developing a fuel poverty action 

plan for Gateshead, work in 
progress 

· Ongoing development of locality 
working, and work to identify the 
assets within the areas. 

· The new round of the Household 
Support Scheme will run from 1 
October to 31 March 2023 

 
 
Operational 
· The DWP Household Support Fund 

has been extended until 31 March 
2023, providing £1,836,629.95 of 
funding. Local Authorities have 
discretion on exactly how this 
funding is used within the scope 
set out in the DWP guidance. 

· The Council is currently 
considering options to provide 
additional support to our most 
vulnerable families over the festive 
period, possibly in the form of 
hampers or additional food 
vouchers. 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The cost-of-living crisis is already having a huge impact on residents household income and financial wellbeing, which is beginning to affect people’s 
standard of living and their ability to sustain tenancies. These issues are being experienced locally, regionally, and nationally due to several factors. The 
Council has been working well with residents and partners to support residents as much as possible as inequalities widen, the analysis highlights the efforts 
to support local people to increase their household income and manage the cost-of-living crisis. 
 
What will we be doing in response? 
The Council agreed a Motion on 21st July 2022 recognising that the increase in the cost of living constitutes an emergency for many. The DWP Household 
Support Fund has been extended until 31 March 2023 and we will deliver the scheme through a variety of routes including providing vouchers to 
households, making direct provision of food or goods, or issuing grants to third parties.  We are also considering ways to support the 227 properties within 
Council housing stock that we know are disconnected, particularly in circumstances that support maintaining connection and providing household support 
and addressing fuel poverty. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
It is anticipated that the cost-of-living crisis will continue to negatively impact on the standard of living for many residents, particularly those who are more 
vulnerable. We will continue to support residents through locality working and the distribution of the £1,836,629.95 funding. Rent collection is expected to 
remain a significant challenge and rent arrears / income will also be impacted upon because of the cost-of-living crisis. 
 

RESOURCES 
 
· Two of the Transformation Areas as part of the budget 

approach are Assets and Locality Working which will 
make better use of assets to help support people 
through local hubs with ongoing advice being critical to 
local people. 

· A further area is through the review of Economy & 
Business considering the new Economic Strategy 
outcomes, the approach to jobs and support to 
businesses which can help local people to improve their 
income and standard of living through employment. 3-
year plan with savings identified for each year. 

· The DWP Household Support Fund has been extended 
until 31 March 2023, providing £1,836,629.95 of funding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

· Individuals and families are supported to have the best possible financial well-being to access debt and 
social welfare advice to maximise household income and improve financial management skills 

 

P
age 22



 

Investment Strategy & Resources  
21/22 Revenue 8% 
of Council Budget 

5-Year 
Capital 

Gross Net  
£000 £000 £000 

49,775 596 TBC 
Commissioned spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees: FTE (tbc 22/23) 
 
Figures based on 2022/23 budget setting 
 
 

Risks to Achievement 
rated after mitigation 

· Failure to attract inward 
investment and deliver 
sustainable economic growth 
Amber 

· The Council is hit by a Cyber-
attack that compromises 
confidentiality, integrity & 
availability of information 
Amber 

· Failure to address financial 
gap in the Council’s budget & 
systems Amber  

 
 
 
 

ENSURE A HEALTHY STANDARD OF LIVING FOR ALL, IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL LAW ON ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL RIGHTS  
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUT PERFORMANCE– 

 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational 
Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

6991All working 
age residents 
receive a wage 
that considers 
the true cost of 
healthy living 
 
Individuals and 
families are 
supported to 
have the best 
possible 
financial well-
being to access 
debt and social 
welfare advice 
to maximise 
household 
income and 
improve 
financial 
management 
skills 
 
Affordable 
childcare is 
accessible to 
those who need 
it 

Intervention from 
Economic Strategy 
•Visitor Economy 
•Green Economy 
•Digital Economy 
•Local Economy 
(Community Wealth 
Building) 
e.g., Delivery of 
Gateshead Quays 
development 
including Conference 
and Exhibition Centre 
Gateshead Town 
Centre Regeneration 
Masterplan 
 
Locality working 
development 
 
Administration of 
grant funding to 
support low-income 
households 

Economic 
Strategy 
agreed and  
 
Quays and 
major 
projects 
progressing 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
developing 
building on 
hub work 
with pilot 
planned 
 
 
Funding 
allocated 
with further 
funds to be 
distributed 
in 2022/23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

All residents have the 
opportunity to thrive: 
% residents who are vulnerable 

39.5% 34.1% Reduce  

Number of people/ 
families helped through 
locality partnership 
support to maximise 
household income 

To be set 
when 

locality 
working 

established 

1,143 
To be 

set 
(22/23) 

Baseline 
to be set 

% residents who are just coping 29.5% 40% Tracking  

% residents who are managing 13.3% 15.9% Tracking  

Rent collected from 
tenants as a % of rent 
due in the financial year 

98.78% 
(2020/21) 97.42% 98% 

+/- 2%  

% residents who are thriving 17.7% 10% Increase  Households in Council 
Tax arrears 

6,991 
(Baseline 
2021/22) 

No 
update 

available 
Reduce Annual 

% of population income 
deprived (IMD)  

16.7% 
(2019) 

No new 
data Reduce No new 

data 

£ Gap in average household 
income between highest and 
lowest areas of need in 
Gateshead 

£27,043 
(2021) £28,302 Reduce  

No of domestic 
properties supplied by 
District Energy Scheme 

800 TBC 389 10,000 Annual 

Average number of 
days taken to process 
Housing Benefits claims 
and changes 

8.91 
(Sep 20) 

5.34 
(2021/22) Reduce  

Annual Households in Fuel Poverty (%) 15.1% 
(2019) 

14.2% 
(2020) Reduce  

Gap in life expectancy at birth 
male/female Inequality in life 
expectancy at birth for Males / 
Females 

10.7 (M)            
9.6 (F)           

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M) 
8.8 (F)                                                   

(2018-20) 
Tracking 

 

 
 Average days taken to 

process Council Tax 
support claims and 
changes 

13.98 
(Sep 20) 

7.6 
(2021/22) Reduce  

Annual 

 

 

Qualitative Impact 
· Behind the masks, Gateshead’s Covid 

stories, Gateshead Director of Public 
Health highlighted that, inequalities 
had worsened during the pandemic 
and that low-income households were 
particularly impacted. 

· Build on hub working success which 
has provided lessons and learning on 
supporting vulnerable local people in 
accessing the support they need 
including services and financial 
support. 

 
 

 
 

 

Geographic Impact 
Explore the data 

 
LIoN data shows… 

· there are clusters of areas with low income 
households (<£15k annually) in Teams, Felling 
and High Fell with other individual areas 
elsewhere. 

· many of the neighbourhoods that on average have 
high Council tax arrears are located in the urban 
centre of Gateshead. Areas slightly further afield 
include Beacon Lough East, Springwell Estate, 
Birtley, Barley Mow and Chopwell North. 

· many households in fuel poverty are in/around 
Felling and Deckham. Other areas are Bensham 
West, Springwell Estate, Elisabethville, Winlaton 
East, Bleach Green North and Chopwell South. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 23



 

RESOURCES 
 

· Budget reviews will address longer term challenges with a focus on 
delivering Council services differently and managing demand.  

· 30-year costed, affordable and sustainable HRA Business Plan 
approved by Cabinet and has a £3.5mefficiencies target built in for 
2022/2026. This includes capacity to deliver new affordable homes 
together with the objectives of the HRA Asset Strategy. 

· Demand for debt advice is increasing. Partnership activity underway 
with CAG. Demand for assistance with energy bills is also increasing. 

· Transition from Tyne and Wear Homes to Gateshead Home Choice 
requires a transfer of customer data (10,000+ application records) 
from the Tyne and Wear IT system to Gateshead’s system. 

· Ensure effective implementation and delivery of the Housing 
Improvement Plan. 

 
 
 
 

· Gateshead has clean air with low levels of pollution 
· Gateshead has low levels of crime and anti-social behaviour 
· Gateshead is carbon neutral by 2030 

 
 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Requests and referrals for advice and support with bills have increased. Targets for reduction in vacant property rent loss will not be achieved  
The challenge for community safety is the cost-of-living crisis. Increasing crime and ASB, more domestic-related incidents, potential for more drug-
related deaths as more and more individuals and families struggle to make ends meet. Then there’s also the exploitation side. There is the possibility 
that more organised groups could exploit individuals and communities (e.g., increased loan shark activity, vulnerable individuals being financially 
exploited, that sort of thing). 
What will we be doing in response? 
Over the next 18 months, our capacity, skill base, and responsiveness will increase so that we offer a much-improved repairs service for our tenants. 
Range of support measures for residents in relation to energy charges (see areas of excellence above). Actions are in place to recruit to vacant posts 
in Construction Services and to increase the number of vacant properties being repaired. Lettings teams are ready to advertise more properties. 
Feedback from members, residents and repairs is being used to support a bid submission to the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF); The 
triangulated data along with energy performance metrics have been used to identify properties where a SHDF bid could supplements HRA funding – 
interventions to improve the thermal efficiency of these properties would reduce the number of repairs, increase the affordability of the properties and 
ensure the long-term sustainability of both tenancies and the homes (bid will be submitted in November 2022, if successful works will be delivered 
2023-25). More vacant properties to be made ready to reduce vacant property rent loss and support applicants into new homes. The impact of the 
changes taking place right now will take some time before tenants see the full benefits.  
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
Community safety data suggests violence against the person and serious acquisitive crime have reduced. Overall crime is still lower than pre-
pandemic and ASB is approximately where expected, however, this is expected to change. 
 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
Strategic 
· Cost of living crisis is having significant impact on council tenants’ ability to thrive and sustain tenancies.  
· There has been an increase in the number of people in urgent housing need since April 2022. The current 

number of vacant properties has increased. There are plans in place to increase the numbers of properties 
available to let each week and reduce the numbers of voids in repairs. 

· The Tyne and Wear lettings scheme will be disbanded in the coming months and a new Gateshead system 
established. There are plans in place to manage the transition. The nature of the partnership with local 
Registered Providers of social housing under the new arrangements is in development. 
Operational 

· Recent events, including the Covid-19 pandemic, and the series of severe storms last winter, had 
increased demand for home repairs in Gateshead to an unprecedented level. 

· Construction Service (CS) are making sweeping changes to improve the level of customer service we offer. 
· Demand for debt advice is increasing & energy bill referrals is also increasing. 
· There are an increased number of urgent rehousing cases. 
· Management of the transition for the new lettings system  
· Public transport passenger journeys for 21/22 impacted by Covid 
· The latest summary contamination figure for FY2022/23 is a 15.22% contamination rate, which shows a 

marginal improvement and positive direction for travel. 
· The first quarter FY2022/23 recycling rate figure is 37.5% which shows a promising although no guarantee 

of a sustained improvement at this stage. 
· Anecdotal information suggests many crimes/incidents are going under-reported as some feel reporting is a 

waste of time as nothing will be done. 
· Target of 100,000 trees on Council land by 2030 and is achievable subject to unlocking the identified 

Council owned strategic woodland planting sites.  Issues currently with some of the identified sites being 
occupied by third parties (e.g., farmers) and there being no lease/licence agreement in place. The 
person(s) occupying the land can claim adverse possession owing to the length of time they have occupied 
the site. The other main challenge is around capacity however the Woodland Creation Accelerator Fund 
funded posts should go some way to addressing this. Must be mindful of the number of trees lost/removed 
by the Council – the 100,000 target should constitute a net increase against the number of standing trees 
on Council land at the time of the target being set. Last planting season we planted 15,500 trees at 
Whitehills, have since lost approx. half to drought and vandalism. All losses will be replaced this planting 
season and the next two planting seasons in line with the requirements of the funding agreement. 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 
· Assistance to tenants in response to 

rising energy bills, working in partnership 
with agencies such as 2 Way Tenancy 
Solutions. 

 
Operational 
· Construction Services have listened 

carefully to what our tenants had to say 
about their experiences in engaging with 
our repairs and maintenance service, and 
we are investing heavily in improving the 
service to meet their expectations 

· Emergency top ups for prepayment 
meters 

· Increased grant applications to have 
energy arrears reduced 

· Support for residents with prepayment 
meters with unexpected standing charges 

· Support for gas-capped residents 
· Focus on lettings to relieve pressure on 

B&B and temporary accommodation 
· Completion and occupation of 82 extra 

care apartments at Watergate Court 
Lobley Hill, enabling older people to live 
in good quality accommodation with some 
support where necessary to meet their 
needs. 

· Building new affordable homes for 
Gateshead residents at Whitley Court 
including new family homes and 
supported apartments and bungalows to 
enable individuals to live independently. 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· Ongoing contribution to council response to cost of living and 

energy bills 
· Move towards Gateshead Home Choice to replace Tyne & Wear 

Homes, end March 2023 
· Investigating the potential to convert council garages which are in 

poor repair and attracting anti-social behaviour into energy efficient 
bungalows. An ongoing review of the land and assets the Council 
holds, to maximise potential and where possible to develop new 
homes. 

Operational 
· CS aim to complete a repair, or multiple repairs, on the first visit to 

a home, particularly if they relate to the same trade. If CS can’t 
complete first time, we keep you the tenant updated until complete. 

· Out of hours, CS aim to complete a repair, rather than just make a 
home safe & have to return at a later date. 

· CS are piloting evening appointments 1 day per week. If 
successful, CS will add additional days. 

· CS have introduced a Customer Promise that sets out the standard 
of service customers can expect from CS & sub-contractors.  

· CS are increasing recruitment to make sure CS have sufficient staff 
with the right skills to deliver a customer focused service. 

· CS are investing in comprehensive ongoing staff training, with a 
focus on performance management. 

· Advice and support and referrals for tenants struggling to pay bills 
· Extraction of a Gateshead Housing Register from the Tyne and 

Wear register Nov/Dec 22. 
· The Community Safety Board is proposing a suite of measures to 

monitor to help understand the impact this is having on 
communities in Gateshead. Also, launching a domestic abuse 
campaign later this month, which aims to encourage more victims 
to come forward; we’re testing a new way of tackling anti-social 
behaviour and supporting both victims of ASB and those causing 
ASB so, where possible, we are resolving the issue at the first time 
of asking. 

 

       Create and Develop Healthy and Sustainable Communities and Places - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?         
What do we want to Achieve? – Our Outcomes 

· Local communities and social networks are strong 
· All residents have access to a high quality, affordable, warm and energy efficient home 
· All communities have access to good quality natural environment 

 

P
age 24



 Outcome Intervention On track DoT Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

Local 
communities 
and social 
networks are 
strong 
 
All residents 
have access to 
a high quality, 
affordable, 
warm and 
energy 
efficient home 
 
All 
communities 
have access to 
good quality 
natural 
environment 
 
Gateshead has 
clean air with 
low levels of 
pollution 
 
Gateshead has 
low levels of 
crime and anti-
social 
behaviour 
 
 
Gateshead is 
carbon neutral 
by 2030 
definitely 
 

· Support development of 
community activities - remove 
barriers to community 
participation & support people to 
be involved locally and develop 
Community Wealth Building. 
Completion of workstream on 
locality working. 

· Ensure provision of homes to 
meet current and future needs  

· Promote low carbon housing 
development and improve 
insulation to Council owned 
properties and install low carbon 
heat and energy where feasible 

· Improve and invest in the local 
environment and increase 
woodland coverage by 250ha by 
2050 

· Make Gateshead accessible to 
all, achieving a shift to 
sustainable forms of travel and 
increase Council use of low 
carbon vehicles  

· Support agile working by 
expanding use of digital tech, 
minimise paper & reduce the 
need for staff to travel 

· Promote community cohesion + 
prevention of crime & anti-social 
behaviour. 

· Take forward Climate Change 
Strategy 

· Continue to deliver low carbon 
heat and power via district 
heating networks 

· Identifying funding to assist with 
recycling & waste minimisation 
projects & implement behavioural 
change initiatives 

· Ensure goods & services 
procured by the Council are 
compatible with our Climate 
Emergency commitments 

Community 
wealth building 
progressing 
 
 
 
Closer to 
housing 
requirement but 
not yet at target 
 
 
Environment 
investment 
schemes 
delivered 
 
 
Electric feet 
vehicles on 
order but supply 
issues persist 
 
 
 
Consultation 
progressing 
District Heating 
Scheme 
progressing 
 
 
Commissioning 
Strategy 
implementation 
 

 % satisfaction with neighbourhood 
as a place to live 64% No new  

data Increase No 
data 

% of Council housing stock 
empty for 6 months 0.55% 0.54% Reduce  

No. of homes built against annual 
housing requirement 

301 
(2019/20) 373 Increase  

Annual 
Activity to support community 
capacity building Measure to be defined 2022/23 

% of new homes built that are 
affordable 

13.8% 
(2020/21) 18% Increase 

 
 

Annual 

No. of private dwellings identified 
as having a Category 1 hazard 
and No. had this hazard removed 

To be set 
at year 

end 
137 / 
87 0 

No new 
Data - 
Annual 

% of homes (remaining tenures) 
empty for 6 months or more 

2.3% 
(2019) 

No new 
data Reduce 

No 
data 

Annual 

% of Council commercial fleet 
operating on electricity 2% 5% Increase  

Gap in life expectancy at birth 
male/female: Slope index of 
inequality 

10.7 (M)          
9.6 (F) 

(2017-19) 

10.8 (M) 
 8.8 (F) 

(2018-20) 
Reduce  

Progress towards GMBC being 
carbon neutral by 2030 (% 
achieved as per annual audit 
external assessment) 

70% 75% 
100% 

Cumulati
ve 

 
Annual 

 

Number of homes with zero 
carbon heat source To be set No data To be set No 

data 

No of trees planted on Council 
land per annum towards target 0 

2,759 
Cumulat

ive 

100,000 
by 2030  

Annual 

% of Council homes that meet the 
Decent Homes Standard 

94.46% 
(2020/21) 

96.2% 
(2021/22) Increase  

Annual 

% repairs completed within 
timescales: 
Highways (within 10 days) 

71% 
(21/22) 

76% 
 

> 90% 
  

% of functional green space 
amenable to healthy lifestyles in 
the 25% most deprived wards  

Measure to be defined 2022/23 – based on 
Marmot 

% repairs completed within 
timescales: Streetlights (within 5 
days) 

91% 
(21/22) 96% > 90%  

Number of public transport 
passenger journeys in Gateshead 
(millions) 

26.749 
(2020/21) 

17.828 
(2021/22) Increase  

Annual 
Council emissions reduction from 
2008 baseline 

0% 
(2008) 63.6% 100%  

Annual 
Gateshead areas compliance with 
Local Air Quality Management 
Framework  

Compliant Compliant Compliant Annual % of the overall tonnage in 
recycled waste collected that is 
contaminated with non-
recyclable materials 

15.8% 
(20/21) 

15.22% 
(April-Sept 

22) 

13% 
Increase 
over 3 
years 

 % of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and composting 

32.3% 
(Jun 21) 

37.5% 
(April-Sept 

22)  

Towards 
50%  

 
Total recorded crime in 
Gateshead  

227.4 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released Reduce  

% of homes with SAP energy 
rating score above 65 64% 

62.75% 
(Local Auth 

90% 
Housing 

assoc. 72%. 
Owner-

occupied 
41%.                

Private rented 
48%) 

Increase  

Recorded instances to the police 
of violence against the person 

43.7 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released Reduce  

Serious acquisitive crime 
incidents (excluding shoplifting)  

4.8 per   
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

No data 
released Reduce  

Anti-social Behaviour (All 
incidents 

38.4 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

14.1 per 
1,000 pop 
(April-Sept 

22) 
Reduce 

 
Anti-social Behaviour (All 
incidents NOT youth related  

40.1 per 
1,000 pop 
(2021/22) 

13.5 per 
1,000 pop 

April-Sept 22 
Reduce 

 
 Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 

· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & 
systems Amber 

· Failure to provide a response during major incident impact 
on ability to deliver critical services or impact on a 
community. Green 

· The implications of EU Exit potentially affecting availability 
of resources to deliver services which may impact on 
communities Amber 

· Failure to manage demand/expectations could result in the 
Council not achieving its Thrive agenda Amber 

 
 

Geographic Impact  Explore the data 
LIoN data shows… 

· there is high housing turnover in and around the centre of Gateshead. 
Outside of that Blaydon also shows significantly high turnover rates. 

· many of the areas with high victims of crime rates are central, within 
Bensham, Deckham and Felling, and also within High Fell and the 
Chowdene area. 

· housing is generally less affordable in the most in need areas of 
Gateshead, although there are some exceptions such as Glebe West and 
Barley Mow. 

· Although access to usable open space may be seen as an issue for built 
up areas, it can affect rural areas such as Crawcrook South. 

 
 

Qualitative Impact 
· Director of Public Health Annual report 

“Behind the Mask” identified the 
importance of good public space and 
homes to health and wellbeing and mental 
health.   

· The report highlighted how communities 
came together more during the pandemic 
strengthening local areas and people 
found new meaning in volunteering. 

Investment Strategy & Resources 
(25% of Council gross budget) 

22/23 Revenue  
5 Year 
Capital 

Gross Net  
£000 £000 £000 

158,815 28,236 113,672 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees 1206.46 FTE Figures based 
on 2022/23 budget setting 
 

CREATE AND DEVELOP HEALTHY AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND PLACES  
                       WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25



 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
 

Strategic  
· Significant service disruption / distraction remains post-

pandemic. Several measures were not collected during the 
pandemic while some activities were stopped due to the need 
to social distance as well as prioritise public health resource to 
tackle the pandemic while the impact is showing an increase in 
equalities – DoPH Annual report “Behind the masks, 
Gateshead’s Covid stories, Gateshead Director of Public Health 
Annual Report 2021/22”. 

· Actions as set out for each of the 4 aims within New 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy. 

· Delivery of the Homelessness and Allocations Review (March 
2023). 
Social care focus on supporting the most vulnerable during the 
pandemic. 

Operational 
· Lack of suitable or appropriate accommodation and support 

for those who are homeless or at risk of homelessness 
· Lack of direct access into appropriate emergency and crisis 

accommodation. 
· No existing ‘Gateway’ model to access accommodation and 

support We have a manual spreadsheet to manage currently.  
 
 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 
· Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy agreed by Cabinet January 2022. 
· Homelessness Charter formally launched March 2022. 
· Implementation of Changing Futures Programme has begun Campbell Tickell contracted for 

Homelessness and Allocations Review. Joint cross department Project Team Meetings 
established.  

· Bids successful for RSI and RSAP funding and funding allocated to Home Group to improve 
response for victims of domestic abuse. 

· Supported Housing Improvement Programme (SHIP) funding bid submitted. 
Operational 
· Implementation of homelessness prototype via the Changing Futures Programme.  
· Proactive approach to homelessness prevention beyond statutory requirement. 
· Partnership working established linked to homeless pathway for offenders and ex-offenders. 
· Strong partnership arrangements with Oasis Community Housing in supporting those at risk of 

homelessness and rough sleeping with multiple or complex needs; including health offer 
improving access to health care for rough sleepers/those at risk of rough sleeping (nurse 
practitioner post in Basis and part funded Mental Health worker with Mental Health Matters). 

· Implementation of fortnightly rough sleeper action group, which is multi-agency 
coordination/case management including health partners. 

· Delivery of private rented sector funded project supporting ex-offenders with accommodation. 
· Delivery of existing RSI and NSAP funded accommodation programmes. 
· Winter Flu Vaccination Programme & successful approaches to deliver Covid-19 vaccines with 

our partners. 
 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· Implementation of actions outlined in new Strategy, 

which sets out our four key strategic aims to tackle 
homelessness. 

· Completing actions within our Homelessness and 
Allocations Project Plan, including remodelling and 
recommissioning homelessness accommodation plus 
supporting and developing a Homelessness Gateway. 

· Implementation of the Changing Futures Programme. 
· Respond to the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to 

identify short and long-term impacts – DoPH Annual 
Report. 

· Ongoing development of Locality Working. 
Operational 
· Work together to remodel and recommission provision 

and develop a Gateway model.  
· Continue to embed and develop partnership working. 
· Further develop homeless prototype approach linked to 

implementation of Changing Futures programme. 
· New Mosaic Social Care System being developed for 

Adult Social Care and now due to be live in Q4 2022/23. 
This will help to streamline processes and payments 
improving the service to social care users and carers. 

 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
The pandemic had a significant impact on the ability to deliver services, with some being disrupted, ceased or reduced in order to direct 
resources to dealing with the pandemic. Post pandemic, there is significant demand on homelessness services; the new strategy will 
support the service and partner agencies to respond to all the needs of those facing homelessness and rough sleeping in addressing 
the underlying causes of homelessness and provide appropriate accommodation and support. Ill health prevention by its nature considers 
the longer-term impacts of health and tackling issues that can result in poorer outcomes over the course of a lifetime. This means it can 
take a while for changes at population level to be seen. The pandemic response has had to be prioritised with resources being diverted 
to support this.   
 
What will we be doing in response? 
Delivering on the 4 key aims and associated actions within the new Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, which include 
remodelling and recommissioning accommodation and support as well as developing a gateway to support any new model. This will be 
delivered in 22/23 through the Homelessness & Allocations Review.  
We are still responding meaning the full impact in the longer terms still needs to be determined. A key area will be focusing on the 
response and recovery from the pandemic, focusing on ill health prevention. Ongoing development of locality working; recruited the 
Strategic Locality Lead, the Co-ordinator, and the Connector  - working to identify the assets within the areas. 
 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months   
A new Allocations Policy and a new Tenancy Strategy have been created as part of the Homelessness and Allocations Review and will 
go to Cabinet for approval in October 2023. We are also developing a Gateshead Allocations Model, undertaking homelessness 
remodelling/recommissioning and developing a ‘marketplace’ and ‘homelessness gateway’ (by March 23).  
Responding to the pandemic will be a focus in the short term over the next 6 months along with understanding the longer-term impacts. 
 

Ill Health Prevention - ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?  
What do we want to Achieve – Our Outcomes 

· All preventable ill health is reduced, to end the gap in inequalities within the borough 
· To prevent and end homelessness, in all forms in Gateshead  

RESOURCES 
· Earlier intervention can help to reduce health inequalities faced in later life and improve 

health and wellbeing outcomes, which can help to reduce demand for services. 
Gateshead Council is one of ten local authorities to receive £5m over 5 years to 
increase capability and capacity for research into  health inequalities  

· Two of the Priority Based Transformation Areas as part of the budget approach are 
Adults Social Care and Housing Improvement which will directly inform this priority 
objective.   

· Locality Working to be piloted, short term will support early intervention with longer 
term goal of improving life chances and reducing dependence on council services. 

· Homelessness funding subject to annual grant allocations makes long term investment 
decisions difficult £0.5m 2021/22 and confirmed as same for 2022/23. Consultation 
ongoing regarding Homeless Prevention Grant (HPG), further details to be provided. 
During the pandemic specific additional funding has been provided to ensure we can 
meet our obligations £0.080m 2020/21, 2021/22 £0.239m. 

· Successful funding bid for accommodation for ex-offenders totalled £66,707.  
· Rough Sleeping Initiative Funding (RSI) funding secured to 2025 (joint bid with South 

Tyneside). Gateshead allocation is £1.85m over three years.  
· RSAP funding secured to 2024, to deliver 4 units (in partnership with Tyne Housing) 

with support for rough sleepers with complex needs. This is additional to the 15 
properties already provided through previous successful funding bids. 

 

· All residents will be able to access flexible health and care support, when and where they need it 
 

P
age 26



 

Qualitative Impact 
· People living in the most deprived areas of England have seen a 

significant recent decrease in life expectancy (LE). The upcoming new 
data release will include the period of COVID and indicate the impact 
of this period on LE.  

• Areas with higher deprivation also have larger differences in LE 
between males & females than areas with lower deprivation 
(difference most deprived females to males 4.8yrs, compared to 3.1yrs 
least deprived). 

· Females living in most deprived areas expected to live less than two-
thirds (66.3%) of their lives in good general health (three-quarters for 
males), compared with 82.0% in least deprived areas.  

 
 

 

Investment Strategy & 
Resources 

22/23 Revenue (4% 
of the Council’s 
gross budget) 

5 Year 
Capital 

Gross  Net   
£000 £000 £000 

23,425 15,282 835 
Commissioned Spend: tbc 
Assets: Asset Strategy Review 
Employees: 263.23 FTE (tbc)  
Figures based on 2022/23 budget 
setting 

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation 
· Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber 
· Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in 

prosecution & penalties Amber 
· Council suffers Cyber-attack that compromises 

confidentiality, integrity & availability of information Amber 
· Failure to manage demand & expectations could result in 

the Council not achieving Thrive agenda Amber 
· Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & 

systems Amber 
· Failure to provide a response during a major incident 

impacting on ability to deliver critical services or an impact 
on a community. Green 

 
 

Outcome Intervention On track DoT    Strategic Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational 
Performance Baseline Latest Target DoT 

All 
preventable 
ill health is 
reduced, to 
end the gap 
in 
inequalities 
within the 
borough 
 
No-one will 
be homeless 
or living in 
accommodat
ion that does 
not provide a 
safe and 
healthy 
environment 
 
 
 
All residents 
will be able 
to access 
flexible 
health and 
care support, 
when and 
where they 
need it 

Develop and 
implement 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Review  
 
Accelerate 
preventative 
programmes;  
 
Deliver 
Community 
Based 
approaches as 
a core principle;  
 
Learn lessons 
from the 
pandemic;  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Embed health 
inequalities 
within, wider 
public services 
& recovery 
plans 
 
ASC 
interventions 
And ASC 
Budget 
implementation 
 

Health and 
Wellbeing 
review 
progressing 
 
 
 
 
Locality 
working 
approach 
developing 
building on 
hubs 
 
Lessons 
being 
learned and 
impact being 
understood 
 
 
 
 
Approach 
being 
developed 
including 
delivery of 
Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy 
with partners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Gap in life expectancy at birth male/female: Slope 
index of inequality (Annual) 

10.7 (M) 
9.6 (F)             

2017-19 

 
10.8 (M)                
8.8 (F)                                                   

2018-20 
 

Tracking 
 

 

Population vaccination 
coverage - Flu (aged 
65+) 
Compared to England 
rate as baseline 

80.9 
(England 
2019/20) 

83.5 
(2020/21) Increase  

Annual 
 

Estimated smoking prevalence Cardiovascular 
Disease Compared to England average as 
baseline 

15.9%       
(England    
2020/21) 

16.9% 
(Newcastle/ 

Gateshead ICG 
2020/21) 

Reduce from 
17.5%          
(19/20)  

 
Annual 

Age standardised 
mortality rate for deaths 
related to drug misuse - 
persons by local 
authority 

28                    
(2019) 

26                              
(2021) Reduce  

Annual 

Suicide rate Public Health Profiles 
Compared to England rate as baseline 

10.4 
(England  
2018-20) 

 
9.6 

(England      
2019-21) 

 

Reduce  
Annual 

Chlamydia detection 
rate / 100,000 aged 15 
to 24 Compared to 
England rate as 
baseline 

1,408 
(England 

2020) 

1,334                             
(2021) Reduce  

Annual 

Admission episodes for alcohol-specific 
conditions - Under 18s Compared to England rate 
as baseline 

239.3 per 100,000    
(England     
2017/18-     
2019/20) 

50.8 per  100,000 
(2018/19 - 
2020/21) 

Reduce  
Annual 

The proportion of older 
people (aged 65 and 
over) who were still at 
home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital 
into reablement/ 
rehabilitation services 

 
 

77.97% 
2020/21 

(provisional) 

77.4%   
(22/23)      

(Sep Q2) 
Increase  

Annual 

Under 75 mortality rate - Cancer considered 
preventable 
Compared to England rate as baseline 

51.5             
(England          

2020) 

76.7              
(latest data    

2020) 
Reduce  

Annual 

% of clients using 
technology assisted 
care 

Reporting to be developed during 2022/23 
when Mosaic system goes live 

Total households assessed who are owed a duty, 
who were sleeping rough at the time of 
application 

35 8 Reduce  
Total households 
initially assessed as 
owed a homeless duty 

824 
(2020/21 
baseline 

used) 

729 
households 
assessed - 

721  

To be 
set  

(A) % of households where homeless prevention 
duty ended that maintained / secured 
accommodation for 6+mths. 

(B) % of these identified maintained/secured 
accommodation that remained in existing 
accommodation. 

(A) 54%      
                                                                                                                                                                                

(B) 15%        
remained in existing  

accommodation 

(A) 52% 
 

(B) 21%    
remained in 

existing 
accommodation 

2020/21  
data used 

to formulate 
baseline 

 
 
 

 

% of council dwellings 
with a valid gas safety 
certificate 

99.80% 99.9% 100%  
Annual 

Person shaped measures used in locality working 
TBC Baseline to be set at end  of Year 1 TBC 2022/23 data to be used to formulate 

 

Geographic Impact 
Explore the data - LIoN data shows… 
· High levels of alcohol related hospital admissions 

are evident in many of the most in need areas of 
Gateshead. However, there are also large 
proportions of higher risk drinkers in least in need 
areas such as Stella, Crawcrook South, Sunniside, 
Whitehills, Low Fell East, and Wardley Central. 

· neighbourhoods with high densities of obesity are 
spread out across Gateshead. 

· smokers are more likely to be towards the east of 
Gateshead in areas like Deckham, Felling, and 
High Fell. Other areas include Allerdene, Harlow 
Green, Elisabethville, and Winlaton East. 

 
 
 

STRENGTHEN THE ROLE AND IMPACT OF ILL HEALTH PREVENTION 
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES AND OUR PERFORMANCE 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 27



ORGANISATIONAL HEALTHCHECK – BALANCED SCORECARD – SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACTIONS 
Strategic 
· Employee survey to be undertaken, hopefully during 2023 subject to budget 

approval for this. Also looking at a framework of engagement activity which will 
cover all employees; this is likely to include a combination of frontline visits, 
virtual focus groups and 15- to-1 sessions with leaders within the organisation. 
Recently recruited a Senior Communications & Engagement Officer to oversee 
internal communications, propose new ways of working, consult and develop 
engagement activity and repurpose the current offer based upon this. This role 
will work closely with Human Resources and Workforce development. 
Several actions identified to address root causes that are driving recruitment 
and retention problems across the Council are subject to the budget review, as 
resourcing of this activity will impact upon delivery. The actions identified are 
those within the Workforce Strategy. 

· Leavers and stayers interviews have been designed. Roll out of a new format 
and collation of data is the next step of the process. 

· Progress and delivery of fundamental budget reviews and Transformational 
Budget. 

· HR are continuing to work closely with managers to manage attendance in 
relation to both short & long-term absence, including increased referrals to 
Occupational Health. Additional training is also being delivered to managers 
where this would be beneficial. 

· Looking at number of corporate workstreams, including the budget consultation 
framework, with a view to making this accessible to all. 

· Actions to build understanding of the impact of the cost of living, including debt, 
crisis are included in a separate report on Welfare Support.   

Operational 
· Support Gateshead businesses to respond to tendering opportunities to help 

increase the amount of local spend through Council contracts. 
· The Council is working on a 'borough-wide' survey for residents, which it is 

hoped will be issued in 2023. 
· Work is ongoing to improve the uniformity of how call handling is managed 

across the Council. The new telephony system will provide an opportunity to 
re-baseline this measure. 

· Agree and take forward approach to consultation with communities to 
understand view of their area and Council services. 

 

CHALLENGES / AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT 
Strategic 
· The Councils percentage staff turnover 2021/22 was 12.74%. This is lower than 

the national average and lower than the average for public sector organisations, 
which had a labour turnover rate of 15.6%.  While the highest number of leavers 
is due to resignation, the Council currently do not and have not, to date, the ability 
to capture the reason for the resignation.  

· Challenges of delivering the Medium-Term Financial Strategy budget gap and 
delivering intervention to enable people in Gateshead to Thrive. 

· Continue to ensure adequate assurance coverage of key risks as Council 
processes change to reflect different ways of working, objectives and reducing 
funding envelopes. 

· Embed and fully exploit the capabilities provided by the Fraud Data Sharing Hub 
in conjunction with Durham and Newcastle Councils, which is due to go live in 
the coming months. 

· Sickness absence days per FTE has increased from 10.58 baseline in July 2021, 
to 11.3 at 21/22 6-month stage, to 12.32 days for the period from 1 April 2021 to 
31 March 2022. 

· Regulator of Social Housing Consumer Standards compliance is continually 
progressing.  The result will show Progressing until we fully complete all 
outstanding actions & total compliance with the Regulatory Standards is met. 
Work is ongoing with regular reporting and monitoring taking place. 

· There has been an increase in the number of corporate complaints upheld after 
Chief Executive review. Of the 25 Reviews of Corporate Complaints undertaken 
to date, 6 (24%) were upheld and 19 (76%) were not upheld. 

· There were 5 final decisions made by the Ombudsman following the investigation 
of complaints against the Council. 3 were not upheld and 2 were upheld with the 
Council required to pay compensation. 

Operational 
· A dip in performance in Adult Social Care and Housing telephony contact 

response has been due to a combination of lack of available resource and high 
demand - which is being addressed. 

 

AREAS OF EXCELLENCE 
Strategic 
· There have been two senior manager conferences held 

in the past six months.  These sessions provide are an 
opportunity for senior leaders within the organisation to 
gather to discuss organisational challenges, share future 
ways of working and cascade corporate updates. A series 
of sessions have now been established over the next 12 
months 

· Online payments continue to increase due to general 
trend and impact of coronavirus.   

· There is a steady increase in the proportion of 
transactions. 

· The Council is supporting people who find it difficult to 
access online services.  

· Delivery of the Audit Work Programme agreed with the 
Audit & Standards Committee all within Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. 

· Adequate achievement of the audit plan to inform the 
Chief Internal Auditors annual opinion to support the 
Annual Governance Assurance Process. 

· The volume of compliments received about the council 
has increased by around 30%. 

Operational 
· Employees are being encouraged to report health & 

safety near misses, so the increase is positive and means 
higher reporting can lead to identification of particular 
issues and improvements meaning a safer workplace.  

· Average telephony contact response rate has remained 
stable at 86%. 

· The volume of compliments continues to increase, from 
78 at the previous 6-month stage, to 131. 

 

WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE – OUR OUTCOMES 
Employees 
Ø Employee satisfaction – Gateshead Council a great place to work 
Ø Diverse & inclusive workforce 
Ø Maximising Employee Potential – opportunities to learn, develop and aid succession planning 
Finance, Governance & Risk 
Ø Revenue Budget, Capital Budget; HRA; Income received, Risk 

SUMMARY  
What is this telling us about how we are performing across Gateshead? 
Performance has continued to be impacted by the lasting effects of the pandemic. While the expansion of the digital customer experience continues to progress, 
recruitment and retention issues continue to pose a challenge for the Council. Self-serve digital interaction with the Council is growing but customer contact via 
telephone remains high. This is despite the introduction of avenues to work more seamlessly with other support providers, such as direct access to Citizens Advice 
Gateshead, in order to provide better support to residents. 
What will we be doing in response? 
Our approach to continual improvement in the employee experience (i.e. ‘What it feels like to work for Gateshead Council’) ‘’, resulting in Gateshead being a great 
place to work, are subject to the culture at the Council and improving all factors of the employee life cycle, which includes, but is not limited to: how we attract and 
recruit; how we onboard, induct and help people settle in; what we pay; how we recognise and reward people; what benefits we provide for employees; the 
systems we operate to enable our employees and managers; what opportunity there is for personal growth etc. The Workforce Strategy and Plan outlines the 
areas of work needed to deliver against the outcomes in the performance management framework aimed at making Gateshead a great place to work. However, 
it should be noted that the resourcing of the delivery of the Strategy and Plan to achieve the outcomes sought is subject to the budget review. 
Future Direction of Travel and Expectations over the next six months 
Workforce Strategy and improvements to recruitment and retention should help to address current workforce issues. It is anticipated that widening inequalities 
and the cost-of-living crisis will impact further impact on resident’s wellbeing; a borough-wide survey is in development. 

RESOURCES 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy was reported to Cabinet on 
25 October. The MTFS estimates a £55m financial gap over the medium 
term, a worsening position due to significant pressures manifesting over the 
last six to twelve months in inflation, pay, utilities and cost of living. Although 
the financial context continues to be challenging and uncertain the Council 
has a strong track record of meeting its financial obligations and maintaining 
financial sustainability through delivery within budget. A Council wide 
approach to the budget, which is priority driven and over a medium-term 
planning horizon will ensure that this continues to be the case. 

Customer Experience 
Ø Thrive – reduce the number of residents vulnerable or just coping 
Ø Resident’s satisfaction with Gateshead and Gateshead Council 
Ø Improved customer experience through better contact with the Council (right first time 
External Assessment 
Ø External Audit; Regulators Assessment (Ofsted, CQC, Housing); Compliance; Partners 
 

P
age 28



 

ORGANISATIONAL HEALTHCHECK – BALANCED SCORECARD – SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE 
Ø Thrive – reduce the number of residents vulnerable 
Ø Resident’s satisfaction with Gateshead and Gateshead Council 
Ø Improved customer experience through better contact with the Council (right first time) 

 Baseline Latest Target DoT 
% residents satisfied with Gateshead as a place to live 
 

64%        
(2016) 

64%          
(2018) None set  

% satisfied with the Council  
52%        

(2016) 
42%          

(2018) None set  
% residents who are vulnerable 39.5% 34.1% Reduce  

% residents who are just coping 29.5% 40.0% None set - 
% residents who are managing 13.3% 15.9% None set - 
% residents who are thriving 17.7% 10% Increase  
% of stage 3 corporate complaints upheld 15%        

(2021) 
24% (6/25) 

(Apr-Sep 22) 10%   
% of complaints upheld by the LG Ombudsman 
 

12%        
(2020) 

40% (2/5) 
(Apr-Sept 22) 10%   

No of complaints upheld by the ICO 
 

1 0 1   

No of compliments received about Council services 78           
(2021) 

131 
(Apr-Sept 22) None set  

Digital Customer Experience % of transactions completed 
online for Garden Waste; Birth/Deaths; Fly-tipping 76% 84% Increase  

Number / £ of online payments 98,961 / 
£12.5m 

104,583 / 
£14.17m       

(Apr-Sep 22) 
Increase  

Telephony contact response answer rate (Average of 
Customer Contact Unit; Revs & Bens; Housing; Adult 
Social Care Direct) 

86%    
(2021) 82% Increase  

Key Tolerance Key 

Achieving or exceeding target 
 

Underachieving within tolerance% if set 
 

Underachieving over tolerance 
 

EMPLOYEES 
Ø Employee satisfaction – Gateshead Council a great place to work 
Ø Diverse & inclusive workforce 
Ø Maximising Employee Potential – opportunities to learn, develop and aid succession planning 

 Baseline Latest Target DoT 
Employee survey – The Council is a good place to 
work (new measure in future on employee morale and Covid-19 
impact) 

64%                   
(2016) 

73%    
(2018) 90%   

No. of apprentices as a % of total employee 
headcount (as @ 31 March) 

3.29% 
(Mar 21) 

2.91% 
(Mar 22) 6.5%  

% Apprenticeship levy spent (incl transfers) – 
towards March 2023 50% 51%       

(Mar 22) 
70%        

by 2023  

No. of Employee resignations as % of headcount 3.04% 
Jul 21 

12.74% 
(Apr 21-Mar 

22) 
2.50%  

Average Sickness Absence days per FTE 10.58 12.32 days 
(Mar 22) 9 days  

Agency worker costs £1.412m £2.491m 
(Mar 22) None set  

% employees completed GDPR training 0% 62.64% 
(Oct 22) 

95% 
(2023/24)  

% employees reporting their protected 
characteristics  

35% 
Mar 2021 

55% 
(Mar 22) 

70% by 
2023  

     
 

 
FINANCE, GOVERNANCE & RISK 

Ø Revenue Budget, Capital Budget; HRA; Income received, Risk 
 Baseline Latest Target DoT 

Revenue Budget position % over/ under  0.11% over 
(Q3) 

2.11% over 
(Q2) -  

In-Year 2021/22 budget savings £8.1m delivered 97.5% 
 6-month 

97.5% 
Year-end 90%   

Capital Programme Position £ Outturn - £97.140m 
est. outturn  

- 

% Council spend with Gateshead based organisations 
To be set 
(14.5% for 
2021/22) 

15.82% Increase  

% Invoices paid within 30 days 87.32%  
(2021) 74.99% 95%  

% Council Tax collected 94.1%  
(20/21) 

52.4% 
(cumulative) Increase  

% Business Rates collected 88.4%  
(20/21) 

53.9% 
(cumulative) Increase  

Financial Assessments and social care finance - % of 
debt in year collected 

92.89%  
(20/21) 91.04% Increase  

Value of Services provided by the Council to schools £11.2m £12.2m   
No of serious data breaches reported to ICO 0  

(20/21) 2   

Health and Safety near miss / hazard reports 116 / 45% of 
near misses 

116 of 362 
(32%) Increase     

Audit High Priority Recommendations made and 
those outstanding 

28 
0 

3 
0   

 
 

 
EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT 

External Audit; Regulators Assessment (Ofsted, CQC, Housing); Compliance; Partners  
 Baseline Latest Target DoT 
CQC Council Registered Schemes (11 
total) Good Good  

(2022)   

Ofsted Learning Skills Good Good   

Ofsted Children’s Social Care Services Good Good   

Ofsted SEND (Narrative assessment) 
Significant 

strengths. No areas 
for priority action 

Strong & effective 
support provided   

External Audit (Mazars) Unqualified Unqualified  
(2021)   

Regulator of Social Housing Consumer 
Standards  - 

Compliant – 5 
Progressing – 3 

Noncompliant – 2 
  

HSE Enforcement Actions 0  
(2021) 1 FFI   

Council working in partnership (Survey 
VCS; Private and Public sector partners) Baseline to be set No update - - 

 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Performance 
Management & 
Improvement 
Framework

P
age 31



Performance management is used by Gateshead 
Council to understand what it is doing well and 
where it needs to improve. As well as involving 
performance measurement systems, processes 
and analysis, performance management is about 
managing resources, people, and the way people 
within the Council work together.

The Council’s Performance Management & 
Improvement Framework (PMIF) is based on our 
strategic approach, Thrive, which focuses on tackling 
inequalities. It comprises a Corporate Framework that 
sets out performance against Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy outcomes and incorporates an organisational 
‘health-check’ Balanced Scorecard. The framework has 
a clear focus on priorities, delivery, measurement, and 
analysis of impact.

The purpose of the PMIF is to: 

• Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities

• Ensure that the Council’s resources are being deployed effectively

• Inform both short and long-term effective decisions, and the Council’s approach to resource allocation and budget setting

• Support a whole-systems approach - embedded in our partnership working to deliver the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

P
age 32



Give every child the 
best start to life

PO1

Enable all young 
people and adults 
to maximise their 

capabilities and have 
control over  

their lives

PO2
Create the 

conditions for fair 
employment and 
good work for all

PO3
Create and 

develop healthy 
and sustainable 

communities and 
places

PO5

Strengthen the role 
and impact of ill health 

prevention

PO6
Ensure a healthy 

standard of living 
for all, in accordance 

with international law 
on economic  

and social rights

PO4

The PMIF is framed around the six policy objectives (PO)  
of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy:

The framework also includes a Balanced Scorecard.

The purpose the new PMIF is to: 

•  Enable the Council to know whether it is achieving its priorities

•  Ensure that the Council’s resources are being deployed effectively

•  Make both short and long-term effective decisions

•  Support a whole systems approach - embedded in our partnership working 
to deliver the Health & Wellbeing Strategy.

P
age 33



PO1
Give every child the best start 
to life

Outcomes:
The circumstances which result in adverse childhood 
experiences are prevented

Parents can access support proportionate to meet their 
needs, to be the best parents they can be

All children start school ready to learn

All permanent school exclusions are prevented

Interventions:
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Strategy

Support our schools to deliver an effective curriculum that 
addresses the skills required for later life and supports 
emotional well-being 

C&F Early Help Strategy - providing support to families 
when a need is identified or as soon as a problem emerges, 
at any point in a child

Focus on supporting confident, positive, and resilient 
parenting, to those who most need our support

Reducing the Number of Children in Care Strategy 
Interventions:

• Keep families together safely

•  A culture that works with safe uncertainty and supports 
social workers across services in their work with edge of 
care families

• Achieve permanency quickly

•  Develop enough and affordable high quality placement 
options

Increase the focus of existing expenditure on early years to 
reduce inequalities in early development

Ensure maternity services, parenting programmes, 
childcare and early year’s education are of high quality and 
meet needs of all groups

Build resilience and well-being of all children and young 
people

P
age 34



Enable all young people 
and adults to maximise their 
capabilities and have control 
over their lives

Outcomes:
All young people are resilient, with good physical and 
mental health and wellbeing

All young people are ready and appropriately skilled for the 
workplace

Gateshead is a positive place in which everyone’s mental 
health and wellbeing can flourish

Everyone is able to be an active part of their community and 
feel connected to communities and networks

All domestic abuse is prevented

Interventions:
Prioritise creating the conditions for people to enjoy 
positive emotional health & well-being.

Support our schools to deliver an effective curriculum 
that addresses skills required for later life and supports 
emotional well-being 

Implement Economic Strategy

Research commissioned into wellbeing of children and 
young people

Health and wellbeing intervention 

Delivery of Health & Wellbeing review

Support people through locality case working, even not 
eligible for statutory services but who require support

Ensure views & opinions of local people are represented in 
all aspects of our work

Prioritise preventing &reducing scale & impact of violence 
& domestic abuse

PO2

P
age 35



Create the conditions for fair 
employment and good work 
for all

Outcomes:
All working age residents have access to good quality, 
sustainable work with decent pay and conditions

All people in low paid, low skilled jobs have opportunities 
to improve their skills base so they can more easily achieve 
personal progression and attain an improved standard of 
living

Interventions:
Implementation of Gateshead’s Economic Strategy:

• Visitor Economy

• Green Economy

• Digital Economy

• Local Economy (Community Wealth Building)

Delivery of Gateshead Quays development including 
Conference and Exhibition Centre

Gateshead Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan

Helping people into work from direct 1:1 support in their 
own localities

PO3

P
age 36



PO4
Ensure a healthy standard of 
living for all, in accordance 
with international law on 
economic and social rights

Outcomes:
All working age residents receive a wage that considers the 
true cost of healthy living

Individuals and families are supported to have the best 
possible financial well-being to access debt and social 
welfare advice to maximise household income and improve 
financial management skills

Affordable childcare is accessible to those who need it

Interventions:
Intervention from Economic Strategy:

• Visitor Economy

• Green Economy

• Digital Economy

• Local Economy (Community Wealth Building)

Delivery of Gateshead Quays development including 
Conference and Exhibition Centre

Gateshead Town Centre Regeneration Masterplan

Locality working development

Administration of grant funding to support low-income 
households

P
age 37



PO5
Create and develop healthy 
and sustainable communities 
and places

Outcomes:
Local communities and social networks are strong

All residents have access to a high quality, affordable, warm 
and energy efficient home

All communities have access to good quality natural 
environment

Gateshead has clean air with low levels of pollution

Gateshead has low levels of crime and anti-social behaviour

Gateshead is carbon neutral by 2030

Interventions:
Support development of community activities - remove 
barriers to community participation & support people to be 
involved locally and develop Community Wealth Building. 
Completion of workstream on locality working

Ensure provision of homes to meet current and future needs 

Promote low carbon housing development and improve 
insulation to Council owned properties and install low 
carbon heat and energy where feasible

Improve and invest in the local environment and increase 
woodland coverage by 250ha by 2050

Make Gateshead accessible to all, achieving a shift to 
sustainable forms of travel and increase Council use of low 
carbon vehicles 

Support agile working by expanding use of digital 
technology, minimise paper and reduce the need for staff to 
travel

Promote community cohesion and prevention of crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

Take forward Climate Change Strategy

Continue to deliver low carbon heat and power via district 
heating networks

Identifying funding to assist with recycling and waste 
minimisation projects and implement behavioural change 
initiatives

Ensure goods and services procured by the Council are 
compatible with our Climate Emergency commitments

P
age 38



Strengthen the role and impact 
of ill health prevention

Outcomes:
All preventable ill health is reduced, to end the gap in 
inequalities within the borough

No-one will be homeless or living in accommodation that 
does not provide a safe and healthy environment

All residents will be able to access flexible health and care 
support, when and where they need it

Interventions:
Develop and implement Health and Wellbeing Review 

Accelerate preventative programmes

Deliver Community Based approaches as a core principle

Learn lessons from the pandemic

Embed health inequalities within, wider public services & 
recovery plans

PO6

P
age 39



BALANCED 
SCORECARD
The Balanced Scorecard focuses on the internal health of the Council 
as an organisation and considers four areas: 

• Employees

• Customer experience

• Finance, governance & risk

• External assessment 

Performance measures have been identified within each of these 
thematic areas, which further supports the assessment of how the 
Council is performing. The Balanced Scorecard support the Council 
to ensure that the organisation is in the best position to deliver on its 
priorities.

For more information about Performance Management 

Contact the Commercialisation and Improvement Team on 
0792 606 5409 or 0792 758 8815

P
age 40



 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 

GLOSSARY 

ACE Adverse Childhood Experience 

ADASS Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 

Agile 
Agile working – ability to work in the place and at the time most appropriate for the task 
in hand. 

API 
Application Programming Interface. In the context of APIs, Application refers to any 
software with a distinct function. API is a code that helps two different software 
packages to communicate and exchange data with each other.  

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour 
ASC Adult Social Care 
ASCOF Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 
Azure Microsoft cloud platform 
BCP Business Continuity Plan 
BIA Business Impact Assessment 
BSC Balanced Scorecard 
CAB Citizens Advice Bureau 

CAHMS 
Child & Adolescent Mental Health Services - NHS service that aims to help young 
people < = 18, who are finding it hard to manage their emotional/ psychological health 
& who are suffering with acute, chronic & severe mental health issues. 

Capital 
Budget 

Capital expenditures are typically one-time large purchases of fixed assets that will be 
used for revenue generation over a longer period. 

CCE Climate Change Emergency 
CCG Clinical Commissioning Group (also see ICS AND ICB) 
CDIP Corporate Data, Insight and Performance Management group 
C&I Commercialisation & Improvement (Service within Resources & Digital) 
CMT Corporate Management Team 
CPP Child Protection Plan 
CQC Care Quality Commission 
CSG Corporate Services & Governance 
CSP Community Safety Partnership 

CSR 
Comprehensive Spending Review - govt process carried out by the Treasury to set 
expenditure limits & define key improvements the public can expect.  

DCE Digital & Customer Experience 
DPH Director of Public Health 
DPO Data Protection Officer 
EHCP Education, Health & Care Plans 
EV Electric Vehicles 
FDAC Family Drug & Alcohol Courts 

Fingertips 
Fingertips is a large public health data collection source. Data is organised into themed 
profiles. 

FTE Full Time Equivalent 

Page 41



 
 

GDPR General Data Protection Regulation 
GMT  Group Management Team 
GTC Gateshead Trading Company 
HEHC Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities (Directorate) 
HRA Housing Revenue Account 
HSE Health & Safety Executive 
HWB Health & Wellbeing 
IA Internal Audit (Chief Internal Auditor - Craig Oakes) 
ICB Integrated Care Board (New NHS structure to replace the CCGs) 
ICO Information Commissioner’s Office 
ICS Integrated Care System (New NHS structure to replace the CCGs) 

JSNA 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - an assessment of the current and future health 
and social care needs of the people of Gateshead. 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 
LAC Looked After Children 
LD Learning Difficulties 

LEP 
Local Enterprise Partnership – North East LEP covers the areas of County Durham, 
Gateshead, Newcastle, North Tyneside, Northumberland, South Tyneside & 
Sunderland. 

LGA Local Government Association 
LIoN Local Index of Need 
Mazars Gateshead Council’s external auditors 
MTFS Medium Term Financial Strategy 
NDTMS National Drug Treatment Monitoring Service 
NEET Young people Not in Education, Employment or Training 

NEJTC 
North East Joint Transport Committee - transport plan covering Newcastle, Gateshead, 
North Tyneside, South Tyneside, Northumberland and Durham. It includes road, rail 
and public transport projects. 

NICD National Innovation Centre for Data (@Newcastle University) 
NOMIS Official census & labour market statistics - provided by ONS. 
OSTED Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services & Skills. 
ONS  Office for National Statistics 
OSC Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
PCC Northumbria Police & Crime Commissioner (Kim McGuinness) 
PHE Public Health England 
PHOF Public Health Outcomes Framework 
PHW Public Health & Wellbeing 
PMIF Performance Management & Improvement Framework 
PO Policy Objective based on Gateshead Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Power BI 
A collection of software services, apps, and connectors that work together to turn 
unrelated sources of data into coherent, visually immersive, and interactive 
insights/dashboards/reports. A Microsoft 365 product. 

PSED Public Sector Equality Duty – under the 2010 Equality Act.  
PSR Public Service Reform 

Page 42



 
 

QA Quality Assurance 
RAG Red. Amber. Green. A performance rating. 
R&D Resources and Digital (Directorate) 
Revenue 
Budget 

Revenue expenditures are typically referred to as ongoing operating expenses, which 
are short-term expenses used in running the daily business operations. 

R&M Repairs & Maintenance 

Risk  
Risk management is the process of identifying, assessing and controlling financial, 
legal, strategic and security risks to an organisation. 

SAP 
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) - methodology used by the govt to assess & 
compare the energy and environmental performance of dwellings.  

SEND Special Education Needs & Disability 
StoS Services to Schools 
SME Small or Medium Enterprise 
TBC To Be Confirmed 
TGHC The Gateshead Housing Company 

TADU 
Traffic Accident Data Unit - holds traffic accident, cycle flow and traffic flow data for the 
Tyne and Wear area. TADU   

ULEZ Ultra-Low Emission Zone 
VCS Voluntary & Community Sector 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



   

             
 
TITLE OF REPORT:    Community Safety Priorities – 6 Month Update 
 
REPORT OF:  Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health – Care, 

Wellbeing and Learning 
 

 
Summary 
This report provides Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (OSC) with a brief overview of some of the key activities that have 
been co-ordinated and delivered by the Gateshead Community Safety Board between 
Apr-Sept 2022 to address the priorities outlined within the Partnership Plan 2020/23.   
 
 

1 Background 
 
1.1 The Community Safety Board is a standalone statutory partnership made up of 

representatives from five responsible authorities (including police service, local 
authority, fire and rescue, health, and probation).  These responsible authorities 
work together to protect local communities from crime and disorder and to help 
people feel safer.  The Board’s core functions are to: 
• address crime and disorder (including anti-social behaviour and behaviours 

which adversely affect the environment) 
• combat the misuse of drugs, alcohol, and other substances 
• reduce re-offending 
 

1.2 The Board has a statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act to produce an 
annual intelligence-led Strategic Assessment (an assessment of need based on 
data) along with a Partnership Plan (which formally sets out the areas that will 
priorities and the activity that will be undertaken locally by the Board).  A copy 
of the Partnership Plan 2020-23 has previously been presented to Committee 
and has been attached as Appendix 1. 
 

1.3 As a reminder, the strategic themes that were agreed by the Community Safety 
Board for delivery in 2020-23 are: 

 
(1) Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 

• Serious and Organised Crime 
• Serious Violence 
• Domestic Abuse 

 
(2) Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 

• Anti-Social Behaviour (Youth, Adult and Place-based ASB) 
• Locality-based Tasking and Problem-Solving 

 
(3) Community Cohesion and Resilience 

• Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 
• Preventing Violence Extremism, Radicalisation and Terrorism 

Housing, Environment and Healthier 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
5 December 2022

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



   

2 Crime Performance  
 
2.1 The table set out in below shows crime and disorder performance in Gateshead 

from 1st April through to 30 September 2022. 
 

Offence Type 
Current 

(Apr-Sep22) 
Previous 

(Apr-Sep21) 
Change 

(Vol) 
Change 

(%) 
All Crime 9,832 9,131 +701 +7% 
Violence against the person - Without injury 2,443 2,440 +3 +0% 
Violence against the person - With injury 1,185 1,053 +132 +13% 
Violence - Other 68 60 +8 +13% 
Sexual offences 316 322 -6 -2% 
Theft and handling 1,750 1,386 +364 +26% 
Criminal damage 1,343 1,456 -113 -8% 
Public disorder 1,019 1,214 -195 -16% 
Vehicle crime 828 400 +428 +107% 
Burglary 533 445 +88 +20% 
Drug crime 170 195 -25 -13% 
Other 177 160 +17 +11% 
     

Adult-related ASB 1891 2795 -904 -32% 
Youth-related ASB 561 556 5 0.9% 
Total ASB 2452 3351 -899 -26% 
     

Deliberate Secondary Fires 467 421 -46 +10% 
 
Source: Local Authority LALO Report provided by Northumbria Police Corporate Development Department (Apr-Sept22) 

 
2.2 Recorded crime in Gateshead has increased by 7% (+701 additional reported 

crimes) which is slightly higher than 6% increase in crime experienced across 
Northumbria.  Violent offences continue to account for the highest proportion of 
crime committed in Gateshead and increased on last year.  Theft and handling, 
vehicle-related crime and burglaries have also increased compared to last year 
– with reductions reported in drug-related crime, sexual offences, and offences 
of criminal damage.  There has fall in the number of deliberate secondary fires 
reported; while reports of ASB has reduced by more than a quarter on the same 
period last year.  Three-quarters of all reported ASB is committed by adults.  

 
3 Progress to date 
 
3.1 A snapshot of some of the key activities that have been undertaken by partners 

to address the priorities of the Board during the first six-months of 2022/23: 
 

Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 
 
Serious and Organised Crime 

• Continue to support disruption of Serious and Organised Crime activity through 
the delivery of multi-agency Operational Sentinel interventions. 

• Attendance at Northumbria Serious and Organised Crime Governance Board to 
share best practice and intelligence to disrupt identified networks. 

• Support high visibility targeted patrols, problem solving and enforcement tactics 
within specific harm hotspot areas within Gateshead. 

 
Page 46



   

Serious Violence 
• Continued to support the activity of Northumbria Violence Reduction Unit taking 

an evidence-led approach to commissioning interventions to prevent violence. 
• Exploring the potential implications of the new Serious Violence Legal Duty that 

will sit with Community Safety Board from early next year. 
• Delivered a series of activities throughout the summer to prevent violence and 

anti-social behaviour within hotspot areas (including the commissioning of youth 
outreach, diversionary activities, and peer-led research).  
 

Domestic Abuse 
• Gateshead Local Domestic Abuse Partnership Board has been re-established 

to progress key areas of statutory work required as part of the Domestic Abuse 
Act (including the commissioning of specialist support in Safe Accommodation 
for victim-survivors and children affected by Domestic Abuse). 

• Commissioned 3 x Domestic Homicide Reviews and supported a Northumbria-
wide Learning Event to facilitate sharing of findings, learning, recommendations 
from DHRs and identify opportunities for joint projects, funding, campaigns, and 
strategic collaboration across Northumbria. 

• Continue to offer an in-house Domestic Abuse Service in Gateshead providing 
specialist support to safeguard victim-survivors and their children through the 
delivery of a Behaviour Change Programme to break cycle of domestic abuse. 

 
Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour (Youth, Adult and Place-based ASB) 

• Commissioned a comprehensive multi-agency systems-thinking review of anti-
social behaviour to identify how we can achieve better outcomes for victims, for 
those connected with ASB, and for professionals working in the system.  A 
further update will be brought to Committee in January 2023. 

• Working in conjunction with Northumbria Police and Office for the Police and 
Crime Commissioner – we have developed a regional framework to standardize 
our approach to Community Trigger (which allows victims to request a review of 
an ASB case).  There have been 6 Community Triggers activated in Gateshead 
and has identified recommendations to improve our ASB processes. 

• Safer Streets Funding has been secured to help deliver interventions designed 
to improve perceptions of safety within transport hubs, parks, and open spaces 
across the Borough.  This includes £210k funding to support the development 
of a multi-agency co-located hub in Birtley to work alongside local communities 
to tackle crime and ASB issues affecting their area. 

 
Locality-based Tasking and Problem-Solving Arrangements 

• Operational Planning and Tasking Group continues to operate effectively with 
strong representation from statutory partners and Council services to providing a 
response to threat, harm and risk issues affecting local communities and places. 

• Planned a range of activity associated with seasonal trends and responded to 
specific crime patterns (such as thefts, motorbike disorder, deliberate fires etc).  

• Developed, in conjunction with Children’s Services, a Contextual Safeguarding 
pilot within the Birtley area to explore a different way of providing interventions 
to safeguard young people.  This has included mapping communities, schools 
and peer groups and applying a safeguarding lens to issues that would normally 
be viewed as nuisance teenage behaviour with intervention limited to sanctions.   
 

Page 47



   

Community Cohesion and Resilience 
 
Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 

• Delivered activity to raise public awareness of hate crime reporting, increase 
referrals to victim support services and promoting hate crime education.  

• Started to review and refresh the local Hate Crime Strategy and Action Plan for 
Gateshead which will be launched during national awareness week. 

• Continue to support the Gateshead Hate Crime Champions Network includes 
schools and colleges within Gateshead as well as public transport providers and 
private sector organisations. 

• Ongoing relationship development with key community groups in Gateshead to 
increase confidence in Police and Council’s approach to hate crime (including 
involvement in asylum and migration multi-agency partnership work). 

 
Preventing Violence Extremism, Radicalisation and Terrorism 

• Refreshed the local Prevent Risk Assessment for 2022/23 to assess the current 
threat level and identify actions to reduce the risk of vulnerability to radicalization 
within Gateshead.   

• Raised awareness of different ideologies, groups and risks linked with counter 
terrorist narratives with Council staff through the roll out of tailored training to 
raise profile of Prevent, referral routes and to upskill frontline practitioners. 

• Continued to deliver interventions/support to individuals at risk of radicalization 
through the statutory Channel Panel process. 

• Ran a further Channel HYDRA session which provides a simulated scenario of a 
real-life Prevent referral to test local approaches and ability to address the case. 
 

4 Recommendations 
 
4.1 Members are asked to: 

(i) Comment on the activities undertaken in relation to the strategic priorities 
of the Community Safety Board. 

(ii) Continue to receive six-monthly Community Safety updates. 
(iii) Identify any issues/areas that OSC may want to scrutinise in detail at a 

future Committee meeting. 
 
 

Contact:  Adam Lindridge, Community Safety Manager             Tel:  07535 200 777 
 
 
 
Appendix 1 
 
Gateshead Community Safety Board – Partnership Plan 2020-23 
 
 

Page 48



 

 
 

Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 

2020-23 

 

Gateshead Community Safety Board 

 

 

Page 49



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Our purpose in Community Safety is simple. 
 
 

“We work together to help 
make Gateshead a safe place 

for everyone…” 
 
 

The Community Safety Board strives to make Gateshead a 
place with strong, resilient and connected communities 

where people can lead active and healthy lives in a safe and 
thriving environment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2020-23 
 
The Community Safety Board has committed to prioritising the following strategic areas for 
2020-23 to ensure that Gateshead remains one of the safest boroughs in the country: 

 
 Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 

Serious Violence and Knife Crime 
Domestic Abuse (including Violence Against Women and Girls) 

 
Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 

Anti-Social Behaviour (Youth, Adult and Place) 
Locality-based Problem Solving 

 
Community Cohesion and Resilience 

Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 
Preventing Violence Extremism, Radicalisation and Terrorism 

 
The Board must have effective and robust governance arrangements in place – and have 
strong and accountable leadership working towards a common purpose: 
 

Governance, Leadership and Accountability 
Effective Strategic and Operational Structures 

High Challenge, High Support and Inspiring Change  

 
Although the Board has chosen to focus on these key priority areas for 2020-20203 – we 
remain flexible enough to be able to respond to new and emerging community safety issues.  
We will continue to identify potential threats/risks through our annual statutory Community 
Safety Strategic Assessment and will respond accordingly to ensure Gateshead continues to 
be a place with strong, resilient and connected communities. 

 
Drivers of Crime and Community Safety: 
 

We recognise to make a positive difference and discernible impact – our approach must also 
target key drivers and influences of crime and community safety problems (as set out in the 
Modern Crime Prevention Strategy).  This includes addressing harms caused by drugs and 
alcohol, supporting those with mental health problems and taking action to remove the 
potential opportunities (and profits) linked with criminal activity and exploitation. 
 
  

Page 51



 

 
FOREWORD 

 
We are pleased to introduce the Partnership Plan for Gateshead for 2020-23 which sets out 
the strategic areas that we have prioritised to tackle over the next three-years.  Gateshead is 
a safe place to work, live and visit.  The Borough continues to experience relatively low rates 
of crime and disorder (when compared to national, regional and local averages) and, in the 
last 12 months alone, we have seen a further 5% reduction.   This is encouraging – and is 
testament to the strong and progressive partnership working that exists within Gateshead to 
keep people safe. 
 
The Community Safety Board, which is the multi-agency partnership responsible for tackling 
crime and disorder within Gateshead, is committed to tackling issues that cause the greatest 
level of harm in our society.  By working together, we are confident we can tackle these and 
ensure Gateshead remains a place with strong, resilient and connected communities where 
people can lead active and healthy lives in a safe and thriving environment.  
 
We know issues of crime, community safety and harm reduction are often very complex and 
require an integrated whole system response.  Our partnership is dedicated to safeguarding 
and protecting the most vulnerable persons and communities providing excellent specialist 
services.  We are also keen for the Community Safety Board to advocate more of a public-
health approach to identify, address and prevent the underlying risk factors, which increase 
the likelihood that an individual will become a victim or perpetrator.  To help manage future 
demand on the partnership, it is imperative to shift our efforts towards primary prevention; 
and focus on preventing crime and disorder issues before they occur.   However, you can be 
assured we are still making best use of the various tools and powers available across the 
partnership – and where relevant will take swift and robust action to deter crime. 
 
We recognise we can only achieve our vision with your help.  With your involvement, we will 
be more able to protect you and your property and hopefully make your neighbourhood an 
even safer place.  We are fully committed to informing and consulting with you about issues 
affecting your neighbourhood and will continue to work alongside communities to promote 
and encourage ways to improve cohesion and drive out extremism within the Borough. 
 
At the time of writing this plan, the Community Safety landscape has changed somewhat – 
caused by the worldwide pandemic around COVID-19 virus.  It has however, brought to the 
fore the need for a strong, safe and resilient community spirit and highlights the importance 
of protecting vulnerable groups and individuals from harm.  We would like to acknowledge 
all of the hard work and efforts of partner agencies and Council services who on a daily basis 
contribute significantly to keeping Gateshead safe – and we look forward to replicating 
further successes throughout 2020-23. 
 
 
Councillor Angela Douglas              Superintendent Karl Wilson  
Chair – Community Safety Board         Vice Chair – Community Safety Board 

Page 52



GATESHEAD COMMUNITY SAFETY BOARD 
 
The Community Safety Board brings together partner agencies involved in crime prevention 
and community safety within Gateshead.  We have a common purpose to "make Gateshead 
a safe place for everyone" and strive to ensure the Borough remains a place with strong, 
resilient and connected communities where people can lead active and healthy lives.   
 
In the Gateshead, the Board is made up of the following organisations: 

• Gateshead Council 
• National Probation Service 
• Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 
• Northumbria Community Rehabilitation Company 
• Northumbria Police 
• The Gateshead Housing Company 
• Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service 
• Connected Voice (Community and Voluntary Sector) 

 
We collaborate with other partnership forums including Gateshead’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board, Safeguarding Adult' Board and the Gateshead Safeguarding Partnership and regularly 
engage with voluntary and community organisations, the business sector and our residents.  
In addition, we work closely with the Police and Crime Commissioner for Northumbria (and 
Violence Reduction Unit) and, where possible, we have aligned our strategic priorities with 
those identified in the Northumbria Police and Crime Plan. 
 
To ensure we continue to successfully address issues of crime and anti-social behaviour, the 
Community Safety Board has a statutory duty to: 

 Conduct an annual Community Safety Strategic Assessment to help collate data and 
analyse the crime patterns of the Borough 

 Listen to the views and concerns of residents on crime and community safety issues 
that matter to them (including through an annual public consultation process). 

 Monitor performance and delivery against our agreed objectives 
 Ensure partners are working together to ensure we are collectively addressing those 

issues, which cause the greatest level of harm to communities. 
 
The annual Community Safety Strategic Assessment is a snapshot of crime and community 
safety supported by factual data from across the partnership and feedback from residents.  
We have used this evidence-base to help us to identify the strategic themes and priorities 
that we will focus on throughout 2020-23.  The Partnership Plan sets out the various actions 
and interventions that the Board are committed to delivering during this strategic period to 
ensure Gateshead continues to become even safer and stronger.  
 
Many of our priorities do not change substantially from year to year as they tend to follow 
long term trends and patterns and – whilst our strategic priorities have been established for 
a three-year period – we recognise that we may, however, need to re-focus our priorities in 
response to new or changing trends in crime and ASB, the impact of previous interventions, 
emerging external national or local factors, and learning gained through delivery of existing 
priorities.  We will review and determine if our priorities are still correct through the annual 
Community Safety Strategic Assessment process and amend these, if necessary. 

Page 53



 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY DEMAND 

 

On an average day in Gateshead, there are… 
 166 separate incidents reported to the Police 
 58 crimes recorded by the Police 
 1.5 cases subject to legal and formal action by The Gateshead Housing Company 
 Three ASB cases opened by The Gateshead Housing Company 
 Four high-risk domestic abuse referrals to the Council Domestic Abuse Service 
 15 fly tips reported 

  
On an average week in Gateshead, there are…  

 21 medium-risk domestic abuse victims referred to the Council Domestic Abuse Service 
 20 burglaries to homes and 22 incidents of car crime 
 Seven hate crimes taking place 
 37 incidents of rowdy or inconsiderate behaviour 
 19 deliberate secondary fires attended by Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service 
 18 presentations to Accident and Emergency suffering assault-related injuries 
 7 cases subject to legal and formal action by The Gateshead Housing Company 
 22 ASB cases opened by The Gateshead Housing Company 

 
On an average month in Gateshead, there are…  

 379 incidents of domestic violence reported to Police 
 119 reports of youth-related disorder 
 10 deliberate primary fires taking place 
 Two deaths because of drug misuse 
 95 ASB cases are opened by The Gateshead Housing Company 
 81 complaints to the Private Sector Housing Team 
 15 Customer Assessment Tools completed by The Gateshead Housing Company 
 91 deliberate fires attended by Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service 
 730 violence against the person offences reported to police 
 77 reports linked to neighbour disputes 

  
Last year in Gateshead, there were… 

 56 crimes for every 1,000 residents 
 Just under 6,000 incidents of anti-social behaviour reported to Police 
 9,500+ victims of crime identified 
 5,400+ offenders (1800+ linked to two or more crimes) 
 1,805 people in treatment 
 520 people in treatment for alcohol 
 374 Customer Assessment Tools completed by The Gateshead Housing Company 

Page 54



  
 

 
 
 

KEY REFLECTIONS 2019-20 

ASB Tools and Powers 

Continued to make best use of ASB 
Tools and Powers to help enforce, 
prevent and deter ASB from taking 

place in Gateshead. 

Operational Planning Group 

Strengthened our local Tasking and 
Co-ordination through introducing a 

weekly multi-agency Operational 
Planning Group. 

Outreach Work 

Developed a series of Outreach 
Projects in conjunction with NE 

Youth and Platform to target hotpot 
areas for youth-related ASB. 

Drug-related deaths  

We continue to robustly review all 
drug-related deaths to help 

safeguard and protect vulnerable 
persons. 

Domestic Homicide Reviews 

Commissioned 3 x Domestic 
Homicide Reviews to identify 

lessons learned and improve our 
service to victims of domestic abuse. 

Training and Development 

Commissioned a series of training 
sessions to improve frontline staff 
awareness and understanding of 

community safety issues. 

Community Safety Strategies 

Working with our partners, we have 
reviewed and refreshed strategies, 
policies and action plans relating to 

community safety. 

Funding 

Successfully secured national and 
local funding to increase provisions 

and support domestic abuse and 
hate crime agendas. 

Preventing Extremism 

Continued to raise awareness of 
preventing radicalisation with 300+ 
frontline staff briefed/trained in the 

last 12 months. 

Domestic Abuse Service 

Our in-house Domestic Abuse 
Service continues to provide much 

needed support to those 
experiencing domestic abuse 

Domestic Abuse Perpetrators 

Commissioned and implemented a 
tailored Domestic Abuse Perpetrator 

Programme to help stop and 
prevent abuse. 

County Lines and Exploitation 

Commissioned training to increase 
awareness and knowledge of county 
lines to help staff spot the signs and 

be able to respond. 

Hate Crime Champions 

Trained Workplace and Student 
Hate Crime Champions to champion 
hate crime and be a SPOC within the 

workplace/school. 

CONTEST 

Northumbria-wide and Gateshead 
CONTEST Boards were established 
to ensure we are aware of the risks 

relating to Counter Terrorism. 

Hate Crime Awareness 

Successfully rolled out a programme 
of activities and events during Hate 

Crime Awareness Week to raise 
awareness and promote hate crime. 

Public Spaces Protection Orders 

Implemented several PSPOs within 
the Borough to provide agencies 

with additional powers to address 
ASB in public spaces. 

ASB Volunteers Project 

Our ASB Volunteers Project has 
continued to provide bespoke one-

to-one support, advice and guidance 
to victims of ASB. 

Supporting Offenders 

Integrated Offender Management 
continues to identify and tackle 

individuals causing the most harm 
within local communities.   

Violence Reduction Unit 

We have worked alongside the new 
Violence Reduction Unit for 

Northumbria to support 
interventions to prevent violence. 

Knife Angel 

Co-ordinated bringing the 'Knife 
Angel' to Gateshead providing a 

poignant visual reminder about the 
dangers of knives and weapons. 

Operation Benelli 

Continued to address vehicle-
related crime and disorder through 

targeted disruption operations. Page 55



 

 

 

 
STRATEGIC THEMES 2020-23 

 
Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 

 

 
Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 

 

 
Community Cohesion and Resilience 

 

 
Governance, Leadership and Accountability 

 

 
(*including Drivers of Crime and Community Safety) 

Page 56



Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 
 
Priority Area: 
 

Serious Violence and Knife Crime 
 
What is our aim? 
 Serious violence and knife crime cause less harm to individuals and communities. 
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Fewer people harmed by serious violence 
 Less crime involving weapons 
 Earlier intervention to help stop violence 
 Community free of the fear of violence and confident to report crimes 
 Better understanding and insight into the drivers and influencers of violent behaviour 
 Stronger preventative approach to violence through better use of data 
 Development of a whole system collaborative public health approach to violence 
 
Why is it a priority? 
 Tackling serious violence is not a law enforcement issue alone.  It requires a coordinated 

multiple strand approach involving a range of partners across different sectors. 
 Serious violence, or threat of violence, has a hugely detrimental influence on individuals, 

communities and the Borough as a whole.  It can undermine how safe people feel and can 
negatively impact on mental health and wellbeing. 

 Serious violence takes many forms and happens in different contexts including alcohol-
related violence, domestic abuse and organised crime (e.g. drug-related violence, sexual 
violence and exploitation). 

 Offences of violence with injury are estimated to have the highest cost impact – to both 
individuals and to services (e.g. associated costs of health, welfare and criminal justice). 

 If serious violence it is not appropriately addressed, it can deter individuals from actively 
engaging in and connecting with leisure, social and community activities – impacting on 
and exacerbating inequalities. 

 Rates of serious violence, knife and gun crime has increased nationally – and there is a 
greater spotlight on agencies to work in partnership, using a public health approach, to 
address the associated harms. 

 Northumbria has been identified nationally as suffering from higher rate of violent crime 
– and has been allocated additional funding to establish a dedicated Violence Reduction 
Unit (VRU) covering the Force area. 

 Serious violence will likely to become a statutory function that is imposed on Community 
Safety Board (as part of the upcoming Serious Violence Bill). 
 

What is the local context telling us? 
 A third of all reported crime taking place in Gateshead is classified as violence against the 

person – with year-on-year increases noted over the last three years.   

Page 57



 In 2019/20, there were more than 6,500 violent crimes reported in Gateshead, 200 were 
classified as most serious violence (including GBH and above) and, during the same time 
period, there were almost 100 robberies and 160+ weapon-related offences. 

 According to local Accident and Emergency records, Gateshead experienced increases in 
the number of attendances relating to assault (with many of these not being reported).  
Reports of domestic violence has also increased year-on-year within the Borough. 

 We know serious violence has strong links with local drug markets and related harm and 
exploitation from county lines – which is a growing trend nationally and locally. 

 A substantial proportion of violence-related offences are linked in some way to alcohol 
consumption and drug misuse and is seen as a key driver of serious violent crime. 

 
Who’s affected? 
 There are a higher number of male victims of serious violence in 21-29 old year range with 

the number of victims declining progressively in older age groups.  Similarly, young men 
are also responsible for committing serious violence. 

 Violent crime shares similar risk factors with other crime types and anti-social behaviour 
with a strong correlation with poorer life outcomes/inequalities (such as low educational 
attainment, poor health and unemployment). 

 Evidence shows groups who are more at risk of being drawn into violent crime are often 
characterised by childhood disadvantage, live in high crime/deprived neighbourhoods and 
exhibit signs of vulnerability (such as lack of support networks, social isolation and 
tendencies towards low self-esteem and self-harm). 

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Support the development of the multi-agency Serious Violence Reduction Strategy that 

has been produced by the Northumbria Violence Reduction Unit. 
 Better understand the extent of serious violence in Gateshead (and the impact on local 

communities) to help identify bespoke solutions. 
 Make better use of data to help inform and drive the interventions offered to reduce 

violence.  This will include delivery of universal interventions (designed to deliver a range 
of positive impacts ranging from behavioural outcomes to educational attainment and 
health) through to targeted programmes (aimed at individuals who have already 
committed violence or groups who have been identified as high-risk). 

 Working alongside VRU, using diversionary activities, we will offer alternatives to young 
people at risk of being drawn into serious organised crime that may include violence.  This 
will include working with third sector organisations.  

 Tackle negative perceptions of serious violence and knife crime within our Borough by 
working alongside community groups to share, educate and raise awareness of the work 
that is being carried out. 

 Ensure licensed premises are safe and complement violence reduction initiatives. 
 Address perpetrators of violence through robust and timely enforcement action and 

offering support, where necessary, to help drive down violent crime within the Borough. 
 Victims of serious violence and knife crime will be offered appropriate support, guidance 

and advice to help overcome their experiences and trauma. 
 Work alongside health to improve data sharing/records to provide further information 

about demographic characteristics of people who attend/present at health settings due 
to assault, the injuries sustained and the violent incident itself, all of which can inform 
preventative action. 

Page 58



Violence, Exploitation and Abuse 
 
Priority Area 
 

Domestic Abuse 
 
What is our aim? 
 Gateshead residents can live safely without the threat, fear or experience of domestic 

violence and abuse (including stalking and harassment and harmful practices) 
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Domestic abuse is not tolerated by our communities (and businesses) 
 Victims to be believed and not blamed, treated with dignity and respect, and supported 

to feel safe within their community, knowing offenders are being worked with to change 
their behaviour and/or brought to justice.  

 Services, communities and businesses recognise domestic abuse is 'everyone’s business' 
and overcome barriers to progress. 

 Increased prevention and early intervention to stop domestic abuse from taking place. 
 Changing attitudes/behaviours so victims are protected, and cycle of offending is broken. 
 High-quality trauma-informed service pathways that are co-ordinated and accessible for 

victims and children affected by domestic abuse. 
 Stronger criminal/civil justice responses to perpetrators, alongside sustained proactive 

interventions and preventative programmes. 
 Robust partnership working to enable consistent and positive outcomes for victims.  
  
Why this is a priority? 
 Despite under-reporting, we have seen an unprecedented increase in reported incidents 

of domestic violence and abuse and sexual violence (including stalking and harassment 
and other harmful practices) in Gateshead in recent years. 

 Worrying evidence of abuse taking place within our younger generations particularly 
growing issues around Adolescent to Parent Violence. 

 There are long-standing societal/cultural norms that perpetuate acceptance of abusive 
and controlling behaviour affecting women and girls.  

 There are cycles of repeat offending and repeat victimisation and only a small fraction of 
perpetrators are convicted.  

 Increased rates of domestic homicides nationally – many of which show a trend where 
the risk to a victim prior to the homicide is less visible or recognised. 

 Opportunities across all sectors to increase awareness of the signs of domestic abuse and 
to provide support with confidence.  

 Long-term impact of experiencing domestic abuse, whether directly or indirectly within a 
family situation, as an adult or as a child, can have a devastating effect on people’s ability 
to cope throughout their life.  

 Impact of COVID has highlighted the growing need for domestic abuse support. 
 The Domestic Abuse Bill will be implemented placing additional requirements on partner 

agencies around domestic abuse agenda. 

Page 59



What is the local context telling us? 
 Domestic abuse is a prolific crime and the last few years has seen increasing numbers of 

people come forward to report to services. 
 There were almost 6,000 incidents which came to the attention of Northumbria Police in 

Gateshead in 2019/20 – with 40% of incidents involving children. 
 Majority of domestic abuse incidents continue to be committed by an intimate partner 

towards female victims.  Four in every ten cases are repeat victims; while two-thirds of 
referrals relate to those aged 24-44 years. 

 We have a very strong and progressive Domestic Abuse Service within Gateshead.  There 
were almost 1,900 individuals referred into the service last year and efforts were made to 
provide tailored safety planning, advice and interventions to prevent risk of harm. 

 We have seen a marked rise in the number stalking and harassment and coercive control 
offences recorded in Gateshead (up 24%) and volume of Adolescent to Parent Violence 
has also increased.  Evidence of other harmful practices (i.e. honour-based violence and 
forced marriage) remains scarce – with nine reported offences in 2019/20. 

 Referrals during COVID pandemic have risen with clients reporting increase in intensity 
and volume of abuse from perpetrators.   

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Re-establish Gateshead Domestic Abuse Sub-Group to strengthen strategic oversight of 

domestic abuse activity to help facilitate effective partnership working, make best use of 
resources, and to ensure effective multi-agency support and response pathways. 

 Develop a Gateshead Strategic Framework for responding to Domestic Abuse (which will 
include comprehensive consultation and engagement with victims) focusing on: 
o Providing services and support for victims – developing a co-ordinated approach to 

protecting victims, families and children who experience domestic abuse, ensuring we 
have appropriate services, interventions and referral processes in place. 

o Improved access to and location of services – data/insight from victims tell us that 
services need to be more flexible to accommodate differing needs, providing simpler 
pathways into services that maintains a focus on the victim’s experience. 

o Intervening earlier in the cycle of domestic abuse – creating an environment for early 
disclosure through greater promotion of the work we do to protect/support victims 
along with positive media campaigns and training for frontline practitioners. 

o Better communication and signposting – we need to ensure local services are visible 
enough to facilitate access and this applies to both victims and referrers. 

o Challenging perpetrators to change behaviour – we need to improve prevention by 
focusing the spotlight on perpetrators of domestic abuse to change their behaviour, 
including timely disruption, intervening early and raising awareness through training.   

 Ensure we are providing flexible/tailored response to the needs generated by COVID. 
 Continue to roll out, embed and strengthen existing projects designed to enhance safety 

and wellbeing of children (e.g. Operation Encompass and Safe and Together Model) 
 Embed learning and recommendations from local/national Domestic Homicide Reviews. 
 Pilot and evaluate new operational models to ensure timelier support (e.g. daily MARAC). 
 Explore opportunities to strengthen our response to housing/accommodation needs. 
 Develop local campaigns and raise awareness of the different aspects of domestic abuse 

and the signs to spot to help challenge and change attitudes and increase reporting. 
 Multi-agency working to secure new resources for a sustained and improved service. 
 Comply with legal requirements set out in the DA Bill (due to come into effect in 2020). 

Page 60



Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Priority Area 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
What is our aim? 
 Anti-social behaviour causes less harm to individuals and communities 
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Anti-social behaviour is addressed appropriately and consistently by all partner agencies 

and services – making best use of available enforcement tools and powers. 
 Significant harms caused by ASB to our most vulnerable residents is reduced. 
 Communities and persons affected by ASB will have confidence to report incidents. 
 Ability to intervene early to stop and prevent cases of anti-social behaviour escalating. 
 Victims will be offered timely and flexible support to overcome their experiences. 
 ASB committed by priority and repeat perpetrators is tackled effectively. 
 Public-space ASB within known harm/hotspot locations (e.g. Town Centre) is minimised. 
 Improved outreach and diversionary offer to deter young people from causing ASB. 
 Successes are communicated to key partners and communities to help increase feelings 

of safety and improve perceptions of ASB. 
 Neighbours and residents will have greater understanding and recognition of the impact 

their actions can have on others. 
 
Why is it a priority? 
 Anti-social behaviour can be described as behaviour/actions which causes or is likely to 

cause harassment, alarm or distress and, if left unchecked, it can have a serious adverse 
effect on individuals, communities and the environment.   

 Everyone has the right to feel safe in their own homes and neighbourhoods. 
 ASB is something that ruins people's lives, making day to day existence a real misery and 

leaving them feeling helpless, desperate and with reduced quality of life/wellbeing. 
 If victims are subjected to persistent ASB, it can have a devastating impact, particularly if 

it is deliberately targeted against them, if they are already vulnerable, or if they cannot 
resolve the issue. 

 Persons committing ASB often have their own vulnerabilities such as substance misuse or 
mental health issues – and we are experiencing increased volumes of cases involving 
victims and perpetrators presenting with multiple and complex needs. 

 Victims of anti-social behaviour can become frightened of leaving their home and even 
feel unsafe when in their homes – meaning they are less likely to engage in community 
activity; thus, creating a more fragmented and less cohesive community. 

 ASB is often a precursor for other issues including criminal damage, violence, hate crime 
and exploitation of vulnerable person (e.g. cuckooing). 

 ASB continues to be one of the highest reported issues within the Borough and is often 
cited as a priority area for our residents. 

Page 61



 There is disparity in our current ASB offer – with different service standards, delivery 
models and approaches taken to resolve problems and support victims (depending upon 
tenure type) and limited capability to address ASB committed in public spaces. 

 
What is the local context telling us? 
 The latest Strategic Assessment identified that all Police-recorded ASB increased for the 

first time in several years – rising by 6% - with increases also noted in youth-related ASB 
(up 2%).  However, we recognise that many ASB issues continue to go unreported and 
therefore do not reflect the true level of disorder experienced in the Borough; albeit, the 
increases remain on par with the levels found across Northumbria. 

 The number of new ASB cases opened by The Gateshead Housing Company increased by 
more than a quarter (up 28%) while cases involving Private and Rented Sector Housing 
dropped by more than a fifth (-21%).  Noise disturbance is the most common anti-social 
behaviour reported. Environmental offences such as fly-tipping have risen year-on-year – 
while deliberate secondary fires and arsons have fallen by around 10%. 

 Strong seasonal trend in relation to ASB incidents with significantly more recorded in the 
summer months (particularly youth and alcohol-related disorder). 

 Despite our Safer Communities Survey suggesting people feel safe living in Gateshead; 
more than a fifth have a perception that their area has got worse in terms of ASB issues 
in the last 12 months.  The top three priorities for residents are: youth-disorder, people 
using or dealing drugs and lower-level ASB issues (such as littering and motorcycles) 

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Undertake a strategic review of how the Community Safety Board address ASB functions 

within Gateshead to ensure that we are applying solid effective ASB case management 
principles, starting at the point of contact and continuing throughout the management of 
a case, taking action that is appropriate and proportionate to the harm caused.. 

 Refresh and promote Gateshead’s ASB Strategy and Graded Response Policies. 
 Continue to provide a co-ordinated ASB response through weekly Operational Tasking and 

problem solving arrangements.  
 Make best use of data and evidence to help target ASB interventions and resources to 

address issues within high harm and hotspot locations. 
 Support the development of a Prevention Programme to work with those young people 

on the cusp of offending and committing ASB. 
 Work with third sector organisations to seek funding and resources to increase the level 

of outreach and engagement capacity within the Borough. 
 Raise community awareness of how to report ASB (including online reporting). 
 Deliver awareness and promotional campaigns at peak times of year  
 Provide additional training, advice and guidance to staff in relation to legal tools/powers. 
 Consider environmental improvements that may help reduce the likelihood of anti-social 

behaviour taking place. 
 Review support offered to vulnerable and repeat victims of ASB and increase referrals to 

ASB Volunteer Network. 
 Evaluate the effectiveness of Public Spaces Protection Orders. 
 Promotion of Neighbourhood Watch initiatives to help communities better respond and 

be aware of crime prevention issues effecting their area. 
 Report appropriate convictions through social media, press releases and Council News to 

increase awareness of consequences of ASB. 

Page 62



Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Priority Area 
 

Locality-based Problem Solving 
 
What is our aim? 
 A problem-solving ethos is embedded within our work and is used to proactively protect, 

safeguard and support local communities around crime, disorder and community safety 
issues affecting Gateshead. 

 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Improved partnership response to community safety problems facing our community. 
 Intelligence-led approaches and evidence-driven interventions are implemented. 
 Better understanding of what activities work in Gateshead to drive down crime and ASB. 
 Communities actively involved in, supporting and promoting crime prevention advice and 

activities within their neighbourhoods. 
 Targeted approaches to reducing crime and disorder based on intelligence and data. 
 Reduced demand on existing services and partner agencies. 
 Residents have positive perceptions and improved feelings of safety.  
 
Why is it a priority? 
 We know effective problem solving is at the cornerstone of community safety work and 

allows agencies to focus on addressing and tackling the underlying causes of crime.   
 Problem solving helps to ensure that fewer crimes occur, and that the problem does not 

reappear – which ultimately reduces the level of daily demand on services and partners. 
 In recent years, partner and services have had fewer resources at their disposal, and we 

are required more than ever to be targeted in our approaches – focusing our efforts on 
addressing problems causing the greatest level of threat, harm and risk to communities.  

 We know issues of crime, community safety and harm reduction are often very complex 
and require a multi-agency response.  A co-ordinated response is essential to ensure 
victims, perpetrators and communities are supported. 

 Problem solving places a high value on identifying responses of an early intervention and 
preventative nature that are not necessarily dependant on criminal justice system but that 
engage partner agencies, the community and private sector. 

 Prevention through problem solving reduces costs of crime, both economic and social, 
and can achieve a significant return on investment in terms of savings in justice, welfare, 
and health care. 

 Helps to identify the root causes of a problem and develop tailored solutions to improve 
the quality of life and reduce inequalities for our communities.   

 The approach has been successful in addressing a wide range of crime and anti-social 
behaviour problems that traditional policing methods alone have not been able to. 

 The use of data and intelligence allows us to constantly evaluate the effectiveness of our 
activities and allows identify bespoke solutions to problems.  This should involve local 

Page 63



communities, who are often best placed to be able to identify solutions that would work 
in their neighbourhood areas. 

 There is now a greater spotlight on agencies to work in partnership, using a public health 
approach, to address associated harms around crime and disorder issues. 

 
What is the local context telling us? 
 Our latest Partnership Strategic Assessment has shown that certain neighbourhoods and 

communities within Gateshead continue to suffer from disproportionately higher levels 
of crime, disorder and community safety issues compared to others – often mirroring 
deprivation and inequality. 

 By focusing our efforts on tackling issues with the greatest threat, harm and risk – we can 
reduce demand into our services and allow us to target our resources to addressing 
vulnerability, deter offending and prevent victimisation. 

 Our Safer Communities Survey suggests that Gateshead residents feel safe; but feel that 
issues of crime and ASB in local neighbourhoods have increased the last 12 months; with 
only half of those surveyed thinking the Police and Council worked together to address 
issues in their local area.  We need to do more in relation to promoting and raising the 
profile of the work carried out in Gateshead to keep people safe. 

 We have very strong and well-established problem-solving approaches and are leading 
the way in relation to the creation and development of our Weekly Operational Tasking 
Group designed to improve collaborative working and ensure joined up approaches. 

 The development of the Thrive agenda, alongside the creation of several Community Hubs 
established across the Borough to co-ordinate support efforts response to COVID has 
placed a greater spotlight on locality-based working. 

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Continue to review, monitor and improve our Operational Tasking Group processes to 

ensure resources are deployed effectively and based on local need. 
 Using data and intelligence from the Strategic Assessment and Violence Reduction Unit 

Insight Report – we have identified several priority areas/hotspot locations (based on a 
range of community safety issues) and will develop a tailored problem-solving plan to 
tackle crime and disorder within those areas. 

 We will ensure we are using data, intelligence and anecdotal information to proactively 
plan for and respond to seasonal trends and patterns in crime and disorder. 

 Alongside the Central Engagement Team – develop a Communications and Engagement 
Plan to promote the Partnership and the work carried out to keep communities safe. 

 Explore partnership involvement in existing Threat, Harm and Risk and Tasking meetings 
to help ensure a broader range of community safety issues are explored. 

 Improve our use of data and intelligence – by drawing on public health datasets and 
intelligence to help better understand the wider determinants impacting on localities. 

 Commission a series of Problem Profiles (based on areas identified for the Community 
Hubs) to help identify the extent of community safety issues in neighbourhood areas to 
help support future focus/resourcing aspects. 

 

Page 64



Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Priority Area 
 

Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring 
 
What is our aim? 
 Communities embracing equality and celebrating difference, an increase in the levels of 

trust and confidence in services and a reduction in harm to individuals and communities. 
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Trust and confidence in local services is increased so that individuals and communities feel 

confident to engage and report hate crime. 
 The significant harm caused by hate crime and divisive narratives is reduced. 
 Improved community cohesion and greater tolerance, awareness and understanding.  
 Hate incidents are addressed appropriately and consistently – making best use of all 

available tools and powers. 
 Hate incidents committed by repeat perpetrators are reduced. 
 Greater awareness of how to report hate crime and the support available for victims. 
 Communities and individuals better understand the impact of hate and feel confident to 

be able to challenge hateful narratives. 
 
Why is it a priority? 
 Those harmed by incidents where people are targeted because of personal attributes 

relating to disability, ethnicity/race, religion/faith, sexual orientation or transgender 
identity tell us it has a significant effect on their quality of life and wellbeing. 

 The effects of hate crime are wide-ranging.  Evidence shows people harmed by crime 
influenced by hate are often more emotionally impacted than persons harmed by other 
types of crime.  The psychological effect of trauma may include withdrawal from society, 
leading to lack of participation in opportunities, employment and cultural life, leading to 
increased isolation, increasing the likelihood of further victimisation. 

 We know incidents of hate crime remain significantly under reported in our community – 
and it varies significantly between different strands.  Recent figures in England suggest 
one in two racist hate crimes are reported to the Police; this drops to one in four for 
homophobic crimes, one in 10 for religiously motivated hate crimes, and one in 19 for 
disability hate crimes. 

 Gateshead has experienced increases in the number of reported hate incidents, anti-
Semitic and Islamophobic incidents.  This is a long-term rising trend, although some of this 
increase is associated with improved recording practices. 

 Rise in the number of hate crimes nationally over the last five years – with significant 
spikes in hate crime (particularly anti-Muslim) following high-profile national events and 
incidents (such as EU Referendum and terrorist attacks).  

 National Counter-Extremism Strategy describes hate crimes as a key harm of extremism 
– and links to other priorities outlined within the Partnership Plan. 

Page 65



 We know hate crime is mitigated by strong locally co-ordinated community messaging 
that is quick and responsive. 

 Hate crime is a priority for the Police and Crime Commissioner 
 
What is the local context telling us? 
 In 2019/20 Gateshead, there were 299 racist, 106 religiously motivated, 47 homophobic, 

64 disability and 13 transphobic hate-related incidents and crimes reported to the Police 
or Council.  There has been an upward trend in the volumes of recorded hate incidents 
and crimes for several years.  

 There are hotspot locations for hate crime offences recorded in Central Gateshead.  Most 
incidents are verbal with few violence-related offences motivated by hate.  Racist or 
religiously motivated, homophobic and transphobic hate crimes/incidents are most likely 
to occur on the street and be committed by a stranger; while disability hate crimes are 
more likely to occur in a dwelling, and to be perpetrated by someone known to the victim; 
although we also tend to see increased hate crime in public transport. 

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Continue to co-ordinate multi-agency activity to reduce harms caused by hate incidents 

across the Borough in partnership with the police and other key partners.  
 Offer, encourage and promote support mechanisms available for victims of hate crime – 

via VictimsFirst Northumbria, Central Engagement Team and Community Safety – to 
help increase the uptake of victim support services 

 Develop focus groups with victims to ascertain their experiences and identify areas for 
improvement within our current provision. 

 Commission work to raise the profile of hate crime and where to report incidents as well 
as communicating the successes of our work. 

 Increase awareness and understanding of hate crime, drawing upon personal stories, to 
help promote reporting methods with victims and witnesses.   

 Promote the work of Strategic Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring Group to partners and 
the public to increase awareness. 

 Roll out a series of hate crime awareness training to services and organisations (include 
public and private sector, schools and voluntary sector). 

 Address behaviour of repeat hate incident perpetrators (through ASB Tools and Powers).  
 Explore options to use restorative practice where appropriate to reduce harm. 
 Review and enhance Safe Reporting Centres including providing refresher training, and 

promoting these as a way of supporting victims to report hate crime 
 Work with education providers to ensure hate crime (including bullying) is consistently 

addressed using best hate incident practice and develop preventative educational 
programmes for hate incident perpetrators.  

 Tackle the barriers to reporting hate crime by working with under reported groups and 
responding to what the community is telling us (e.g. hate crime on public transport). 

 Deliver targeted awareness campaigns during Hate Crime Awareness Week. 
 Further promote and develop the role of the Hate Crime Champion. 
 Review and refresh the Tension Monitoring approach to ensure tensions are captured. 

Page 66



Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Priority Area 
 

Preventing Violent Extremism, 
Radicalisation and Terrorism 

 
What is our aim? 
 Individuals, institutions and communities are resilient to all forms of terrorism and 

extremism, harm is reduced, and people have higher levels of trust and confidence.  
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Violent extremism is better understood within Gateshead, and frontline staff, partners and 

communities are better equipped to challenge and report concerns. 
 Individuals vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism and extremism are identified at an early 

stage and supported through Channel Panels to reduce risk  
 Individuals at risk of re-engaging in terrorism-related activities are supported to reduce risk 

(and rehabilitate?). 
 Partner agencies and services are better able to manage risks (including those posed by 

extremist speakers, events and groups) 
 Improved compliance with the statutory Prevent Duty is achieved  
 Communities are aware of, and resilient to, the challenges posed by international, national 

and local incidents, and the risk of harm caused to individuals and communities is reduced.  
 
Why is it a priority? 
 Prevent is a statutory duty and requires specified authorities to 'have due regard to the 

need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism'.  
 The multi-agency Channel Duty requires vulnerable individuals to be supported early to 

help divert them away from radicalisation through effective interventions/support plans. 
 Terrorism remains one of the most direct and immediate risks to national security – and 

we have seen increases in the number of arrests and counter terrorism investigations. 
 The number of referrals for Prevent has increased significantly in Gateshead. 
 Terrorist attacks not only cause loss of life and economic damage, but they also fuel 

community tensions, damage public confidence and community cohesion. 
 There are direct links with community tensions and cohesion, hate crime and other 

priorities outlined within the Partnership Plan. 
 We know unless ideologies are challenged and prevented, the cycle of radicalisation will 

continue with significant resource implications across partners and a significant impact on 
communities.  

 The latest Counter Terrorism Local Profile demonstrates the need for Prevent, Channel 
and Contest arrangements to be a priority.  The North East experiences a significantly 
higher proportion of far-right threats; and proportion of individuals receiving Channel 
support linked with right-wing extremism has increased steadily (reaching 45% in 2019). 

 More people received Channel support last year than in the two previous years.  
Page 67



 The political and economic landscape globally and in the UK (e.g. linked to Brexit and 
austerity) may potentially lead to an increase in community tensions and increase risks of 
getting drawn into terrorism.  

 National changes to the way in which Channel Panels operate is expected in 2020/21. 
 

What is the local context telling us? 
 Experienced a significant increase in the number of Prevent referrals in Gateshead – and 

we currently have a small number of vulnerable persons being discussed in Channel. 
 Referrals are spread across the Borough – with no hotspots or localities of concerns.   
 Almost all our referrals relate to far-right extremism. 
 Formal Prevent training continues to be provided but uptake could be improved. 
 
Who’s affected? 
 There is no single route to terrorism - or a simple profile of those who become involved.  
 The decision of an individual to become involved in extremist activities is a complex 

interplay: exposure to an ideology, exposure to people who persuasively articulate that 
ideology and then relate it to an individual’s life circumstances; and vulnerabilities in 
people which make them susceptible. 

 In 2018/19 (as in previous years) the majority of individuals referred to Channel and who 
consented to receive support were aged 20 years or under and male.  We have seen an 
increase in the number of women arrested nationally in the last 12 months; 

 We know the internet is a key resource in facilitating the radicalisation process.  During 
COVID lockdown, the risks of online radicalisation increased, due to people spending 
increased time at home and online.  Young people are found to be at an increased risk as 
digital content is attractive and persuasive and can be quickly and widely shared.  

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Undertake an annual Prevent and Channel Self-Assessment to identify gaps, barriers and 

actions to help ensure compliance with statutory legislation. 
 Deliver the tasks outlined within the Gateshead Prevent Action Plan (whilst remaining 

flexible and responsive in tackling specific risks and emerging threats)  
 Strive to mainstream Prevent work across Council and partners to help improve our 

collective response to those being drawn into radicalisation 
 Monitor levels of risk, vulnerabilities, and threat – and contribute towards the findings 

and recommendations within the Northumbria Counter Terrorism Local Profile. 
 Re-invigorate the Prevent Delivery Group and Gateshead CONTEST Board. 
 Continue to raise awareness of diverse ideologies, groups and risks (amongst staff and 

communities) to strengthen their capabilities, increase their confidence to challenge 
ideologies and counter terrorist narratives. 

 Strengthen engagement within the local Channel Panel and hold development sessions 
and HYDRA to support its ongoing effectiveness and development. 

 Consider and implement the changes to Channel Panel based on national directive 
(including opportunities for a Regionalisation Model for Prevent). 

 We will support individuals vulnerable to being drawn into terrorist-related activities 
through the multi-agency Channel programme 

 Engage with and increase number of referrals from communities and the third sector. 
 Improve communications of Prevent work and its impact locally. 
 Embed the new Channel Panel Guidance (due to be published in November 2020).  

Page 68



Thriving Neighbourhoods and Communities 
 
Priority Area 
 

Challenging and Countering Extremism 
 
What is our aim? 
 A cohesive borough where extremist narratives are challenged and people are protected 

from the harms of extremism  
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Services and partnerships understand the nature of extremism occurring in Gateshead 

and work together effectively to reduce the risk and harm of extremism.  
 Empowered individuals, community groups and communities recognise extremist 

narratives and are confident and able to challenge these narratives  
 Diverse community groups work collaboratively and visibly together to challenge and 

counter all extremist narratives. 
 Partners stand against all forms of extremism, building cohesion and resilience.  
 No divisive or extremist narratives are shared or purported within the Borough. 
 
Why is it a priority? 
 Extremism causes widespread and significant harm to individuals and communities and 

can be seen in the rise of hate, intolerance and violent incidents.  
 Hateful extremism has a significant impact on the quality of life and wellbeing of those 

targeted – and the damaging impact is magnified further (as these extreme views become 
mainstreamed and normalised).  

 Extremists seek to create and exploit divisions between communities – which can lead to 
segregation, social isolation and exclusion – directly affecting quality of life for 
marginalised and vulnerable groups.  

 Community tensions and divisions can lead to wider instability that can impact on our 
Borough as a whole.   

 Countering extremism is distinct but complementary to the Prevent work that is a key 
priority for the Board. 

 Counter extremism is becoming an increasingly difficult problem – and is increasing.  
There are observable spikes in extremist narratives shared in response to significant 
international, national or local events. 

 Findings from the Commission for Countering Extremism 2019 reported that 52% of 
respondents had witnessed some form of extremism – of which, 45% had seen in online, 
and 39% had seen it in their local area. 

 
What is the local context telling us? 
 There are also growing, and emerging risks seen in reports of hate stickering by Far Right 

groups, increased reports of hate crime narratives and incidents and sporadic incidents 
linked with local issues and conspiracy groups. 

Page 69



 Our neighbouring localities have seen rises in such issues over the last 12-18 months – 
and receive specific Home Office funding to address these concerns. Extremism does not 
stop at the border; we need to ensure we are mindful of and working with other local 
authorities in Northumbria to ensure a consistent approach. 

 We have seen year-on-year increases in the reports of hate crime since 2012/13.  
 Nationally, the Community Security Trust has seen a threefold increase in reports of anti-

Semitic incidents since 2007 – which needs to be considered for Gateshead. 
 
Who’s affected? 
 Extremism, and the manifestation of extremism in hate incidents and the impact on 

cohesion, affects individuals, groups and our communities. 
 We have seen a rise in young people drawn into sharing and purporting extremist views 

– mainly through online and social media presence. 
 83% of respondents to the Counter Extremism Commission Call for Evidence were 

concerned that extremism is causing harm to our wider society and democracy – and that 
over three quarters of those working to counter extremism face some degree of abuse for 
the work that they do.  

 Where extremism manifests in hate incidents this has significant impact on the individuals 
and communities targeted.  

 
Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 We will build community and individual knowledge of, and trust and confidence in, work 

being undertaken and planned to counter extremism within Gateshead. 
 We will seek to increase reporting of extremist incidents, including incidents of extremist 

stickering and graffiti.  
 We will ensure mechanisms are in place to respond to these incidents appropriately to 

reduce risk and harm.  
 We will review and refresh our Community Tensions Framework to help ensure we have 

effective partnership processes to respond to these tensions (including how we capture, 
monitor and respond to issues effectively). 

 Develop increased dialogues and effective communication with communities are so we 
can work together to reduce divisions which may be exploited by extremists.  

 Work will be undertaken to empower individuals and community groups with the 
knowledge and skills to identify extremist narratives and content and to be able to 
challenge it.  

 Explore opportunities to challenge extremism in the online space and raising awareness 
of options to respond to hate and extremism where this occurs. 

 Facilitate network building across diverse community groups and services 
 Commission and support collaborative projects and events that build cohesion and offer 

positive alternatives to extremism.  
 Continue to develop work to reduce the harm caused by hate incidents 
 Reach out and communicate widely the successes of work to counter extremism and 

provide reassurance around hate crime. 
 Forge stronger links with regional Community Cohesion Co-ordinator to learn from and 

implement best practice. 

Page 70



Governance, Accountability and Leadership 
 
Priority Area 
 

Governance, Leadership and Accountability 
Effective Strategic and Operational Structures 

High Challenge, High Support and Inspiring Change 
 
What is our aim? 
 Effective and strong working arrangements where partners feel confident to deliver high 

challenge and high support to inspire change. 
 Partnership structure appropriately reflects the strategic themes/priorities identified by 

the Community Safety Board. 
 
What outcomes do we want to achieve? 
 Robust partnership working arrangements in place. 
 Clear understanding of the current and future Community Safety landscape and how the 

work undertaken by the partnership fulfils our common purpose. 
 Problems, barriers and challenges are resolved in a timely manner. 
 Partners are actively contributing towards and leading the delivery of the strategic themes 

outlined within the Partnership Plan. 
 Maintain compliance with legal and statutory obligations. 
 Activities undertaken by partners and services are appropriately scrutinised, challenged and 

supported through discussions at the Community Safety Board. 
 
Why is it a priority? 
 The Community Safety Board structure has not been reviewed for a significant period. 
 At the time of less resources – it is important to be more effective and streamlined to 

meet the growing and emerging issues around Community Safety. 
 The changes to national, regional and local landscape provide an opportunity to review 

what we currently deliver and improve our response to Community Safety. 
 The advent of Community Hubs with a greater emphasis towards locality-based working 

provides an opportunity to review the purpose and remit of Community Safety working. 
 Changes to the internal structures of Gateshead in relation to Community Safety and the 

alignment with Health and Wellbeing directorate provides an opportunity to be joined-up 
with services to address inequalities agenda (e.g. poverty). 

 
What is the local context telling us? 
 The last development session identified areas of strength as well as themes to improve 

the Board arrangements.  There remains a high level of commitment from partners to 
ensure the Community Safety functions are working effectively.   
 

Our plan – what will we aim to do? 
Over the next three years, we are committed to the following activity: 
 Review and amend the existing Community Safety Board Terms of Reference. 

Page 71



 Appraise and, where necessary, re-structure the operational partnership arrangements 
of the Board to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 

 Explore the possibility of lay membership to help drive transparency and scrutiny. 
 Undertake an audit of current Board membership, attendance and remit – and ensure 

Responsible Authorities are adequately contributing to the delivery of Partnership Plan. 
 Hold a further development session for Board members within the next 12 months. 
 Explore how the Board can support other partnerships and meetings. 
 Review of all Community Safety functions and how they can be embedded more within a 

wider Public Health and Wellbeing offer. 
 
HOW IS THE BOARD HELD TO ACCOUNT? 
 
The Community Safety Board holds overall responsibility for the delivery and performance of 
community safety activity in Gateshead.  Chief officers from the statutory organisations set 
the direction of the Partnership Plan and will hold agencies to account for delivery.  The Board 
is scrutinised by Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee where local 
Councillors, elected by Gateshead residents, review the work of the partnership.  Our 
activities require strong working links and relationships with other statutory Boards – we also 
to provide updates to these partnership arenas. 
 
 

• our role – we will combine our skills and resources, because working together as a 
team will bring about better outcomes for local people. 

 

• your role – play your part and get involved to bring about powerful change in your 
neighbourhood and the Borough.  

 

• together – we will act on the things that matter most to you to keep our communities 
safe and free from crime and disorder.  

 
 
WHAT WILL WE MEASURE?   
 
Tbc…for example: 
 
 Number of crimes taking place in Gateshead (by crime type)  
 Number of serious violence offences occurring in Gateshead 
 Number of domestic abuse referrals to Gateshead Domestic Abuse Service 
 Percentage of domestic abuse victims engaging with support services 
 Number of ASB incidents reported to Police, TGHC and Private Sector Housing 
 Number of Hate Crime incidents taking place in Gateshead 
 Number of successful prosecutions of hate crime. 
 Proportion of residents who state they feel safe  
 Proportion of residents who state Council and Police work together 
 Number of Prevent referrals in Gateshead 
 Number of Channel Panel cases held 

Page 72



HELP AND SUPPORT… 
 
Crime 
• Report crime, anti-social behaviour or intelligence by calling Northumbria 

Police on 101; or 999 in an emergency; or via www.northumbria.police.uk 
 
Environmental Issues 
• Environmental crimes such as fly tipping, littering and dog fouling can be 

reported to Gateshead Council on 0191 433 7000 (Mon-Fri 9am-5pm); or 
via www.fixmystreet.com 
 

Hate Incidents 
• Hate crime can be reported to Northumbria Police or to Gateshead Council 

on 0191 433 2648 (Mon-Fri 9am-5pm); www.gateshead.gov.uk/hatecrime 
 
Domestic Abuse 
• If you are experiencing domestic abuse, stalking or harassment – and 

require advice, please contact: Gateshead Domestic Abuse Helpline on 0191 
433 3333 or by email: domesticabuse@gateshead.gov.uk 

• In an emergency, please contact 999. 
 

Drugs and Alcohol 
• For advice and support in relation to drug and alcohol related difficulties, 

there are two agencies that can help:  
o Platform – Young People (up to 18 years) – 0191 460 1354 
o Gateshead Recovery Partnership - 0191 594 7821 

 
Anti-social Behaviour 
 Complaints about anti-social behaviour: 

o If you want to report ASB by a neighbour that lives in a private or 
privately rented home, you can contact 0191 433 2350 or email 
privatesectorhousingcivic@gateshead.gov.uk 

o If you want to report ASB by a neighbour that lives in a council home, 
you can contact your local housing office, phone: 0191 433 5327 or 
email nrt@gatesheadhousing.co.uk 

 
Preventing Extremism 
 If you have a Prevent referral – please contact a member of the Community 

Safety team on: 0191 433 3000 or prevent@gateshead.gov.uk 

Page 73



 

 

 

CONTACT US: 
 

Community Safety 
Gateshead Council, Civic Centre, Regent Street, NE8 1HH 

0191 433 3000 
communitysafety@gateshead.gov.uk 

 
 

 
April 2020 

 
 Page 74



 

1 
 

 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT &  
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC  

5th December 2022 
 

 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:     Protection of Green Assets 
 
REPORT OF:                Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Housing, Environment & 

Healthy Communities 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY  
 

This report provides an update on the current voluntary and other initiatives and arrangements to 
help protect green assets across the borough. It also highlights future plans and challenges in 
protecting Gateshead’s green spaces and assets.   
________________________________________________________________________ 
  
Background  
 
1. Following the wider OSC review of the Programme of Improvement of Green Spaces in 

Gateshead in October 2021, OSC have requested as part of their 2022-23 work programme a 
further report on the current arrangements to protect green assets.  

 
2. This report provides a full update on initiatives and arrangements to help protect green assets 

including voluntary group support and formal arrangements with charitable and non-charitable 
organisations, associations, sports clubs and individuals. 

  
Gateshead’s Green Spaces and Assets  
 
3. The borough of Gateshead stretches almost 13 miles along the south bank of the River Tyne 

and covers 55 square miles, making it the largest of the five Tyne and Wear authorities. 
Around two thirds of the borough is rural. The definition of green spaces and assets referred to 
in this report includes; 
 

• general open green spaces owned or managed by the council across the borough, 
including estate greens, 

• 28 parks and 120 fixed play sites, with a range of facilities, managed by Gateshead 
Council,  

• over 20 Countryside sites including meadows, woodlands, local nature reserves and 
sites of special scientific interest, and 

• the green spaces owned and/or managed by our partners such as Durham Wildlife 
Trust, Forestry Commission, local conservation groups, the National Trust and 
Woodland Trust, 

• 51 council owned allotment sites (1168 allotment plots) and also including 31 allotment 
sites managed by an allotment association, 

• 9 bowling green, 16 football, 3 cricket and 1 rugby facilities operated by sports clubs.   
 

4. Appendix 1 to this report provides the detailed update on the current voluntary and other 
initiatives and arrangements to help protect green assets across the borough and also future 
plans and challenges in protecting Gateshead’s green spaces.   

Page 75

Agenda Item 5



 

2 
 

 
5. Due to continuing austerity measures, the council finds itself unable to maintain its green assets 

and facilities to the standards it once did and has increasingly looked to support from volunteers 
and various organisations to help in this task. 

 
6. Members will see from the breadth and depth of activities covered in Appendix 1, that there is a 

significant amount of work underway and planned across the borough to support and protect our 
green assets.  

 
7. Members should also note that there are significant challenges in fostering, supporting and 

sustaining these arrangements and relationships. Identifying and establishing new groups can 
be resource intensive. Voluntary groups require significant and frequent support and their 
structure and sustainability can be fragile at times. Charitable and other organisations also 
require significant cross-council support particularly where responsibility for assets is transferred 
and managed by the volunteers or organisation.  

 
Recommendation 

 
8. It is recommended that the Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities OSC: 

 
(i) consider the update provided and invite views and comments from Members on the current 

arrangements to protect our green assets as outlined in Appendix 1,  
(ii) identify any areas they feel they require more detail and/or have further suggestions for 

opportunity and improvement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Contact:  Philip Hindmarsh   Ext: 7445 
 

Page 76



 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Protection of Green Assets 

Countryside Sites 
1. We have several different schemes and plans across our sites working with voluntary groups 

and individuals: 

Thornley Woods, Derwent Valley and Derwent Country Park 

2. We are in the process of completing the Thornley Woods visitor centre asset transfer to the 
current occupier as a café and visitor hub. This will secure the centre as a site for public 
information about the wider site and as a resource for the Volunteer Countryside Rangers to 
promote the volunteer scheme, Gateshead’s countryside sites and give general information 
about Thornley Woods, Derwent Valley and the Derwent Country Park. The facility will also 
help with the management of 6 bird hides (sale of keys to bird watchers) and also continue 
to provide public toilet facilities for park users. The asset transfer removes the cost to the 
council for maintaining the facility and also generates a small income for the council.  
 

3. The Volunteer Countryside Rangers (with support from the Council’s Countryside Ranger) 
continue to provide practical conservation task days to carry out much needed park 
maintenance and improvements. 
 

4. We are refreshing the sculpture trail working with the local chainsaw sculptor, carrying out 
further maintenance work on Crowley’s dam and improving outdoor picnic space at the 
Woodland Centre. 
 

5. We are currently updating and rewriting the site management plan with a view to applying for 
the Green Flag Award in 2023 and the volunteers and interested parties will play a large and 
important part in this process. 

Forest Schools 

6. We have forest school providers at Norwood, Riverside Sculpture Park, Chopwell, Chase 
Park and Saltwell park using our sites to provide opportunities for young people aged 2 – 16, 
adults, NEET, special needs and refugees. As part of the agreement the providers carryout 
small scale habitat management works to help maintain the sites. 

Conservation Grazing 

7. We use rare and native breeds of cattle, sheep and ponies across several sites to help 
manage the grasslands and wider habitats at specific times through the year. The cattle and 
sheep are provided by local farmers at no cost but in receipt of free grazing and the ponies 
are from the Moorland Mousie Trust that rescues Exmoor ponies, again they receive free 
grazing. This enables us to reduce the mechanical cutting and reduce costs.  

Durham Wildlife Trust (DWT) 

8. We have been working successfully in partnership with Durham Wildlife Trust for several 
years now. On behalf of the Council, they manage the following sites: 
 

• Addison Village and Hedgefield Quarry 
• Barlow Burn 

Page 77



 

 

• Chopwell East Fields 
• Chopwell Meadows 
• Cross Lane Meadows 
• Lamesley Pastures 
• Ousbrough Wood 
• Shibdon Pond and Meadow 
• The Folly (Greenside) 
• Victoria Garesfield 
• Westfield Pasture 

 
9. Working in partnership with the Wildlife Trust has several benefits relating to the management 

of our sites. In the main it removes the pressure from our limited resources for the day-to-day 
management. It still allows public access and has led to an improvement in sites where DWT 
volunteers have carried out conservation works and training. Council officers meet regularly 
with the Trust to discuss ongoing management issues. 

The Woodland Trust 

10. The Woodland Trust own/manage a portfolio of woodlands in Gateshead including two sites 
it leases from the Council. The most recent of these is the recently established Summerhill 
Wood near Path Head.  Plans are currently being developed for the creation of a new 26ha 
Woodland Trust community woodland at Dunston Hill.   

Land of Oak and Iron Trust 

11. The Land of Oak & Iron Trust is an independent charitable organisation, working closely with 
the Land of Oak & Iron partnership which the Council is a member of. The trust provides and 
maintains a visitor centre and café in the Derwent Countryside Park which is valued and 
frequented by park visitors as well as providing other events and initiatives.  

Environmental Volunteers 

12. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, Street Scene supported around 35 environmental voluntary 
groups with around 400 active members. Groups were wide ranging and varied from parks’ 
friends of groups, gardening and litter picking groups to special interest groups.  Groups were 
coordinated by the Technical & Development Officer in Street Scene along with support 
through the council’s volunteering offer.  Volunteers received assistance from operational 
teams by providing advice, loan of equipment, sacks, gloves and waste collection.   
 

13. The outbreak of Covid-19 meant that almost all volunteering initiatives had to cease and this 
situation continued through most of the year and into 2021.  With the relaxation of Covid-19 
restrictions, volunteering support has gradually resumed, and the Technical & Development 
Officer has worked closely with groups to identify and implement volunteering tasks in a Covid 
secure manner. Some examples include; solo litter picking on the Derwent Walk and 
Watergate Forest Park, socially distant Balsam pulling along the Derwent, socially distant 
tree planting at Dunston park and wild flower sowing at serval sites. 
 

14. We have a number of volunteer groups across the borough who carryout practical habitat 
management, run events, lead walks and provide an information service. 
 

15. We have volunteer groups at the following countryside locations, 
 

Page 78



 

 

• Clara Vale 
• Highfield 
• Pelaw Quarry Pond 
• Stargate Ponds 
• Watergate and Washingwell Woods 

 
16. These groups carryout small scale practical site management works regularly throughout the 

year. 
 

17. We also have the Volunteer Countryside Rangers. This group meeting weekly for a Ranger 
led task day where they carryout priority habitat management tasks. Over the years they have 
built up a skill set that allows them to carry out quite complex tasks with professionalism. 
They also meet independently to work in small groups on simpler tasks. 

Other Voluntary Groups 

18. As well as groups involved on our countryside sites, the Technical and Development officer 
supports a number of groups who volunteer in parks, neighbourhoods and green open 
spaces. These are: 
 

• Love Your Avenues  
• Low Fell Planters   
• Friends of Chopwell park  
• Friends of Felling Park 
• Wardley Womblers 
• Brighton Ryton 
• Friends of Ferndene Park 
• Crawcrook & Greenside Our Villages 
• Friends of Chase Park 
• LARKs – a Ryton based litter picking group 
• Pelaw Bowling Club 
• Watergate Womblers 
• Chase Park Womblers 
• Bainsley Lane Coppicers 
• Avondale Terrace 
• Calderwood Park 
• Dodds Dene 
• Dunston Staithes 
• Dunston Park 
• Far Pasture 
• Friends of Harlow Green 
• Friends of Calderwood Park 
• Oliver Henderson Park 
• Planting Up Whickham 

 
19. All these groups receive support in the form of supplies, tools & equipment. Officer time and 

guidance, event support, help with risk assessments and funding bids. 
 

Page 79



 

 

Access Improvements 

20. We have carried out access improvements to sites across the Borough to improve vehicle 
and pedestrian access and both countryside sites and rights of ways. Works have included: 
 

• Resurfacing Stirling Lane carpark. 
• New boundary fencing, boom gates and accessible kissing gates at Whitehills. 
• New steps, accessible ramp, fencing and resurfacing works at Watergate Forest Park. 
• New steps at Shibdon Dene. 
• Boundary maintenance treatments on a number of sites and public rights of way. 

 
21. Where these improvements are on countryside sites the Volunteer Countryside Ranger have 

helped to carry out improvements as part of the practical conservation task days. 

Tree Planting 

22. The More & Better Woods Action Plan sets out the Council’s strategic approach to delivering 
woodland creation and largescale amenity tree planting on Council land, including identifying 
potential planting sites. 
 

23. The Council has recently secured grant funding to support the appointment of 2 x two-year 
fixed term posts from April 2023 – April 2025 to coordinate/accelerate the delivery of 
woodland creation and amenity/urban tree planting on Council land.     
 

24. Despite limited capacity, last winter the Council planted: 
 

• Approx. 6ha of new woodland (c.15,000 whips) at Whitehills Nature Park. These trees were 
planted by the local community, school groups and uniformed organisations. The local 
community continue to be engaged in the ongoing establishment and aftercare of the site. 

• 77 heavy standards with NECF funding across 18 sites in 15 Wards. 
• 144 fruit trees to make 10 community orchards. 
• Worked in partnership with the Woodland Trust, the Tree Council, Trees for Cities, Durham 

Wildlife Trust, St Anne’s Community Care, Lloyds Bank and Friends Groups to deliver tree 
and hedge planting. 

• Worked with the Lord Lieutenant Office and volunteers to deliver tree planting in celebration 
of the Queen’s Jubilee Green Canopy initiative. 

Woodland Management 

25. The Council is currently progressing the production of a UK Forestry Standard compliant 
Woodland Management Plan for its entire c.900ha woodland estate.  The process is likely to 
take 18 – 24 months and once completed will: 
 

• provide a plan of management operations for each woodland 
• enable the Council to apply for external grant funding to support the positive management of 

its woodland for people and wildlife 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

 

Funding 

26. The Council has previously used/uses a number of different funding streams to help us deliver 
both projects and general habitat/site management works, although external funding to 
support the latter is more limited. Funding streams include: 
 

• Trees for Climate – administrated by the North East Community Forest 
• Local Authority Treescapes Fund – administrated by the North East Community Forest 
• Woodland Creation Accelerator Fund – Defra 
• Countryside Stewardship – Natural England 
• The Tree Council 
• Trees for Cities 
• Flood and Costal Erosion Risk Management – The Environment Agency 

Partnership Working 

27. Partnership working allows us to: 
 
• benefit from the capacity and expertise of others to develop/fund/deliver projects, 
• reduce the Council’s land management burden and associated costs, 
• promote Gateshead’s countryside to a wider audience, attracting visitors and investment 

to the borough. 
 

28. It also establishes Gateshead as a responsible landowner and manager and a forward-
thinking authority. 
 

29. As well as Durham Wildlife Trust and the Woodland Trust we work with other organisations 
to help us manage and develop our sites: 
 

• As part of the Team Valley Flood Alleviation Scheme we are working with the Environment 
Agency on reducing flood risk and delivering infrastructure and biodiversity improvements 
within Norwood and Eslington Park. 

• In the Derwent Valley we are working with Groundwork to deliver events on the wider site. 
Gateshead sites are also benefitting from Groundwork’s Revitalising Our Estuaries project.  

• Tyne Rivers Trust deliver events on our sites. 

Allotments 

30. The council owns 51 allotment sites including 1168 allotment plots. 31 of these sites are 
directly managed by an Allotment Association. The association is responsible for the general 
management of the site including collection of allotment rents, day to day maintenance and 
queries and disputes. This arrangement reduces the demand on the council to manage the 
sites and in return the association retains the rental income to help maintain and manage the 
site. 
 

31. There are also 6 private allotment sites managed by associations across the borough. 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

Sports Pitches 

32. The council has successfully leased or community asset transferred its facilities for 9 bowling 
green, 16 football, 3 cricket and 1 rugby facilities to sports clubs who now manage and 
maintain the sites. This has protected the future of the facilities and offered greater 
opportunity to develop and improve further. The facilities are maintained by volunteers within 
the sports clubs, often generating funding and income from external sources and increased 
community involvement and initiatives.      

Park Friends of and User Groups 

Friends of Saltwell Park 

33. We work closely with the Friends of Saltwell Park volunteers to support us with improvement 
initiatives and events in the park. The group of 650+ members is active in completing a range 
of tasks including, rose bed planting, community orchard planting and maintenance, general 
tidy up, horticultural improvements and promotion of the park. 

Saltwell Park User Group (SPUG) 

34. The group was established and is managed by the council to help coordinate the range of 
interested groups in Saltwell Park. It includes representatives from Friends of Saltwell Park 
but also other park users such as the Model Boat Club, the Wednesday Gardening Group, 
the Buzzing Garden, North Tyneside Bee Keepers, ReCoCo and parkrun. The group is active 
in carrying out events and improvement projects and maintenance initiatives in the park. 

Recovery College Collective (Recoco) 

35. Recoco is a charitable organisation offering support and educational services in Saltwell Park 
for those who have used or use mental health services. The group lease the park’s training 
centre, securing the future of the building, reducing costs to the council whilst providing a 
worthwhile community service. 

Friends of Ferndene Park/ Brighten Ryton 

36. The groups are currently finalising a community asset transfer of the bowling green and 
pavilion within Ferndene Park, Ryton with support from the council. The premises are to be 
used as a community facility for the provision of bowls and additional activities for park users. 
 

37. The Friends of Ferndene Park group undertake general grounds maintenance within the park 
including grass cutting, litter picking, flower/shrub maintenance.  The group work with the 
council on any proposed improvements or suggested changes to the management of the 
park. The council has been working closely with the group and with their help we have 
recently refurbished the fixed play provision in the park. 

Friends of Chase Park 

38. The Friends of Chase Park group undertake general grounds maintenance within the park 
including grass cutting, litter picking, flower/shrub maintenance. The group work with the 
council on any proposed improvements or suggested changes to the management of the 
park. The council worked closely with the group and with their help we carried out a £1m 
Heritage Lottery Fund refurbishment of the park. 
 
 

Page 82



 

 

Our Villages, Crawcrook & Greenside 

39. With support from the council, Our Villages community group commissioned Gradon 
Architecture to undertake an appraisal of the opportunity and preparation of a number of 
concept studies to enhance the public amenity of Crawcrook Park. Further discussions will 
take place with the council and Our Villages to consider the feasibility of the studies and 
develop a plan to improve the park using funding available for fixed play renewals along with 
funding obtained by Our Villages. 
 

40. Our Villages have expressed an interest in a community asset transfer of the Crawcrook Park 
bowling pavilion and bowling green. The appraisal looks at how these areas can be 
developed to include refreshments and changing and welfare facilities.  The council will 
continue to work with Our Villages in the development of their proposals and any asset 
transfer.  
 

41. The group also undertake regular environmental improvements and initiatives around the 
villages. 

Gateshead’s Local Plan 

42. Gateshead’s Local Plan includes policies and designations covering a range of Gateshead’s 
green assets including open space, pitches, allotments, Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) and Sites 
of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), for example. Policies in the Local Plan serve to protect 
such areas and in terms of biodiversity require the provision of net gains from new 
development; and ensure there is sufficient provision of open space and playing pitches in 
terms of quality, quantity and accessibility to meet the needs of the population. The deadline 
for the next review of the Local Plan is 2025 and this will be informed by new evidence 
including, for example, a Playing Pitch Strategy and a Green Infrastructure Strategy and 
Delivery Plan. The huge range of groups and individuals who support the council in the 
protection of its green assets will be able to contribute towards the plans.  

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT &  
HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES OSC  

5th December 2022 
 

 

TITLE OF REPORT: Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 agreements/ 
Planning Obligations and their use in planning 

REPORT OF:            Anneliese Hutchinson, Service Director, Climate Change, 
            Compliance, Planning and Transport 

__________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 

To inform Overview and Scrutiny Committee about Community Infrastructure Levy 
and Section 106 Agreements and how they are used in the planning process.  

__________________________________________________________________ 

Background  

SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLICATIONS  

What is a Planning Obligation/S106 Agreement? 

1. Planning obligations are also known as Section 106 agreements. They are: 
• legal agreements made between local authorities and developers. 
• They are linked to a planning permission to make acceptable development 

which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms.  
• The land itself, rather than the person or organisation that develops the land, is 

bound by a Section 106 Agreement, something any future owners will need to 
consider. 

• Both the Council and developer are bound by the terms of the s106 agreement. 
 
2. A S106 obligation can: 

• restrict the development or use of the land in any specified way 

• require specified operations or activities to be carried out in, on, under or over 
the land 

• require the land to be used in any specified way 
• require a sum or sums to be paid to the authority on a specified date or dates 

or periodically 

3. Planning obligations assist in mitigating the impact of unacceptable development. 
Planning obligations must meet the nationally prescribed tests. They must be: 

• necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. 
• directly related to the development; and 
• fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 6



4. Common uses of planning obligations are to secure affordable housing as well as 
to secure financial contributions to provide infrastructure such as highways 
improvements linked to the site or ecology mitigation.  They can also provide local 
employment and training opportunities. 

When are S106 obligations required in Gateshead? 

5. S106 obligations are required when the following applies: 

• Policy requirement - National and Council Policy in Local Plan. 
 

• Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (link in Appendix 1) – 
this outlines when a s106 will be sought and how we would calculate any 
financial contribution.  

 
• Negotiation – all obligations are open to negotiation as part of the 

planning consideration. 
 

• Viability - developers can provide evidence that the obligation would make 
a development unviable subject to nationally set criteria.  

 
How are S106 funds spent? 

6. As both the Council and the Developer are party to a s106 agreement, both are 
bound by the terms of the agreement.  These usually oblige the Council to spend 
any s106 financial contributions on the specific project or scheme that is outlined 
in the s106 agreement.  

7. Funds are monitored and progress reported to Planning and Development 
Committee regularly. 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 

What is Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)? 

8. CIL is a tool to raise funds to help deliver strategic infrastructure to support the 
development of the Borough. 
• CIL funds from developments pay for the strategic infrastructure that is needed 

in the Borough as a result of development. 
 

• CIL takes the form of a tariff per square metre of net additional floor space 
created by the development.  

 
• The level of the tariff is set by the Council as Local Planning Authority balancing 

the desirability of funding the costs of necessary infrastructure and the possible 
effects of CIL on the viability of development. 

 
• The tariff has been subject to consultation and independent examination and 

was subsequently approved at Full Council. 
 

Page 86



• The Gateshead levy rates are set out in the Gateshead CIL Charging 
Schedule.  Some areas of Gateshead are charged no CIL because of viability 
challenges. 
 

How are CIL funds spent? 
 
9. When CIL monies are received, they are divided between 3 funds: 

 
• 80% MAIN FUND – Strategic Infrastructure projects across the Borough. This 

is agreed annually at Cabinet 
 

• 15% NEIGHBOURHOOD PORTION – allocated to community groups in/near 
the ward where the development occurs via a bid process administered by the 
Community Foundation. (Details in Appendix 2)   
 

• 5% ADMINISTRATION COSTS (covering staff costs to monitor and oversee 
the collection and spending of monies) 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT 
 
10. Under the CIL Regulations, the Council are required to publish an Infrastructure 

Funding Statement annually. (Link in Appendix 1) The Statement includes 
information on income received through Section 106 Agreements and CIL and any 
expenditure of this income.  

 
11. The IFS includes the CIL neighbourhood portion received and allocated.  The IFS 

outlines the income projections and sets the spending priorities for the following 
year. This year’s IFS will be going to Cabinet for approval in December. 

 
12. In addition, a S106 update report is presented to Planning and Development 

Committee monthly. This lists information about new S106 agreements, income 
received and expenditure. (Link in Appendix 1)  

 
FUTURE 
 
The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill includes the suggestion of a new Infrastructure 
Levy to replace Community Infrastructure Levy. This will be a mandatory charge on all 
development designed to capture more of the value uplift in land value. Section 106 
will be retained to cover affordable housing and infrastructure integral to the operation 
of the site. 
 
Recommendation 

13. It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee note this report for 
information. 

 

Contact: Emma Lucas       Ext: 3747 

  

Page 87



APPENDIX 1 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Planning obligations - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Community Infrastructure Levy - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Gateshead Council Obligations Supplementary Planning Document 

CIL in Gateshead 

Infrastructure Funding Statement - Gateshead Council 

CIL/S106 member training July 2021 PowerPoint recorded seminar available on 
request. 

Planning and Development Committee S016 update (page 41) 

  

Page 88

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/planning-obligations
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/3094/Planning-Obligations-SPD
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/3004/Implementation-of-the-Community-Infrastructure-Levy-CIL
https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/17216/Infrastructure-Funding-Statement
https://gateshead-my.sharepoint.com/:p:/g/personal/emmalucas_gateshead_gov_uk/EZMZDh--kRNNsWHCggjy5dkBjTf8Dmi451OQJtSwAugIdg?e=az8cOC
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/documents/b10500/Supplementary%20Agenda%2023rd-Nov-2022%2010.00%20Planning%20and%20Development%20Committee.pdf?T=9
https://gateshead.moderngov.co.uk/documents/b10500/Supplementary%20Agenda%2023rd-Nov-2022%2010.00%20Planning%20and%20Development%20Committee.pdf?T=9


APPENDIX 2 

NEIGHBOURHOOD PORTION 
1. In June 2017, Cabinet approved the governance of the 15% neighbourhood fund 

(outside of Lamesley Parish), and a legal agreement was subsequently signed 

with Community Foundation for Tyne and Wear and Northumberland (CFTWN) 

for them to administer the process.  

2. The process was as follows: 

• CFTWN issue a call for applications (for between £5000 and £25,000) at 

the beginning of each financial year. This is firstly limited to the Wards 

where the CIL development is taking place.  
• If no bids are received or if there are still funds remaining, CFTWN open 

the call for applications to neighbouring wards.  
• Whilst CFTWN would initially determine bids, the three Members for the 

ward in which the bids have come from, along with the Portfolio Holder for 

Communities and Volunteering make the final decision whether to award 

the funds.  
3. All applications were allocated and defrayed within the forthcoming financial year.  

4. As part of the Cabinet approval, the governance of CIL was to be subject to a 

review once it had become established.  

5. In October 2021 Cabinet considered the results of that review and approved 

changes to the governance of the CIL neighbourhood fund. 

6. These changes included: 

• to adopt a rolling programme of funding.  

• Give a longer notice period for funds coming available (in advance of call for 

bids)  

• Greater flexibility in the value of funds that can be applied for.  

• Giving more publicity to the Neighbourhood Fund  

• Consideration of bids from groups outside the target ward where there is 

demonstrable benefit to the target ward. 

Links to cabinet reports: 
Cabinet report October 2021  

Cabinet report June 2017 

Page 89

https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s29923/CIL%20neighbourhood%20fund%20governance%20ckd.pdf
https://gatesheadintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s10592/CIL%20neighbourhood%20portion%20report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

              
 
 
 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Annual Work Programme 
 
REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive  

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 

 
Summary 

 
The report sets out the provisional work programme for the Housing, Environment and 
Healthier Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2022/23. 
 
 
 
1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 5 

July 2022 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future 
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme.  

 
2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands and highlights proposed 

changes to the programme in bold and italics for ease of identification.    
 
Recommendations  
 
3.  The Committee is asked to 
 

a) Note the provisional programme;  
 

b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee 
to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to 
consider. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact: Angela Frisby Extension: 2138 
 
 
 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & HEALTHIER
COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE
5 December 2022

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 

Draft Housing Environment & Healthier Communities OSC Work 
Programme 2022-23 
27 June 2022 
1.30pm 

• Performance Management and 
Improvement Framework – Year End 
Performance 2021-22  

• Housing Performance Report – Q4 2022-22 
• Flytipping – Update  
• Work Programme 
19 September 2022 

1.30pm 
*Meeting cancelled* 

7 November 2022 
1.30pm   
 

• Construction Services Update - Update on 
Repairs and Maintenance Improvement 
Plan 

• Housebuilding Update (Deferred from Sept 
2022) 

• Housing Performance and Compliance 
Monitoring a) HEHC Performance Qtr2  
b) HEHC Performance Indicator Review 

• Implications of Constitutional Change – 
Tenant Representative on the OSC 

• Work Programme 
5 December 2022 
1.30pm 

• Performance Management and 
Improvement Framework – Six Month 
Update 

• Community Safety priorities update / 
progress (now to include information that 
was due at Sept 2022 meeting) 

• Protection of Green Assets (eg Chopwell, 
Thornley Woods) – Update 

• Section 106 update 
• Work Programme 

30 January 2023 
1.30pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Community Safety priorities 
update/progress (Additional report) 

• High Street South update *NEW* 
• Private Landlord Registration Scheme – 

Update (to cover how the scheme is working, 
whether it is going to be extended/ how many 
complaints are received in relation to private 
landlords/whether many of these relate to 
repairs needed/ how the Council is 
responding to Complaints about private 
landlords and whether Council is in a position 
to accurately advise as to whether private 
housing stock is of good quality and value for 
money)  

• Tackling Homelessness – (Progress Update 
on implementation of new strategy 

• Work Programme 
13 March 2023 
5.30pm 

• Lifelong Learning (to focus on what is 
available academically and physically and 

Page 93



Appendix 1 

 

whether there is a clear picture of provision 
across the borough) 

• Health Check of Community Centres 
(Deferred from January 2023) 

• Construction Services Update – 
Improvement Plan Progress Report 

• The Flood and Water Management Act    
2010: Annual Progress Report 

• Work Programme 
15 May 2023  
1.30pm 
 

• Housing Design and Energy Efficient 
Standards– (to focus on the planning 
process and the standards currently accepted 
and what more can be achieved in terms of 
design and energy efficiency 

• Housing Performance and Compliance 
Monitoring to include a) Operational 
Performance b) Compliance Performance c) 
Regulatory Self – Assessment 

• Impact of Brexit on businesses large and 
small – Update 

• Work Programme 
 
Issues to slot in: 
 

• Housing Regulatory Self-Assessment (deferred from Nov 2022) 

Page 94


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 Performance Management and Improvement Framework – Six Month Update
	Appendix 1 - PMIF 6-month performance reports
	0. DRAFT
	PO 1 Every Child analysis
	1. Give Every Child the Best Start docx
	PO 2 Enable all analysis
	2. Enable all docx
	PO 3 Economic and jobs analysis
	3. Economic. docx
	PO 4 Standard of Living analysis
	4. Standard of living docx
	PO 5 Sustainable analysis
	5. Sust Comms docx
	PO 6 Ill Health Prevention analysis
	6. Ill health prevention
	Balanced Scorecard Analysis
	Draft Balanced Scorecard Oct22 (5)

	Appendix 2 - PMIF overview document
	Appendix 3 - Glossary of terms

	4 Community Safety Progress Update
	TITLE OF REPORT:   	Community Safety Priorities – 6 Month Update
	REPORT OF: 	Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health – Care, Wellbeing and Learning
	Summary
	This report provides Housing, Environment and Healthier Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) with a brief overview of some of the key activities that have been co-ordinated and delivered by the Gateshead Community Safety Board between Apr-Sept 2022 to address the priorities outlined within the Partnership Plan 2020/23.
	Item 04i - Partnership Plan 2020-23

	5 Protection of Green Assets
	Summary
	Proted - Appendix 1 Protection of Green Assets

	6 Section 106
	7 Work Programme
	REPORT OF:	Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
	Summary
	Recommendations
	APPENDIX 1 - HEHC OSC Draft Work Prog 2022-23 v10


